
 

FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 

COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION MEETING ROOM 

APRIL 20, 2021 

9:00 AM 

AGENDA 

The Board of County Commissioners asks that all cell phones are turned off or placed on silent (vibrate) mode.  Any 
handouts (information) for distribution to the Commission must be submitted to the Board Secretary (Clerk’s 
Office) or to the County Coordinator on or before the Thursday prior to that Tuesday’s meeting.  Failure to do so 
will result in your removal from the agenda or a delay of any action relating to your request until a future 
meeting. 

Meeting Information 

To comply with CDC and Government social distancing requirements, the general public will not be allowed in 
the commission meeting room for this meeting; therefore, this Board of County Commission regular meeting 
will be accessible via livestream and Zoom.  Those wanting to view the meeting can use the livestream link 
(https://facebook.com/forgottencoasttv/) or go to Forgotten Coast TV's Facebook Page. The livestream feed 
will promptly start 5 minutes before the meeting commences.  You do not need a Facebook account to view 
Facebook live. Those wanting to participate during the meeting should use the Zoom log-in/call-in 
information provided below. There is a link to a list of videos and Getting Started Resources on the main 
"Agenda and Minutes" webpage for those unfamiliar with Zoom. If you are experiencing any issues with the 
livestream or Zoom, call (850) 653-9783 extension 373 for assistance.  

To join Zoom via computer, use the link (https://zoom.us/j/93626099425) on the meeting date and time.  If 
you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer or prefer to call, you can dial in for audio. Call 
(301) 715-8592 or (312) 626- 6799 or (929) 205-6099 and enter ID number (936 2609 9425).  All attendees 
are muted by default. 

If you would like to speak during the meeting, you have the following options: 

First complete the virtual speaker card (https://www.franklincountyflorida.com/virtual-speaker-card/). This 
card must be submitted to the County Commission Administrative Office prior to the start of the meeting in 
order for you to speak during the meeting. During "Public Comments" you may comment on a non-agenda 
item or a non-action item for up to 3-minutes when recognized by the Chairman.  You may also address the 
Commission on an agenda action item for one minute (which may change based on the number of speakers 
waiting to comment) during the meeting after a motion has been seconded and you are recognized by the 
Chairman.   

Once recognized by the Chairman, if you are on Zoom with a computer or smart device select the 'raise hand' 
icon.  If you have dialed in to the meeting by phone press *9 to raise your hand, then *6 to unmute. 

Public engagement is important to us and use of Zoom for public participation is still a new process. We 
appreciate your understanding. 

Call to Order 

1



Prayer and Pledge 

Approval of Minutes 

A. April 6, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Payment of County Bills 

Franklin County Correctional Institution -- Warden Robert Conner -- Update 

A. Warden Conner will update the Board on inmate labor and recent discussions on prison 
closings.  

Public Comments 

This is an opportunity for the public to comment on a non-agenda or non-action agenda item.  When you are 
recognized to be heard by the Chairman, please adhere to the 3-minute time limit.   

Department Directors Report 

Superintendent of Public Works – Howard Nabors 

A. Informational Item 

1. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District (agenda packet) 

Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis 

A. Informational Item 

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup / Recycle Material Hauled (agenda packet) 

Emergency Management Director – Pam Brownell 

A. Action Item 

1. Request the Approval of Awarding of the HLMP Bid Packet to Florida Retrofit and the 
Signing of the Contract 

B. Informational Items 

1. EOC Hosted a G-300 Class on 04/05-04/07/21. 

2. EOC is Hosting a G-400 Class on 04/27 – 04/28/21. 

3. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with 
FDEM and FEMA.  Franklin County has two projects for Hurricane Sally both projects have 
had their DDD and Cost and Scope Signed off on.  We have submitted the Project for CAT B 
Reimbursement.  North Bayshore project has also been submitted. 

4. IPAW/WEA/EAS System test will be completed by 04/30/21. 

5. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth 
mask throughout our community.  We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of 
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor 
Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents.  We will continue this 
effort as long as supplies are available.  

6. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus.  This 
includes hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, EMS, as 
needed.  We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via 
Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

7. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, 
etc. regarding COVID 19.  We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency 
and SitReps. 

2



8. EOC Staff virtually participated in the Orientation for the K0705 Class on 04/13/21. Class 
will begin on 04/19/21. 

9. EOC Staff will virtually participate in the FEPA – WebEOC 9 Lunch and Learn on 04/20/21. 

Extension Office Director – Erik Lovestrand 

A. Informational Items 

General Extension Activities: 

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of organic gardening, 
removal of storm-damaged vessels, cypress tree issues, and 4-H programming. 

2. Extension Director participated in the NW District Natural Resource Agent program team 
meeting via Zoom. 

3. Extension Director participated in promotion packet review within the NW District. 

Sea Grant Extension: 

4. Extension Director participated in Florida Sea Grant meeting via Zoom for updates on 
statewide projects. 

4-H Youth Development: 

5. Extension Director participated in the District III 4-H Agent meeting and Youth Council 
meeting to elect this year’s officers. 

Family and Consumer Sciences: 

6. Family Nutrition Program assistant continues providing nutrition programing in local 
schools 

Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 

7. Two Master Gardener classes took place at the local Extension office during this period.  
There are ten people currently taking the training. 

Board of Adjustment – Cortni Bankston – Report 

A. Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a single-family dwelling 12 feet into the 
25-foot setback off River Road, 15 feet variance into the 25-foot setback off River Street 
(Unconstructed), and a 15 feet variance in to the 50-foot wetlands setback requirement from 
Carrabelle River. Property described as 339 River Road, block 5, Carrabelle River Sub Lot 1, 
Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Richard A. Glover, agent for 
Richard L. Wood, Sheryl T. Wood, and Donna B. Bostwick, applicant.  Advisory Board 
Recommended Approval. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

B. Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a single-family dwelling 10 feet into the 
25-foot setback into right of way on Indian Harbor Drive. Property described as 1931 Indian 
Harbor Road, Lot 8 Indian Bay Village, St. George Island, Franklin County, Florida. Request 
submitted by Garlick Environmental, agent for Walter Sears, applicant.  Advisory Board 
Recommended Approval.  

BOARD ACTION: Approval, Table, or Deny 

C. Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a single-family dwelling 13.4 feet into 
the front 25-foot setback off Highway C30 and a 3 feet variance into both the left and right 
10-foot side setback requirement. Property described as 1610 Highway C30, Carrabelle, 
Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Robert Mollergren & Leslie Denhard, 
applicants.   

3



Advisory Board recommended approval of Front Setback variance request contingent 
upon Demolition of Current Home/Structure.  

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

 

Advisory Board recommended denial for side setback request. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

Planning and Zoning – Cortni Bankston – Report 

A. Approval to appoint Tony Shiver as the District 1 Board Member for Planning & Zoning 
Board. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve or Deny 

Critical Shoreline Applications 

A. Consideration of a request to construct a Single Family Private Dock located at 1545 Alligator 
Drive, Lot 3, Block R, Peninsular Point, Unit 5,  Alligator Point, Franklin County, Florida. The 
applicant has both State and Federal Permits. The dock will be 229’ x 4’ with a 6’ x 20’ 
terminal platform and a 12’ x 20’ proposed boatlift.  Request submitted by Robert Kirby, 
applicant. (House Under Construction- #29097)  P&Z Board Recommended Approval 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

B. Consideration of a request to construct a Roof over an existing Boatlift and Redesign of 
existing Terminus located at 71 Fiesta Drive, Unit 1, Lot 80 Holiday Beach, Alligator Point, 
Franklin County, Florida. The applicant has State and Federal Permits. The roof will be 
29'x14' and the redesigned terminus will be 20'x8'. Request submitted by Better Built Docks, 
agent for Travis Fink, applicant. P&Z Board Recommended Approval 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

C. Consideration of a request to construct an additional 280 sq foot dock and 312 sq foot 
covered boat lift to an an existing dock located at 323 East Sawyer Street, Unit 5, Block 81, Lot 
9, Eastpoint, Franklin County, Florida. The applicant has State and Federal Permits. Request 
submitted by Richard DeLarber, applicant. P&Z Board Recommended Approval. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

Final Plat Applications 

A. Consideration of a request for Final Plat Approval of a 21 acres of land lying in Sections 25 
and 35, Township 7 South, Range 5 West, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. The 
subdivision will be named "St George Bay" and will consist of 16 Lots over 1 acre each. 
Request submitted by Elaine Boone, agent for Ed Simmons, applicant. P&Z Board 
Recommended Approval Contingent Upon required permits for Final Plat. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

Commercial Site Plan Applications 

A. Consideration of a request for Commerical Site Plan Review of a 1,500 square feet 
Convenience Store with a Deli and Drive Through located at 101 West Pine Ave, Unit 1, Block 
2 west, Lots 17 and 18, St. George Island, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Jim 
Waddell, agent for Charles Robert Shiver and Donna Kay Barber, Applicants. P&Z Board 
Recommended Approval Contingent upon flood review and permits. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

Re-Zoning & Land Use Change Applications 

4



A. Consideration of a request for a Public Hearing to change a triangular parcel for a Re-zoning 
Change from C-1 Commercial Fishing to C-3 Commercial Recreation. Property described as 
336 Patton Drive, Franklin County, Florida.  Request submitted by Marsha Watson, agent for 
MMSW Holdings, LLC, applicant. P&Z Board Recommended Approval for Public Hearing. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

B. Consideration of a request for a Public Hearing to change a 200' x 300' parcel for a Land Use 
Change from Residential to Commercial and a Public Hearing to Re-zone from R-4 Single 
Family Home Industry to C-4 Mixed Use Residential. Property described as 31865 Highway 
98 West,  Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Blakey's Beach LLC, 
applicant. P&Z Board Motioned without a recommendation to present request for 
Public Hearing before Board of County Commissioners. 

-Applicant has requested to revise request for re-zoning from R-4 Single Family Home 
Industry to C-2 Commercial Business. Email request attached 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

Special Exception Application 

A. Consideration of a request for Special Exception in the C1 Commercial Fishing District to 
construct a  27'x 40' Water Dependent Tourist Commercial Facility (Kayak Rental Facility) 
located at 444 Highway 98, 150 feet facing Highway 98, Apalachicola, Franklin County, 
Florida. Request submitted by Barbara Mathis, applicant. P&Z Board recommended 
approval of the Special Exception. 

***Staff recommends deferring this request until the Building Department and the 
Floodplain Administrator has an opportunity to discuss the building/shed currently on 
the property with no record of a permit. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny 

RFP / RFQ / Bids Opening 

A. The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners is seeking civil engineering services 
relating to the construction engineering and inspection (CEI) of the multi-use trail and bike 
path on the CR 370 Alligator Point Multi-Use Path Project. The scope of this project will 
include the construction of a 10’ multi-use path from George Vause Road eastward for 
approximately 1 mile to Gulf Shore Boulevard on Alligator Point, FL as identified in the 
County’s Local Agency Participation contract with the Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT). Consideration will be given to only those firms that are qualified pursuant to law and 
that have been prequalified by FDOT to perform the indicated types of work. 

Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator – Erin Griffith – Report 

A. Action Items 

1. Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project 

Walter Marine of Orange Beach Alabama was the top ranked and only proposer for the Buddy 
Ward Artificial Reef Project.  The ranking committee recommends the Board enter into a 
contract with Walter Marine as Walter Marine meets all contractor requirements of the RFP.  
The grant award requires the deployment of at least 25 concrete prefabricated reef modules 
to construct three reef complexes in the Buddy Ward permit site located approximately 7.5 
nautical miles off Bob Sikes Cut.  Walter Marine’s proposal will deploy 30 reef modules for the 
contract price of $70,000.  The deployment is to occur prior to August 1, 2021 and upon 
deployment, the GPS coordinates will be posted online via the Apalachicola Artificial Reef 
Association’s website: www.apalachicolareef.org.  

5



Board action to authorize the chairman’s signature on the attached contract with Walter 
Marine for the Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project. 

2. Budget Resolution Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project  

Pursuant to FS 129.06, the attached budget resolution is needed to incorporate the 
unanticipated revenues from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
$60,000 state grant and the $10,000 contribution from the Apalachicola Artificial Reef 
Association into the 2020/2021 county budget.  The corresponding $70,000 expenditure line 
item will be 001.20.572.3401 titled Other Contract Services, Buddy Ward Reef Project. 

Board action to adopt the attached resolution to incorporate the unanticipated grant revenues 
into the county budget to fund the artificial reef project.   

3. CARES Act Update, State Shared Gas Tax Revenues 

The Florida Department of Revenue distributes state shared revenue proceeds several 
months after the collection period.  The final state shared gas tax revenues were not received 
until December.  As the COVID pandemic shifted into crisis mode in late March of 2020 - the 
state shared gas tax revenue estimates used in the budget process for 19/20 as released by 
the State of Florida were short by $162,029.33.  As the CARES funds can be used to offset 
losses in revenue, it is requested that the BOCC authorize booking $162,029.33 of CARES 
funds in the Road and Bridge Fund to stabilize the Road Department budget which is funded 
primarily by gas taxes.  Should the BOCC approve, this will leave approximately $66,763.78 
remaining from the 1st CARES allocation.  The CARES cost tracking workbook with the 
proposed entry is attached and the impacted shared revenues are listed in the attached table. 

Board action to authorize booking Cares Revenues in the Road and Bridge Fund to offset losses 
in State Shared Gas Tax Revenue Proceeds. 

4. State Attorney Information Technology Line Item 

Franklin County received a request from Mary Dean Barwick the Executive Director of the 
State Attorney’s Office to authorize a line-item budget amendment whereas the $6,500 
budgeted in the State Attorney’s information technology contractual services budget to be 
used for the funding of a shared information technology position.  There will be no change in 
total budget for the State Attorney’s Office. 

Board action to authorize the line-item budget amendment and authorize the attached memo 
be sent back to Ms. Barwick to confirm the change. 

5. Sheriff’s Department E911 Grants 

a. At the March 16th Commission Meeting, the Board authorized signing the RapidDeploy 
grant application. Attached to this report is the grant agreement which was sent to the county 
from the Department of Management Services.  The $63,960 grant is part of the tri-county 
rural grant for five years of software licensing that will interface the newly updated mapping 
data with the E911 system at the Sheriff’s Department.  The RapidDeploy system combines 
mapping and data analytics with cloud-based software.  This grant is funding the replacement 
of the existing GEOCOMM software which is out of date.  

Board action to authorize the Chairman to sign the attached grant agreement. 

b. County Attorney Michael Shuler reviewed the MOU between the twelve region counties 
relative to the $422,816 Region 1 GIS Mapping Project NG-911 Grant and the Chairman 
signed the attached Regional MOU on April 13th.  The regional MOU was a necessary 
cornerstone of the regional grant application.  As this is a twelve-county project, all counties 
will be signing the MOU, applications, and vendor contracts to comprise one regional 
project.  The five-year grant will interface mapping data within the region and will leverage 

6



technology to enhance response time, provide additional mapping data and services to 
process incoming 911 calls. Once the application is signed, a grant agreement will follow 
shortly after along with the vendor contract and sole source provider letter.   

Board action to authorize the chairman’s signature on the attached grant application for the 
Twelve County Region 1 GIS E911 Mapping Grant.  

B. Informational Item 

1. Tap Fee SGI Bathroom Project 

For the Board record, included on the check for Water Management Services is the $13,745 
tap fee as funded by the TDC for the new SGI Bathroom Project.  The tap fee was not a part of 
the construction bid and the responsibility of the owner.  The tap fee will be included in the 
total cost of the project. 

County Coordinator – Michael Morón – Report 

A. Action Items 

1. Grammercy Correction:  At your March 16, 2021 regular meeting Commissioner Ward 
asked staff to investigate a possible scrivener’s error on the County’s map located at the 
corner of Highway 98 and Highway 65 near Gramercy Plantation.  Mr. Mark Curenton, County 
Planner, provided a series of maps and information (attached) regarding the property in 
question.  Based on the information provided, the Board may decide there was a scrivener’s 
error and Mr. Curenton will make the necessary zoning change, however, if the Board decides 
no error was made then the zoning will remain as is.  Board action to determine if a scrivener’s 
error was made based on the information provided.  

2. ARPC Code Enforcement Agreement:  Previously the Board requested Apalachee Regional 
Planning Council to conduct workshops throughout the County to hear from residents on 
code enforcement for unincorporated Franklin County.  At your last meeting, Ms. Caroline 
Smith of ARPC reviewed a proposal with the Board to provide the requested service.  
Included in my report, is an agreement for the Chairman’s signature to authorize ARPC to 
conduct the workshops.  This agreement has been reviewed by Attorney Shuler.  Board action 
to authorize the Chairman to sign the ARPC agreement to conduct workshops to hear from 
residents on code enforcement.  

3. Airport Fuel Farm Location:  John Collins of AVCON (Airport Engineers) presented three 
different locations for a new Airport fuel farm at your last meeting.  After the presentation, 
the Board decided to schedule a workshop to discuss the different locations in more detail.  
After the meeting, Mr. Alan Pierce realized that he used the recently constructed FDOT 
funded Airport access road as the required match for the TRIUMPH grant application to fund 
the new fuel farm.  Mr. Pierce then contacted Mr. Collins and they both agreed that the only 
location to consider building the new fuel farm is what is referred to as Alternate Site 2 (West 
Apron) on the attached map titled Updated Fuel Farm Alternative Locations, 4-2-2021. With 
that information, there was no need for the scheduled April 14th workshop to discuss all 
three locations, therefore it was cancelled.  If there are no additional questions or comments 
on this matter, the Board can authorize proceeding with that location today.  Board action to 
authorize the construction of the new Airport fuel farm at Alternate Site 2 (West Apron).  

4. New EOC Location:  A couple of years ago the Board requested, as a legislative 
appropriation, funds to design and construct a new Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  The 
County received funds from the State to design and engineer a new EOC.  After much 
discussion the Board agreed to a location on the Airport for the new EOC, however, that 
location was considered “Airport” property based on a 1947 FAA lease and recorded deed.  In 
order not to pay the Airport fair market value to use that property, FAA would have to 
exclude the property from the 1947 lease and recorded deed.  AVCON tried but was 

7



unsuccessful on getting FAA to exclude this property.  So, in an attempt to avoid that issue, 
Mr. Clay Kennedy of Dewberry, Mr. John Collins and Mrs. Mary Soderstrum of AVCON, and 
county staff started a search for a parcel around the airport that would be big enough for the 
new EOC, but not part of the famous 1947 lease and recorded deed.  After many meetings and 
emails, the lot indicated by the green shade on the attached map is recommended.  This lot is 
located on the NE corner of Brownsville and Airport Road and a three acres section will be 
used to allow enough room for the EOC building, parking, stormwater, and expansion.  Now, 
this lot is not without its own challenges, as it was mistakenly included and recorded on the 
deed as part of the 1942 lease, but there is a prior deed that shows it was never part of the 
1942 lease.  AVCON is working with FAA and FDOT to remove this lot from the recorded 
deed, and even though both agencies agree that it was a mistake to include that lot, there is a 
process that will take a few months to correct the error.  Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Erin Griffith and I 
met with Attorney Shuler and explained the situation to him for his council and guidance on 
moving forward with this lot for the new EOC.  Attorney Shuler agrees that we should 
proceed with this lot and the design of the new EOC but wanted the Board to be aware that if 
we have to move the EOC from this location for any reason, there will be added expense for 
changes and re-engineering of the EOC at a new location.  So, is the Board ready to move 
forward with the designing of the new EOC at this location with all the information that has 
been presented here today?  Board discussion and direction. 

5. SGI Speed Limit Change:  At your last meeting, Chairman Jones requested, and the Board 
agreed by motion, to lower the speed limit to 25 mph on East Pine Street located in St. George 
Island’s business district. The Chairman informed me that the new speed limit should be 20 
mph (not 25 mph) and the section of West Pine Street located in the business district should 
be also be included in that speed limit change for the same reason.  Board action to reduce the 
speed limit on the sections of East Pine Street and West Pine Street that is located in St. George 
Island’s business district to 20 mph. 

6. EOC Contract:  Mrs. Pam Brownell, Emergency Management Director, requested that 
Chairman Jones sign the Federally Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement No. Z2607 for 
Hurricane Sally.  Mrs. Brownell stated that she was facing a deadline and needed the signed 
document sent to the Florida Division of Emergency Management last week.  In addition, Mrs. 
Erin Griffith completed the associated FDEM Risk Assessment Questionnaire.  Board action to 
ratify the Chairman’s signature on the Hurricane Sally Federally Funded Subaward and Grant 
Agreement. 

7. TDC Tax Increase:  At your June 16, 2020 meeting the Board discussed increasing the 
tourist development tax from 2% to 3% and ended the discussion with a motion to schedule a 
public hearing to increase the tax.  Later on, during that same meeting, the Board also motion 
to schedule a workshop with the TDC to discuss how the additional funds would be spent.  
That workshop was postponed and never rescheduled. The public hearing was never 
advertised or scheduled.  Is the Board ready to schedule the public hearing, and rather than 
having a separate workshop, have a representative from TDC appear at the public hearing 
and discuss possible future projects?  Board discussion and direction.  

8. Congressman Dunn’s Request: About two weeks ago, Congressman Dunn office sent a 
request for Congressionally Directed Community Project Funding with an April 19, 2021 
submission deadline.  As time was an issue, I asked Mrs. Traci Buzbee to assist the County 
with the applications.  Since this information was already available, the County submitted 
applications for the construction of a new EOC and additional funding for Fort Coombs 
Armory fire sprinkler system.  Each application required a letter of support signed by the 
Chairman.  Board action to ratify the Chairman’s signature on the letters of support for both 
applications. 

8



9. Abercrombie Boat Ramp Security Cameras:  A few years ago, the Board approved video 
security systems for a number of locations, Abercrombie boat ramp being one of those 
locations.    There were a few hurdles to overcome at the boat ramp, power and a solution for 
accessing the video due to communication access restrictions.  Power at the boat ramp has 
been available, however we had to make other concessions as it relates to the communication 
issue.  Of all the companies that I have asked for proposals, I recommend the proposal from 
Inspired Technology.  Without revealing too much information, they have the best 
workaround for accessing the recorded video from the cameras.  The total amount of this 
proposal is $9,497.00.  Board action to accept the $9,497.00 quote from Inspired Technology 
for the installation of a CCTV camera system at Abercrombie boat ramp. 

10. Prison Closing Letter to Senate: Earlier in the meeting the Board heard from Warden 
Conner regarding inmate labor and prison closings.  Prior to last week’s message and 
information Warden Conner may have provided this morning, the State Legislature was 
considering closing four prisons. During the time when this was a probability, there was a call 
to action to send the Florida Senate President and the Speaker of the House a letter asking 
that the Franklin County Correctional Institute would not be included on the list of possible 
prisons closures.  Chairman Jones signed the letter, (attached) and it was immediately sent to 
the Senate President and Speaker of the House.  Board action to ratify the Chairman’s 
signature on the letter. 

B. Information Items 

1. Ethics Class:  I am currently working with Ms. Becky Berentsen of the Florida Association of 
Counties on registering each of you for an ethics class video that will be shown here in your 
commission meeting room.  I need you to check your schedule and let me now what Saturday 
in May you are available to view the ethics class video. 

2. CareerSource Hurricane Michael Program: I was informed by Mrs. Kim Bodine of 
CareerSource Gulf Coast that the Hurricane Michael Grant will close on April 30th.  That will 
be the last day of work for the employees working on this grant.  CareerSource was unable to 
secure any additional funds for this program.  

3. School Board Event:  The Franklin County School District will have a Youth Mental Health 
Workshop here in your meeting room at 6pm (ET) this evening.  Similar workshops will be 
held in Eastpoint and Carrabelle.  The workshop will be hybrid format, in-house and virtual.  

4. Ribbon Cutting Ceremony:  As a reminder, the ribbon cutting ceremony for the new St. 
George Island public bathrooms will be today at 2:00 p.m. (ET). 

County Attorney – Michael Shuler – Report 

A. Report 

Commissioners’ Comments 

Adjournment 

Any person who wishes to appeal a decision made by the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners, with respect to 
any matter considered at the meeting, must have a record of the proceedings.  He or she may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made 

9



File Attachments for Item:

A. April 6, 2021 Regular Meeting

10

A.



 
FRANKLIN	COUNTY	BOARD	OF	COUNTY	COMMISSIONERS	

REGULAR	MEETING	
COURTHOUSE	ANNEX,	COMMISSION	MEETING	ROOM	

APRIL	6,	2021	
9:00	AM	
MINUTES	

	
Commissioners	Present:		Ricky	Jones‐Chairman,	Bert	Boldt,	II‐Vice‐Chairman,	Noah	Lockley,	Joseph	
Parrish,	Jessica	V.	Ward	

Others	Present:		Michele	Maxwell‐Clerk	of	Court,	Michael	Shuler‐County	Attorney,	Michael	Moron—
County	Coordinator,	Jessica	Gay‐Deputy	Clerk	to	the	Board 

Call	to	Order	

Chairman Jones called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Prayer	and	Pledge 

Chairman Jones acknowledged the passing of Izzy Mattocks on April 1, 2021 and offered up prayers for her 
family and friends.  

Chairman Jones led the Board in prayer followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Approval	of	Minutes 

A. March 16, 2021 Regular Meeting 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Boldt,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward,	and	by	a	unanimous	vote	of	
the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	approve	the	minutes	from	the	meeting	held	on	March	16,	2021.	
Motion	carried	4‐0.	

Chairman Jones made note that the vaccination pod was being run at the Eastpoint Church of God and not 
the Eastpoint Assembly of God as stated in previous meetings.  

Payment	of	County	Bills	

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward,	and	by	a	unanimous	vote	
of	the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	approve	payment	of	County	Bills.	Motion	carried	4‐0.	

Public	Comments 

Mr. David Covington homeowner at 665 E Gulf Beach Drive spoke to the Board about his concerns about the 
mobile vendors and the peddler’s licenses.  

Mr. Gordon Hunter homeowner at 2316 Tallyho said he would defer his comments until the AVCON 
discussion. 

Property	Appraiser	‐‐	Rhonda	Skipper	‐‐	Request	

A. Mrs. Skipper is requesting Board approval to purchase a new vehicle. 

Mrs. Skipper was not present at the time her item came up so the Board moved on. 

Department	Directors	Report 

Superintendent	of	Public	Works	–	Howard	Nabors 

	

	

	

11

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 2 of 16 

 
	

A. Informational	Item 

1.  Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District Report (agenda packet). 

Chairman Jones would like the ditches cleared on Cook Street on St. George Island. 

Commissioner Boldt noted there is a speed limit sign near Cora Road that needs to be replaced.  

Chairman Jones said all of the business district on St George Island was 25 mph except near 
Pine Drive. Attorney Shuler said a vote was needed in order to update the speed limit. On	a	
motion	by	Commissioner	Ward,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Boldt,	an	by	a	unanimous	
vote	of	the	Board	present	 it	was	agreed	to	update	the	speed	 limit	near	Pine	Drive	to	
reflect	25	mph	to	coincide	with	the	rest	of	the	business	district.	Motion	carried	4‐0.	

Mr. Nabors gave an update to the Board on the lighting on Hwy 98 from Red’s Station to Burger 
King, and said he was waiting on a quote from Duke Energy. Chairman Jones said he has Duke 
Energy working on a quote for lighting on Hwy 98 in Eastpoint. 

Chairman Jones moved back to the Property Appraiser’s request.  

Mrs. Skipper presented a request to purchase a new vehicle for the Property Appraiser’s office 
noting the vehicle was made for work and not luxury. The total purchase price was $30,247. 
Mrs. Skipper noted that FEMA will not reimburse mileage when a personal vehicle is used. 

On	 a	 motion	 by	 Commissioner	Ward,	 seconded	 by	 Commissioner	 Boldt,	 and	 by	 a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	approve	the	purchase	of	a	new	
vehicle	for	the	Property	Appraiser’s	office	for	$30,247.	Motion	carried	4‐0.	

Solid	Waste	Director	–	Fonda	Davis 

A. Action	Item	 

1. In the past, there has been an Animal Control Appeal Board to handle any appeals that would 
need to be heard. At this time the board has lost several members. I’m asking the board to 
appoint new members to serve on this board. 

Mr. Davis recommended that the following members of the community be appointed to the 
Animal Control Appeal Board.  

Bud Hayes, John Solomon, Dr. Hobson Fulmer, David Walker, Brett Mabry 

On	 a	motion	 by	 Commissioner	 Parrish,	 seconded	 by	 Commissioner	 Boldt,	 and	 by	 a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	appoint	Bud	Hayes,	John	Solomon,	
Dr.	Hobson	 Fulmer,	David	Walker	 and	Brett	Mabry	 to	 serve	 on	 the	Animal	 Control	
Appeal	Board.	Motion	carried	4‐0.	

B. Informational	Item 

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup & Recycle Material Hauled Report (agenda packet). 

Mr. Davis said his department had been working to install signs purchased through TDC funds 
and making improvements to the Eastpoint basketball court.  

 

 

 

 

 

12

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 3 of 16 

 
 

 

Chairman Jones requested Mr. Moron’s informational item # 1 be brought up at this time.  
Chairman Jones announced the details for the ceremony.  

2. SGI Bathroom Ribbon Cutting Ceremony:  As a reminder, the ribbon cutting ceremony for 
the new St. George Island bathrooms is scheduled for Tuesday, April 20, 2021 at 2 p.m. (ET). 

Chairman Jones noted that the basketball goals on St. George Island need to be replaced. Mr. 
Davis said they have ordered replacements for St. George Island and Eastpoint. Commissioner 
Ward thanked Mr. Davis for revamping the Eastpoint basketball court.  

	

Emergency	Management	Director	–	Pam	Brownell	

Mrs. Brownell and Mrs. Daniels were unable to attend. However, Mrs. Brownell did not request the Board 
defer the opening of the bid packages.  

Attorney Shuler informed the Board that the Clerk’s office received a bid by mail that was not marked and 
inadvertently opened. Attorney Shuler directed the Clerk’s office to reseal the envelope. The information was 
not removed from the envelope or read by the Clerk’s office.  

Mr. Moron stated for the record that the selection and review committee consisted of Tracy Buzbee, Jennifer 
Daniels, and Pam Brownell. 

 

A. Action	Item 

1. Request the opening of the Hurricane Loss Mitigation Program Bid packets and approval of 
the selection committee of EOC Staff and the Management Experts Staff.  We will come back to 
the Board with the Bidder picked. 

Mr. Pierce and Mr. Moron opened the bid packages as follows: 

1. Florida Retrofits Inc. from Palm Bay Florida 

Attorney Shuler stated for the record that this is the packet inadvertently opened by the 
Clerk’s office. This packet did not include a summary. 

2. Hydra Engineering and Construction from Crawfordville Florida 

On	 a	 motion	 by	 Commissioner	Ward,	 seconded	 by	 Commissioner	 Boldt,	 and	 by	 a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	the	Board	directed	the	Hurricane	Loss	Mitigation	
Program	Bid	packets	be	turned	over	to	the	review	committee	for	a	recommendation.	
Motion	carried	5‐0.	

 

B. Bid	Opening  

1. Notice is hereby given that the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners invites 
qualified firms to submit a bid for professional contractor services for the Hurricane Loss 
Mitigation Program to complete wind retrofits on homes located within Franklin County. 

 

	

	

	

13

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 4 of 16 

 
C. Informational	Items 

1. EOC Staff and CERT Volunteers will be assisting Weems Hospital and Florida Department of 
Health Franklin at the COVID 19 Vaccine POD at Eastpoint Assembly of God Church on 
04/06/21. 

2. EOC Staff and CERT Volunteers assisted the Florida Department of Health Franklin at the 
COVID 19 Vaccine POD at Carrabelle Christian Center on 03/25/21. 

3. EOC Staff virtually attended the FL-600 class on 03/30 and 03/31/21. 

4. EOC is hosting a G-300 Class on 04/05-04/07/21. 

5. EOC Staff have also assembled and distributed approximately 3600 COVID Care Bags to 
members of the vulnerable population throughout Franklin County.  We will continue to 
assemble and distribute to vulnerable population as long as supply last. 

6. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with 
FDEM and FEMA.  Franklin County has two projects for Hurricane Sally both projects have had 
their DDD and Cost and Scope Signed off on.  We have submitted the Project for CAT B 
Reimbursement.  North Bayshore project has also been submitted. 

7. IPAW/WEA/EAS System test will be completed by 03/31/21. 

8. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth 
mask throughout our community.  We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of 
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor 
Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents.  We will continue this 
effort as long as supplies are available.  

9. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus.  This includes 
hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, and EMS, as 
needed.  We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via 
Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

10. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, 
etc. regarding COVID 19.  We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency 
and SitReps. 

Commissioner Boldt passed on a recommendation from Dr. Conrad that the Board considers 
passing an ordinance to allow the hospital to remain open during a state of emergency. 
Commissioner Lockley said the State mandates when the hospital must close during storms 
based on categories. Chairman Jones said the problem with leaving the hospital open may be 
having staff willing to stay. Mr. Pierce noted that the hospital building is not up to hurricane 
standards.  

Extension	Office	Director	–	Erik	Lovestrand 

A. Informational	Items 

General Extension Activities: 

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of soil report 
interpretation, live oak health in Carrabelle, plant identification, and more. 

Sea Grant Extension: 

2. Extension Director assisted UF’s molluscan shellfish specialist during the bi-monthly field 
work on oyster aquaculture leases.  Four cooperating growers are participating in a study to 
compare growth and survival of triploid oysters from two different parental lines (Louisiana 

14

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 5 of 16 

 
and Florida Broodstock).  Temperature loggers have also been placed in growing bags to assess 
potential stressors that may be correlated with mortality events. 

3. Extension Director participated in the ACF Stakeholders Governing Board annual meeting, 
conducted virtually this year. 

4-H Youth Development: 

4. Archery equipment was purchased for eight 4-H youth with donations from local citizens.  
The shooting sports club will be meeting for the first time on Saturday April 17th and 
encourage youth from the community to come.  They will be meeting in Carrabelle at 2:00 p.m.  
Call Michelle Gray at 850-210-3277 to pre-register so numbers can be managed according to 
4-H Covid protocol. 

Family and Consumer Sciences: 

5. Family Nutrition Program budget planning for the next fiscal year is being underway (grant 
funded). 

Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 

6. The Spring Master Gardener class in Franklin County will begin April 7 and occur each 
Wednesday for 13 weeks. 

Chairman Jones announced the shooting sports club event coming up on April 17th and asked 
the public to contact Ms. Gray to pre-register.  

Library	Director	–	Whitney	Roundtree 

A. Informational	Items 

1. Thank you to the Friends of the Franklin County Library for their work on the grounds at the 
Carrabelle facility. The FOL supplied the funds and volunteers to renew the rock and bark and 
to add a few new plants to the landscaping. I have received many compliments regarding the 
project from members of the community. 

 

2. The Panhandle Library Access Network has initiated a new advocacy effort, entitled My 
Florida Library. Post cards are available at both branch locations, highlighting various services 
libraries provide their communities that can be sent to legislators and local officials. To save 
our patrons and supporters from paying postage, FCPL will be collecting the completed 
postcards and forwarding them to legislators in large envelopes.  

 

3. Representatives from Rebuild Florida, a housing repair and replacement program for 
Hurricane Michael, will be at the Franklin County Public Libraries on Wednesdays from 9:30  

 

AM-4:30 PM. They will alternate locations and will be at the Eastpoint branch April 7th and 
21st and at the Carrabelle branch April 14th and April 28th. 

4. Upcoming Events: 

 

Eastpoint Branch:  

        4/6- Diabetes Awareness Class at 10:00 AM 

        4/6- Book Chat at 1:30 PM 

        4/7- Rebuild Florida from 9:30 AM-4:30 PM 

15

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 6 of 16 

 
        4/8- Anime Club at 4:00 PM 

        4/13- Story Time at 10:30 AM 

        4/21- Rebuild Florida from 9:30 AM-4:30 PM 

        4/21- Writer’s Forum 1:00 

Carrabelle Branch: 

        4/9- Book Chat at 1:30 PM 

        4/10- Story Time at 11:00 AM 

        4/13- Anime Club at 4:00 PM 

        4/14- Rebuild Florida from 9:30 AM-4:30 PM 

        4/15- Makerspace at 4:00 PM 

        4/28- Rebuild Florida from 9:30 AM-4:30 PM 

RFP	/	RFQ	/	Bids	Opening 

A. Notice is hereby given that Franklin County, Florida (the “County”) will accept sealed proposals 
until 4:00 PM (Eastern Time), on the 5th day of April, 2021, for the Franklin County, Florida, 
Buddy Ward 2020-2021 Artificial Reef Project.  
 

Attorney Shuler noted the Clerk’s office received a bid by mail that was not marked and inadvertently opened 
it. Attorney Shuler directed the Clerk’s office to reseal the envelope. The information was not removed from 
the envelope or read by the Clerk’s office.  
	

Item	moved	from	Fiscal	Manager/Grants	Coordinator	–	Erin	Griffith	–	Report	

A. Action	Items 

1. RFP Proposals for Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project 

Proposals were due yesterday for the Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project and today we will 
open the responses.  The project consists of the construction and deployment of at least 25 
concrete prefabricated reef modules to construct three reef complexes in the Buddy Ward 
permit site located approximately 7.5 nautical miles off Bob Sikes Cut.  Once the proposals 
are opened, the proposals will go to a review committee of which we suggest having two 
members of the Apalachicola Artificial Reef Association (as they are a contributing 
stakeholder for this project) and one member the FWC Artificial Reef Program.  From AARA 
I would like to recommend Grayson Shepard and Bill Mudd and from FWC, Christine Kittle, 
a fisheries biologist with the program.  Once the proposals are turned over to the 
committee, a cone of silence between the members of the review committee will be in place 
until reviewers return their completed score sheets to me before Friday, April 9th for the 
ranking to be compiled.  If there is a consensus amongst the rankings, the committee and 
county staff will proceed with negotiations with the top ranked proposer and bring to the 
Board a contract for approval and ratification at your next meeting.   

Mr. Pierce and Mr. Moron opened the bid package as follows: 

1. Walter Marine from Orange Beach, Alabama 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward,	and	by	unanimous	vote	of	
the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	appoint	Bill	Mudd,	Grayson	Shepard,	and	Christine	Kittle	to	the	
RFP	Review	Committee.	Motion	carried	5‐0.	

16

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 7 of 16 

 
 

TDC	Administrator	–	John	Solomon	–	Report 

A. Informational	Item 

1. The TDC Collections for the month of January 2021 are $115,730.11, compared to January 
2020 which was $54,422.25 this is an increase of $61,307.86 a 112.65% increase over the 
previous year. January 2020 was the previous highest ever collected in the month of January, 
this is the largest 1 month increase ever in any month. 

Mr. Solomon thanked Mr. Davis and the Parks and Recreational Department for installation of 
the MOGY mat at Carrabelle Beach.  

Attorney Shuler said the County has a cannon on loan to the Apalachicola Maritime Museum 
and asked the County to relocate the cannon to the new maritime museum. Attorney Shuler 
said it was placed on loan in 2013 single flair cannon to Apalachicola Maritime Museum which 
has been closed since Hurricane Michael. Attorney Shuler said the lease agreement does 
provide for the Board to recall. Attorney Shuler or Mr. Moron can send a letter requesting the 
cannon be relocated. 

On	 a	motion	 by	 Commissioner	 Parrish,	 seconded	 by	 Commissioner	 Boldt,	 and	 by	 a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	authorize	Attorney	Shuler	to	send	
a	letter	to	the	Apalachicola	Maritime	Museum	requesting	the	cannon	be	returned	to	the	
County.	Motion	carried	5‐0.	

Commissioner Boldt commended Mr. Solomon on the mobile app noting the recent 
advertisement in the newspaper.  

Chairman Jones called by a recess at 9:49 am and resumed the meeting at 10:00 am. 

ARPC	–	Caroline	Smith	–	Presentation 

A. Ms. Caroline Smith, Apalachee Regional Planning Council, will review a draft proposal for Code 
Enforcement Public Workshops in Franklin County.  At the end of the presentation she will ask 
for any questions or comments from the Board.   

Ms. Smith said the proposal included holding a workshop series to share best practices in similar 
communities and take public comment. The information will be compiled in a summary report and 
presented to the Board.  Ms. Smith estimates this to be a summertime project starting around the 
1st of June and completing in September. The quote for $6,000 includes staff salaries and travel 
expenses. The workshops will give an overview of how the county is feeling about code 
enforcement.  

Commissioner Lockley asked if there will be information on how other counties are handling code 
enforcement. Ms. Smith said that is something they could research and that they did include research time in 
the estimate.  

Chairman Jones asked if the workshops will be held in person or by Zoom. Mr. Moron said they could use the 
County’s Zoom account for the workshops. Chairman Jones said he likes the live option also because some 
may not have the capability to attend virtually. Commissioner Parrish asked how they will be advertised. Mr. 
Moron said they will be advertised on the County’s website, Oyster Radio, newspaper, and social media.  

Commissioner Parrish said he thought each commissioner should attend the meetings in their district to get 
a good perspective of how their constituents feel about code enforcement. Commissioner Lockley said he 
believes code enforcement will be a good thing. Commissioner Ward feels that this helps us coordinate data 
from other communities and will help to avoid commissioners overstepping. Chairman Jones said codes are 
for safety and that he believes there will be a lot of people ready to speak on this issue. Commissioner Boldt  

17

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 8 of 16 

 
said he would like for them to share data from similar counties and communities with us as well as guidelines 
and a recipe for how to do it.  

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Lockley,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Boldt,	and	by	a	unanimous	vote	
of	 the	Board	 present,	 it	was	 agreed	 to	 approve	 the	 proposal	 from	Apalachee	Regional	 Planning	
Council	for	the	Code	Enforcement	Public	Workshops.	Motion	carried	5‐0.	

	

AVCON	‐‐	John	Collins	‐‐	Update 

A. Mr. Collins present the updated set of fuel farm alternative locations exhibits and cost 
estimates.  He will review the option recommended by the Airport Manager, Centric staff and 
County staff for additional comments or questions from the Board. 

Mr. Collins presented three different locations for the fuel farm, asking for the Board’s input. Mr. Collins said 
the Triumph board views the fuel farm as an important asset because it will facilitate 24-hour access to fuel 
in the event of a hurricane. Mr. Collins said the preferred alternative is option 1C because it will allow us to 
stay within budget. Mr. Pierce urged the Board to stay within the budget and not go above the funds that are 
allotted. He said it may be possible to acquire the additional funds from Triumph by amending the application 
but he would not advise it. Commissioner Parrish said he preferred option 1A. The Board and Mr. Collins 
discussed the pros and cons of the different options as well as the costs. 

Mr. Ted Mosteller spoke to the Board in opposition of the proposed locations of the fuel farm alternative 
project.  

Mr. Gordon Hunter spoke to the Board in opposition of the proposed locations of the fuel farm alternative 
project.  

Commissioner Boldt asked if a public hearing or workshop could be held to discuss the fuel farm alternative 
project and options. 

Commissioner	Boldt	made	a	motion	to	hold	a	workshop	for	public	input	to	discuss	options	for	fuel	
farm	location.	Commissioner	Ward	seconded	the	motion	with	a	comment	on	whether	or	not	there	
were	any	deadlines	on	the	use	of	the	funds	from	Triumph.	The Board discussed the process and how far 
out the project will be delayed. The Board scheduled the workshop for Wednesday, April 14th at 6:00 p.m. 

Motion	carried	4‐1,	Lockley	opposed.	

Chairman Jones requested a meeting with the airport administration to get a status on addressing the foliage 
issue. 

Mr. Moron inquired on the status of the third runway. Mr. Collins said he will have to look into it. He said the 
inspector made a recommendation it be classified as a utility runway. Mr. Collins noted that the difference in 
the classifications is how much we have to clear around the runways and not the actual use.  

Commissioner Boldt said whenever you classify a runway and you downgrade it you are impairing the future 
of the airport. He said we need to look at the vision of Franklin County and how we are growing.  

The meeting recessed at 11:29 a.m.  

The meeting reconvened at 11:38 a.m. 

Chris	Langston	‐‐	Request	

A. Mr. Chris Langston would the Board to support, by a letter of support, Liberty County's efforts 
in obtaining state-owned property located in Tate's Hell State Forest, specifically the southeast 
corner, for the mining of fossilized shell to assist in the restoration of oyster reef complexes in 
Apalachicola Bay.  

 

18

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 9 of 16 

 
Commissioner	Lockley	made	a	motion,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward	to	approve	writing	a	letter	
to	support	Liberty	County’s	efforts	 in	obtaining	state‐owned	property	 located	 in	Tate's	Hell	State	
Forest,	specifically	the	southeast	corner,	for	the	mining	of	fossilized	shell	to	assist	in	the	restoration	
of	oyster	reef	complexes	in	Apalachicola	Bay	with	a	provision	that	the	County	will	not	be	a	part	of	
requesting	 funds	 to	support	 the	project	and	 that	 the	project	will	not	work	against	 the	science	 to	
restore	the	bay.	

Motion	carried	3‐2,	Chairman	Jones	and	Commissioner	Parrish	opposed.	

 

ARPC	‐‐	Josh	Adams	‐‐	Update	

A. Mr. Adams would like the Board to adopt the Apalachee Regional Resilience Collaborative.  He 
will have a short presentation for the Board. 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Ward,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Lockley,	and	by	a	unanimous	vote	
of	the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	adopt	the	Apalachee	Regional	Resilience	Collaborative.	Motion	
carried	5‐0.	

	

Fiscal	Manager/Grants	Coordinator	–	Erin	Griffith	–	Report 

A. Action	Items 

1. RFP Proposals for Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project 

Proposals were due yesterday for the Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project and today we will 
open the responses.  The project consists of the construction and deployment of at least 25 
concrete prefabricated reef modules to construct three reef complexes in the Buddy Ward 
permit site located approximately 7.5 nautical miles off Bob Sikes Cut.  Once the proposals 
are opened, the proposals will go to a review committee of which we suggest having two 
members of the Apalachicola Artificial Reef Association (as they are a contributing 
stakeholder for this project) and one member the FWC Artificial Reef Program.  From AARA 
I would like to recommend Grayson Shepard and Bill Mudd and from FWC, Christine Kittle, 
a fisheries biologist with the program.  Once the proposals are turned over to the 
committee, a cone of silence between the members of the review committee will be in place 
until reviewers return their completed score sheets to me before Friday, April 9th for the 
ranking to be compiled.  If there is a consensus amongst the rankings, the committee and 
county staff will proceed with negotiations with the top ranked proposer and bring to the 
Board a contract for approval and ratification at your next meeting.   

Item	previously	addressed	under	RFP	/	RFQ	/	Bids	Opening.	

2. Establish Evaluation Committee for County-Wide Sand Dune Restoration Project and SGI 
Storm Water Improvements  

Alan and I have been working with Melissa Beaudry, Langton Consulting, to finalize the 
RFQs for the two RESTORE Projects- the County-wide Sand Dune Restoration and the St. 
George Island Stormwater Improvements.  The RFQ solicitations have been advertised in 
the Panama City News Herald, the Apalachicola Times, posted on the county website and 
posted on the governmental bid platform Demandstar.  The Board will open the RFQs at 
the May 4th meeting. 

When the RFQs are opened, the Board will need to create an Evaluation Committee to 
evaluate the responses and make a recommendation to the Board.  The Evaluation 
Committee needs to be at least 3 people, and could be myself, Alan Pierce, and Mark 
Curenton.  Upon selection of the firm, county staff will then negotiate with the firm to create 

19

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 10 of 16 

 
a budget to accomplish the Scope of Work in the RFQ.  All costs associated with this work 
will be paid by RESTORE funds. 

The goal of both projects is to develop construction plans and specifications that would be 
used in advertising for the construction of the projects.  While this first phase of the 
projects is being completed, Langton will be working with Treasury to approve 
construction funds.  It has been our experience it will take at least six months for Treasury 
to run through its MYIP amendment process. 

 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward,	and	by	a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	the	Board	appointed	Erin	Griffith,	Alan	Pierce,	
and	Mark	Curenton	to	serve	on	the	Evaluation	Committee	for	the	Countywide	Sand	
Dune	Restoration	Project	and	SGI	Storm	Water	Improvements.		Motion	carried	5‐0.	

 

3. Hurricane Michael FEMA Repairs Eastpoint Fishing Pier and C30A West Washouts 

The Eastpoint Fishing Pier Restroom was structurally sound after the storm, however, the 
damages to the walkways, ramps, rip rap, and parking area was significant.  C30West 
between Apalachicola and Indian Pass had two large washouts caused by extreme wind 
and surge during Hurricane Michael.  Both large projects are in the final phase of design 
and permitting and the next step will be to advertise for bids for the repairs.  

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Ward,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	and	by	a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	the	Board	authorized	staff	to	proceed	with	the	
advertising	 for	construction	bids	 for	 the	Eastpoint	Fishing	Pier	Repairs	and	C30A	
Washouts	Project.	Motion	carried	5‐0.	

 

4. CARES Act Expenditure Summary, Jail Coating and Sheriff’s CAD System 

Franklin County received $2,115,719 in CARES funding based upon the documented cost 
of public safety personnel during the pandemic.  To date, the county incurred over $1.6 
million dollars in direct expenditures related to COVID-19 response efforts.  Nearly half of 
these funds were provided as aid to other governmental agencies (transfers to the Cities of 
Apalachicola and Carrabelle), grants to local businesses and assistance to local food 
pantries.  The other half of these funds were used for operational expenditures relative to 
Coronavirus response including disinfectants, barriers, large scale software and computer 
upgrades to provide cloud-based access with limited interaction, and capital outlay funds 
for kiosks, message boards and digital scanners.  Of the balance available there is one 
outstanding COVID remediation request for an estimated $62,558 in antibacterial and 
antimicrobial surfacing of over 10,000 square feet of the jail.  Another item for 
consideration is to pay outright for the $192,855.54 computer animated dispatch system 
for the Sheriff’s Department in lieu of the prior approval to pursue financing for this 
software.  Should the Board proceed with the two proposed items above, this will leave 
approximately $228,793.11 in CARES funds available.  The CARES cost tracking workbook 
is attached. 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Boldt,	 seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward,	and	by	a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	the	Board	authorized	going	out	to	bid	for	the	
antibacterial	 and	 antimicrobial	 surfacing	 of	 the	 jail	 and	 the	utilization	 of	 CARES	
funds	 for	 the	 E‐Force	 Computer	 Animated	 Dispatch	 System	 in	 lieu	 of	 financing.	
Motion	carried	5‐0.	

	

20

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 11 of 16 

 
B. Informational	Items 

1. Update on Eastpoint and Two Mile Dredging Projects 

a. Alan has been in contact with various USACOE personnel for updates on the dredging 
projects.  The status is complicated because there are multiple people working on 
different parts of the projects.  Some Corps staff is working with Washington to push the 
needed Memorandum of Agreement through the Congressional Budget Office.  Other 
Corps staff is working with FDEP to finalize the Eastpoint Spoil design.  The latest variation 
to the spoil design is the creation of a vegetated fringe along the disposal field to stabilize 
the perimeter.  Because the county owns the spoil disposal area, the Corps say it is county’s 
responsibility to maintain it which entails creating and planting the vegetated fringe.  Alan 
has been in contact with Ms. Jenna Harper, ANERR, and she has tentatively agreed to use 
her staff and volunteers to plant the vegetation.  At this time Mark and Alan have talked 
about asking the county’s Soil Conservation Board, of which they both serve, for the funds 
to buy the plants that ANERR would use.   The budget that Alan and Ms. Harper have 
discussed is around $5K.   The goal would be for the county to provide ANERR with a base 
quantity of plants which they would grow out so that ANERR would produce more plants 
that they would use on projects they want to accomplish.  FWC must approve the 
vegetation plan so Alan has been working with FWC staff to develop a suitable plan. 

b. After much communication between all parties, in summary the Corps will not initiate 
dredging in the county until after the peak of the 2021 Hurricane season, which is mid-
September.  The Corps does not want to create the Eastpoint Disposal area at the start of 
hurricane season for fear the unconsolidated material will be too fluid if a hurricane, or 
even a tropical storm, were to come near Eastpoint.  The Corps does not want to repeat 
what happened in 1985, when the Eastpoint channel was dredged and then the 1985 
hurricane season came along and moved a lot of the recently dredged material right back 
into the channel.   If this were to happen, the Corps and the County would be out of luck, 
and out $5M.  The Corps is also working on the Two Mile dredging permit with FDEP. 

c. The county has received the final version of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 
from the Corps.   It is attached to this report.  Alan sent it to Mr. Shuler for his comments.   
In general, the comments Mr. Shuler and Alan provided the Corps are: 

i. There is no commencement date on the MOA.  The county does not want to provide 
funds months in advance of when the dredging occurs.  Alan has talked to the Corps 
and they think they can work the timeline so that the county would provide funds 30 
days in advance of dredging. 

ii. The MOA says the county will be obligated to pay in full the $5M of local funds 
within 30 days of signing the MOA, even though they are acknowledging dredging 
will not occur until at least September, as discussed above.   In discussions with Corps 
staff, they have told Alan that they would not expect full payment as they 
acknowledge there are two dredging projects.  The Corps staff is mulling over 
wording change.  The Corps staff seems willing to accept payment for each project as 
it occurs.  Mr. Shuler is also concerned that the MOA as written provides the Corps 
with the authority to approve a dredging budget more than the $5M.  Mr. Shuler is 
asking for the Corps to provide the county with the right to reduce the scope to stay 
within budget. 

iii. Section 7 of the Agreement says the Corps gets to keep any county funds in excess 
of what is used in the project.  The Corps staff says that is not is what is intended, as 
the Corps does return unused funds to the contributor, so the Corps is going to review 
that language. 

21

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 12 of 16 

 
iv. Section 9 of the Agreement does not include the sovereign immunity language 
established by the State of Florida.  Mr. Shuler has asked that this language be 
included in the Agreement. 

Commissioner Ward stated for the record that the County is not the one holding up 
the dredging project and we are at the mercy of the Corps. Commissioner Lockley 
echoed Commissioner Ward’s comments. Commissioner Boldt said he feels the Corps 
is holding the bay hostage in connection to the water wars. 

d. Alan has confirmed with Consortium staff that the Consortium only works on a 
reimbursement basis.   The Consortium staff thinks the county’s project should be 
awarded in the next few weeks, but since the Consortium will only reimburse the county 
for work done, it appears it will be necessary to arrange some short-term financing for the 
projects.  In the best scenario, the Corps will allow the county to provide its funds shortly 
before dredging commences.  The county would borrow the money through FAC, front it 
to the Corps, and then when the Eastpoint Channel is dredged, and the Corps confirms it 
is completed, the county would then get fully reimbursed by the Consortium.  The 
dredging project is only supposed to take 6 weeks once started, so it is not a long-term 
financing project.  The same scenario would repeat for the Two Mile Channel. 

 

County	Coordinator	–	Michael	Morón	–	Report 

A. Action	Items 

1. E911 Grant & GEOCOMM Software:  The Sheriff’s Office requested the Chairman’s signature 
on the E911 Rural Grant Application and the GEOCOMM GeoLynx software and support 
services.  Mrs. Griffith reviewed both documents and determined that both are annual 
agreements.   

On	 a	 motion	 by	 Commissioner	Ward,	 seconded	 by	 Commissioner	 Boldt,	 and	 by	 a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	the	Board	ratified	the	Chairman’s	signature	on	the	
E911	Rural	Application	and	the	GeoLynx	software	and	support	services.	Motion	carried	
5‐0.	

2. Ryan Drive: At your January 5th meeting the Board authorized Commissioner Ward to seek 
quotes and funding to perform repairs to Ryan Drive.  Quotes for the repairs are attached and 
the cost of the repairs will be paid from District Five’s paving fund and the City of Carrabelle, 
who agreed to cost share in this project.  The extensive repairs indicates that an emergency 
declaration should be part of the Board’s action in authorizing this project today.  In addition, 
if Commissioner Ward thinks it necessary, authorizing Attorney Shuler to negotiate a cost 
share agreement with the City of Carrabelle should also be considered today.   

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Ward,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Boldt,	to	authorize	the	
repairs	to	Ryan	Drive	project,	declare	it	an	emergency	project,	and	authorize	Attorney	
Shuler	to	negotiate	a	cost	share	agreement	with	the	City	of	Carrabelle	to	pay	for	half	of	
the	repair	cost.	The	total	cost	to	fully	repair	is	$90,065.	

Commissioner	Ward	amended	her	motion	to	include	the	City	of	Carrabelle	agreeing	to	
have	their	engineer	draw	a	set	of	plans	at	no	cost	to	the	County	and	paying	for	the	survey.	
Commissioner	Ward	asked	 that	Attorney	Shuler	add	 this	 language	 to	 the	agreement.	
Commissioner	Boldt	seconded	the	amended	motion.		

Commissioner Boldt commended the County and the City of Carrabelle on working together on 
this project.		

Motion	carried	5‐0.	

22

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 13 of 16 

 
 

3. SGI Project: While the SGI Landscaping Project is under construction, Commission Jones 
would like to use $1,650 of his Local Option Gas Tax (LOGT) road paving funds to add 
receptacles along the right of way of Franklin Boulevard down to the welcome sign.  	

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Lockley,	to	approve	
the	$1,650	expense	to	add	receptacles	along	the	section	of	the	right	of	way	to	be	paid	out	
of	District	1’s	paving	funds.		

Chairman Jones noted this would be installing receptacles to the new palm trees recently 
added.  

Motion	carried	5‐0.	 

4. Building Official Agreement Extension:  As Mr. Steve Paterson is working on obtaining his 
Provisional Building Official certificate, it is necessary to extend the agreement with Mr. Garry 
Millender for Building Official services for the unincorporated county area on a month-to-
month basis.  Mr. Paterson is waiting for an appointment to appear before the State Board, 
which should meet later this month, and then he should have his certificate in May. 	

On	 a	 motion	 by	 Commissioner	 Boldt,	 seconded	 by	 Commissioner	Ward,	 and	 by	 a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	the	Board	agreed	to	extend	the	agreement	with	
Mr.	Gary	Millender	for	Building	Official	services	for	the	unincorporated	county	area	on	
a	month‐to‐month	basis.		

Attorney Shuler noted the extension would be on the same terms as the previous agreement 
just on a month-to-month basis. 

Motion	carried	5‐0. 

5. Legislative Budget Reductions:  As the Board is aware, there is are proposed reductions in 
the Department of Corrections upcoming state budget that may result in the closing of at least 
4 prisons statewide. As far as I know, there is no specific prisons that have been identified, but 
there is language in the Senate Proposed Appropriations bill that outlines a process leading to 
consolidation and closure.    With the assistance of Mr. Fonda Davis, the Warden is tentatively 
scheduled to appear at your April 20th meeting, to discuss inmate labor and more than likely 
proposed prison closings.   

There is a proposed $20 million transfer from FDOT’s Small County Outreach Program (SCOP) 
and Small County Road Assistance Program (SCRAP) to a new Rural Arterial  

Program that is not as specific about who is eligible to receive funds, which would reduce the 
amount of available funding for the county. 

There are also proposed cuts to healthcare and hospitals, especial Medicaid.  Mr. David Walker, 
Weems CEO, is joining with other state agencies in their efforts to contact Senator Ausley and 
Representative Shoaf about this possible budget reduction.  

I think it is important that this Board continue to discuss all of these proposed cuts with Senator 
Ausley and Representative Shoaf.  

 
Commissioner Parrish expressed his concern about prison closures noting he had spoken with 
one of our legislative representatives voicing his concerns. Mr. Moron said we have an 
advantage of a new building and a disadvantage of shortage in staff. Commissioner Ward said 
she had spoken to one of our representatives emphasizing the prison being a large employment 
opportunity for displaced local seafood workers.  
Commissioner Boldt voiced his concern and noted the importance of the prison as an 
employment opportunity for our area. Chairman Jones encouraged the Board to continue 

23

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 14 of 16 

 
voicing their concerns to the legislative representatives. Mr. Moron also noted the possible 
budget cuts for healthcare, hospitals, and Medicaid.  

6. FAC Summer Conference: Registration is open for the Florida Association of Counties Annual 
Conference and Educational Exposition in Orange County from June 29 – July 2, 2021.  If you 
are planning on attending, please inform Mrs. Cortni Bankston as soon as possible so that she 
can secure your accommodations.   

 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Lockley,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	and	by	a	
unanimous	vote	of	the	Board	present,	it	was	agreed	to	authorize	travel	and	expenses	for	
Commissioners,	 staff,	 and	 Attorney	 Shuler	 for	 the	 FAC	 Annual	 Conference	 and	
Educational	Exposition.	Motion	carried	5‐0.	

 

B. Informational	Items 

1. Weems Audit:  At the Weems Board of Directors March 25, 2021 regular meeting, Mr. Bryan 
Hall Jr. of Carr, Riggs and Ingram reviewed the 2019 – 2020 audit with the Board.  I forwarded 
the audit to you by email that afternoon.  If you have any questions regarding the audit, let me 
know and I can setup a meeting with Mr. David Walker and/or Mr. Bryan Hall Jr. 

Commissioner Boldt spoke briefly on the audit commending hospital management and staff.   

2. SGI Bathroom Ribbon Cutting Ceremony:  As a reminder, the ribbon cutting ceremony for 
the new St. George Island bathrooms is scheduled for Tuesday, April 20, 2021 at 2p.m. (ET). 
 

3. FDOT & Causeway Update:  At a previous meeting, I was directed to contact FDOT regarding 
the condition of the northside of the causeway as it was causing distress to drivers that were 
towing or pulling a load.  Carter Johnson, FDOT’s Government Affairs Liaison, has been very 
helpful on this matter.  He is in the process of trying to add permanent repairs to the causeway 
as part of a resurfacing job set for construction late 2022/early 2023, but will try and do some 
temporary repairs in the interim.  

4. FDOT Bridge Reports: Below is a link to FDOT’s reports for the bridge over Crooked River 
on CR67 and the bridge over Womack Creek on CR67.  If you have any questions do not hesitate 
to contact Mr. Howard Nabors, Road and Bridge Superintendent.   

5. LSE COVID-19: As authorized by the Board, Chairman Jones signed COVID-19 Local State of 
Emergency Declarations for the weeks starting March 1st, 8th, 15th, 22nd & 29th.  

 

County	Attorney	–	Michael	Shuler	–	Report	

Attorney Shuler noted that he was not able to coordinate the parking ordinance hearing for today but that it 
is set for the April 20th meeting. Attorney Shuler said he is waiting for follow up from the newspaper to 
confirm the advertisement publication.  

Chairman Jones acknowledged the mobile vendor units, the designated public parking areas and the beach 
accesses as valid concerns. Chairman Jones said we have not addressed the number of parking spaces 
designated at each parking area. Chairman Jones voiced his concerns over booting cars before these areas 
were designated.  

Commissioner Boldt echoed the same thing on Alligator Point noting that we need to know how many 
parking spots we have designated. Attorney Shuler said he had concerns about jumping into booting and 
immobilization before addressing the issues with parking and non-parking access. Commissioner Boldt  

24

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 15 of 16 

 
 

asked if the parking could be included in the ordinance. Attorney Shuler noted that a hearing will be held on 
April 20th to discuss the issues associated with parking.  

Tax Collector Request to Sale County Owned Partial Lots  

Attorney Shuler presented a request from the Tax Collector to sale two partial lots in Carrabelle owned by 
the county to the adjacent property owners. Due to the value being less than $15,000, Attorney Shuler said 
there was an exception to the general rule where bidding is required. In the event there are two adjacent 
property owners, the sale would go to the highest bidder.  

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Lockley,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Boldt,	to	authorize	the	sale	of	the	
two	partial	lots	in	Carrabelle	owned	by	the	County	to	the	adjacent	property	owners.			

Chairman Jones asked if the lots were buildable. Attorney Shuler confirmed they were partial lots.  

Motion	carried	5‐0.	

Regional 911 MOU 

Attorney Shuler recommended the Board authorize Chairman Jones to sign the Regional 911 MOU. Attorney 
Shuler noted he had some concern with the withdrawal penalty and would have preferred to have a cap on 
the amount. However, Attorney Shuler believes the benefit to the county outweighs the risk. 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Parrish,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Ward,	and	by	a	unanimous	vote	
of	 the	Board	present,	 the	Board	 authorized	 the	Chairman’s	 signature	on	 the	Regional	911	MOU.	
Motion	carried	5‐0.	

Chairman Jones would like the Board to discuss creating an ordinance to allow the County to perform 
maintenance on private roads in order to ensure they are passable by emergency service vehicles. The cost 
of the improvements would be paid by the property owners. Attorney Shuler said he can present a draft 
ordinance for the Board’s discussion at a future meeting.    

Commissioner Boldt requested that Attorney Shuler provide a position paper in regards to the Franklin 
County MSBU concerns. Attorney Shuler noted the internal operations had already been reviewed by a CPA 
but he can give a memorandum on the ordinance and what is and isn’t required. 

 

Commissioners’	Comments	

Commissioner Lockley asked for an update on the road by the courthouse. Mr. Moron said there is a major 
repair needed. Commissioner Ward said the city commissioners reported at their last meeting that they are 
working to get this repaired.  

Chairman Jones asked them to make the parking lot two-way. Attorney Shuler said the state-mandated the 
street be turned into a one-way street due to ADA requirements. Attorney Shuler misunderstood what road 
they were referring to. Chairman Jones is requesting that Leslie Street be turned into a two-way.  

Attorney Shuler said official action is needed to request the city convert Leslie Street into a two way street. 

On	a	motion	by	Commissioner	Ward,	seconded	by	Commissioner	Lockley	and	Commissioner	Boldt,	
and	by	a	unanimous	vote	of	 the	Board	present,	 it	was	agreed	 to	request	 the	City	of	Apalachicola	
convert	Leslie	Street	into	a	two	way	street.	Motion	carried	5‐0.	

Commissioner Lockley a lot of discussion about the airport but he doesn’t feel like it is a benefit to our county.  
	
	
	
	
	

25

A.



 
FCBCC Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2021 
Page 16 of 16 

 
	
	
Adjournment	
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 1:16 p.m. 

 

 

        ________________________________________ 

        Ricky Jones – Chairman 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Michele Maxwell – Clerk of Courts 

 

	

	
 

26

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Warden Conner will update the Board on inmate labor and recent discussions on prison closings.

27

A.



28

A.



29

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Informational Item

1. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District (agenda packet)

30

A.



April 15, 2021
Franklin County Road Department

Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District
Detail from 3/25/2021 ‐ 4/14/2021

District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Drive3/25/2021

Loaded Trucks, Road Repair Pruett Road3/25/2021

Flagged Pruett Road3/25/2021

Shoulder Work, Cut dirt off shoulder of road, Road Repair Pruett Road3/25/2021

Litter Pickup Norvell Street3/25/2021

Litter Pickup Washington Street3/25/2021

Litter Pickup Segree Street3/25/2021

Litter Pickup Shuler Avenue3/25/2021

Litter Pickup School Road3/25/2021

Litter Pickup 3rd Street3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Hickory Dip Road3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Gilbert Street3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Barber Drive3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) State Street3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Shuler Avenue3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Drive3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Hickory Dip Road3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Gilbert Street3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Barber Drive3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) State Street3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Shuler Avenue3/25/2021

Litter Pickup 1st Street3/25/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes 3rd Street3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Twin Lakes Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes 3rd Street3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Lily Circle3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes 3rd Street3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Twin Lakes Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Lily Circle3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Twin Lakes Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Lily Circle3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Dunlap Road3/31/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes, Litter Pickup N Bay Shore Drive3/31/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes N Bay Shore Drive3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 1)3/31/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes N Bay Shore Drive3/31/2021

Driveway repair, Shoulder Work Avenue A (District 1)4/1/2021

Litter Pickup South Franklin Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Creamer Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Hatfield Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue D4/1/2021

Litter Pickup David Street4/1/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) School Road4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Twin Lakes Road4/1/2021

31

A.



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Lucius Crum Road4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Smith Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Old Ferry Dock Road4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Lucius Crum Road4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Creamer Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Begonia Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup 1st Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Creamer Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Begonia Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup 2nd Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup 1st Street4/1/2021

Sign Maintenance Franklin Blvd (State Road)4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Carroll Street4/1/2021

Litter Pickup 2nd Street4/1/2021

Flagged Washington Street4/6/2021

Cleaned ditches, Dig out ditches Washington Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Tallahassee Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Patton Drive4/6/2021

Litter Pickup David Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Varnes Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup School Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Tip Tucker Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup 2nd Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup 1st Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 1)4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Twin Lakes Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Jefferson Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Twin Lakes Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Adams Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Jefferson Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Twin Lakes Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup N Franklin Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Adams Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Jefferson Street4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Adams Street4/6/2021

Sign Maintenance Franklin Blvd (State Road)4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Old Ferry Dock Road4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Power Drive4/7/2021

Driveway repair Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021

Litter Pickup N Bay Shore Drive4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Old Ferry Dock Road4/7/2021

Sign Maintenance E Pine Avenue4/7/2021

Culvert installation Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Power Drive4/7/2021

Driveway repair, Rake Shoulders of Road Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021

Sign Maintenance Franklin Blvd (State Road)4/7/2021

Sign Maintenance E Pine Avenue4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Power Drive4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Old Ferry Dock Road4/7/2021

32

A.



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Rake Shoulders of Road, Driveway repair Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021

Rake, Driveway repair Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Old Ferry Dock Road4/7/2021

Litter Pickup N Bay Shore Drive4/7/2021

Culvert installation Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021

Litter Pickup N Bay Shore Drive4/7/2021

Litter Pickup N Bay Shore Drive4/7/2021

Graded Road(s) Carroll Street4/8/2021

Sign Maintenance E Pine Avenue4/12/2021

Solar Panel Radar Sign (Installed) South Bay Shore Drive4/12/2021

Litter Pickup South Bay Shore Drive4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Begonia Street4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public County Roads, St. George Island4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Tip Tucker Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup South Bay Shore Drive4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public County Roads Eastpoint, Ricky Jones4/12/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 8th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street4/13/2021

Sign Maintenance South Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021

Sign Maintenance South Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E 3rd Street4/13/2021

Sign Maintenance Washington Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 5th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 5th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 11th Street4/13/2021

Sign Maintenance Washington Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Sago Drive4/13/2021

Solar Panel Radar Sign (Installed) South Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Magnolia Court4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 11th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Sago Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 11th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 8th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 5th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E 10th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 8th Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Ridgecrest Parkway4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Sago Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E 3rd Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E 3rd Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Magnolia Court4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 1st Street4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Ridgecrest Parkway4/13/2021

33

A.



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Magnolia Court4/13/2021

Flagged Sago Drive4/14/2021

Litter Pickup Washington Street4/14/2021

Litter Pickup David Street4/14/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 1)4/14/2021

Litter Pickup School Road4/14/2021

Litter Pickup Tip Tucker Road4/14/2021

Cut grass in ditches South Bay Shore Drive4/14/2021

Trim Trees, Cut bushes back, Cut grass in ditches South Bay Shore Drive4/14/2021

Trim Trees, Cut bushes back, Cut grass in ditches South Bay Shore Drive4/14/2021

Culvert installation Sago Drive4/14/2021

Trim Trees, Cut bushes back South Bay Shore Drive4/14/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Debris Pruett Road3/25/2021 54 0

Debris TOTAL 54 0

Ditch Dirt Washington Street4/6/2021 90 0

Ditch Dirt TOTAL 90 0

Litter 3rd Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter 2nd Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter 1st Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter School Road3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Shuler Avenue3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Segree Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Washington Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Norvell Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Jefferson Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Avenue A (District 1)3/31/2021 0.5 0

Litter Dunlap Road3/31/2021 0.5 0

Litter 2nd Street4/1/2021 0.5 0

Litter David Street4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter South Franklin Street4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Creamer Street4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Hatfield Street4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter 1st Street4/1/2021 0.5 0

Litter Twin Lakes Road4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Avenue D4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Lucius Crum Road4/1/2021 0.5 0

Litter Old Ferry Dock Road4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Smith Street4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Carroll Street4/1/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Creamer Street4/1/2021 0.5 0

Litter Begonia Street4/1/2021 0.5 0

Litter 1st Street4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter School Road4/6/2021 0.5 034

A.



District 1

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter David Street4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter Varnes Street4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter Adams Street4/6/2021 1 0

Litter Tip Tucker Road4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter 2nd Street4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter Jefferson Street4/6/2021 1 0

Litter Tallahassee Street4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter Avenue A (District 1)4/6/2021 3 0

Litter Twin Lakes Road4/6/2021 1 0

Litter Power Drive4/7/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Old Ferry Dock Road4/7/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter N Bay Shore Drive4/7/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Tip Tucker Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter David Street4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter Tip Tucker Road4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter Washington Street4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter Avenue A (District 1)4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter School Road4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter TOTAL 20.60000005 0

Shoulder Dirt Pruett Road3/25/2021 36 0

Shoulder Dirt TOTAL 36 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

15" X 20' Culvert BP Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021 1 0

15" X 20' Culvert BP TOTAL 1 0

Black Dirt Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021 18 0

Black Dirt Sago Drive4/14/2021 18 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 36 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Shuler Avenue3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Hickory Dip Road3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Barber Drive3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt State Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Gilbert Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Power Drive3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt W Bay Shore Drive4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt W 5th Street4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt W 1st Street4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt W 8th Street4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt W 10th Street4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt E 3rd Street4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt W 11th Street4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 4.400000021 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Pruett Road3/25/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Pruett Road3/25/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Avenue A (District 1)4/1/2021 4 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Ridgecrest Parkway4/7/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Sago Drive4/14/2021 18 035

A.



District 1

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 103 0

Milled Asphalt School Road4/1/2021 9 0

Milled Asphalt Ridgecrest Parkway4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Power Drive4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Magnolia Court4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Sago Drive4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 9.800000012 0

Rip Rap N Bay Shore Drive3/31/2021 2 0

Rip Rap TOTAL 2 0

District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Box drag 3rd Street E (City of Carrabelle)3/25/2021

Box drag 5th Street E (City of Carrabelle)3/25/2021

Box drag 4th Street E (City of Carrabelle)3/25/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/25/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/29/2021

Litter Pickup West Drive3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Kendrick Road3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Lake Morality Road3/29/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/29/2021

Litter Pickup West Drive3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Baywood Drive (City of Carrabelle)3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Lake Morality Road3/29/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/30/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/30/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/30/2021

Litter Pickup CR673/30/2021

Box drag David Patton park (City of Carrabelle)3/31/2021

Box drag Jeff Sanders Road3/31/2021

Box drag McIntyre Road3/31/2021

Sign Maintenance Alligator Drive3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive3/31/2021

Graded Road(s) Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)4/1/2021

Cut Trees down and removed McIntyre Road4/1/2021

Sign Maintenance County Roads, Lanark4/1/2021

Sign Maintenance County Roads, Carrabelle, Bert B. Boldt II4/1/2021

Travel Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)4/1/2021

Flagged Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)4/1/2021

Flagged Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)4/1/2021

Graded Road(s) McIntyre Road4/6/2021

Box drag Duvall Road4/6/2021

Box drag David Patton park (City of Carrabelle)4/7/2021

Sign Maintenance CR674/7/2021

Box drag I Avenue NE (City of Carrabelle)4/7/2021

Sign Maintenance CR674/7/2021

Box drag 11th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/7/202136

A.



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Box drag Jeff Sanders Road4/7/2021

Box drag 9th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/7/2021

Box drag Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/7/2021

Graded Road(s), Road Repair McIntyre Road4/7/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Duvall Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public McIntyre Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Rio Vista Drive4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Duvall Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public McIntyre Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Rio Vista Drive4/12/2021

Flagged 7th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021

Culvert installation 7th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021

Box drag Jeff Sanders Road4/13/2021

Box drag Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021

Box drag 11th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021

Box drag 9th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021

Culvert installation Putnal Street4/14/2021

Flagged Putnal Street4/14/2021

Litter Pickup CR674/14/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Cleaned ditches Jeff Sanders Road4/14/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Cleaned ditches Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)4/14/2021

Litter Pickup CR674/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cleaned ditches Jeff Sanders Road4/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cleaned ditches Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)4/14/2021

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter CR673/25/2021 5 0

Litter West Drive3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter Baywood Drive (City of Carrabelle)3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter West Drive3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter Lake Morality Road3/29/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Kendrick Road3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter CR673/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter Lake Morality Road3/29/2021 3 0

Litter CR673/30/2021 4 0

Litter CR673/30/2021 2 0

Litter CR674/14/2021 2 0

Litter TOTAL 17.70000006 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt Crooked River Road4/7/2021 36 0

Black Dirt 7th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021 18 0
37

A.



District 2

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt Putnal Street4/14/2021 18 0

Black Dirt Putnal Street4/14/2021 18 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 90 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Jeff Sanders Road3/31/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)4/1/2021 0 18.1499996185

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)4/1/2021 0 18.1200008392

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Avenue D NE (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock 7th Street E (City of Carrabelle)4/13/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Putnal Street4/14/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 81 36.2700004578

District 3

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup 2nd St3/25/2021

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Coach Wagner Blvd (14th Street) (City of 
Apalachicola)

3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue L (City of Apalachicola)3/29/2021

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue L (City of Apalachicola)3/30/2021

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue I  (City of Apalachicola)3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Weems Memorial Hospital3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Health Department (Apalachicola)3/31/2021

Litter Pickup 8th Street  (City of Apalachicola)3/31/2021

Litter Pickup 10th Street  (City of Apalachicola)3/31/2021

Litter Pickup 22nd Avenue  (City of Apalachicola)4/1/2021

Litter Pickup James Clay Street (City of Apalachicola)4/1/2021

Litter Pickup 21st Avenue  (City of Apalachicola)4/6/2021

Litter Pickup 20th Avenue  (City of Apalachicola)4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Earl King Street (City of Apalachicola)4/6/2021

Cleaned out culverts 24th Avenue  (City of Apalachicola)4/12/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)3/30/2021 0.5 0

Litter Avenue I  (City of Apalachicola)3/30/2021 0.5 0

Litter 20th Avenue  (City of Apalachicola)4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter Earl King Street (City of Apalachicola)4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter 21st Avenue  (City of Apalachicola)4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter TOTAL 2.5 0

District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cleaned out culverts Timberwood Court3/25/2021

Ground Maintenance (Cut grass, picked up litter, Weed Eat) Emergency Management (Apalachicola)3/25/2021

Install poles for camera's Pine Log Boat Ramp3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Bluff Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Bluff Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Bluff Road3/29/202138

A.



District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Install poles for camera's Pine Log Boat Ramp3/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Bluff Road3/29/2021

Install poles for camera's Pine Log Boat Ramp3/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Bluff Road3/30/2021

Driveway repair Hathcock Road3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Rosemont Street3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Pinewood Street3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Connector Road3/30/2021

Driveway repair Hathcock Road3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Highland Park Road3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Pinewood Street3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Cypress Street3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Connector Road3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Highland Park Road3/30/2021

Litter Pickup Brownsville Road3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Pal Rivers Road3/31/2021

Driveway repair Peachtree Road3/31/2021

Litter Pickup 8 Mile4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Squire Road4/1/2021

Litter Pickup 10 Mile4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Peachtree Road4/1/2021

Shoulder Work Bluff Road4/6/2021

Shoulder Work Pal Rivers Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Bluff Road4/6/2021

Sign Maintenance Bayshore Drive4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Rosemont Street4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Highland Park Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Connector Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Pinewood Street4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Cypress Street4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Pal Rivers Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Thomas Drive4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Bike Path (Apalachicola)4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Chapman Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Alan Drive4/12/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Trim Trees Bayshore Drive4/14/2021

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Cypress Street3/30/2021 0.5 0

Litter Connector Road3/30/2021 0.5 0

Litter Pinewood Street3/30/2021 0.5 0

Litter Highland Park Road3/30/2021 0.5 0

Litter Bluff Road4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter Alan Drive4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Highland Park Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Rosemont Street4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Connector Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Pinewood Street4/12/2021 0.200000003 039

A.



District 4

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Cypress Street4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Pal Rivers Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Thomas Drive4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Chapman Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Brownsville Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter 26th Avenue4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Kevin Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Bayview Drive4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Moses Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Jackie Whitehurst Street4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Oyster Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Tilton Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Bike Path (Apalachicola)4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter TOTAL 6.100000054 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Cold Mix, Asphalt Hathcock Road3/30/2021 3 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 3 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Peachtree Road3/31/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Bluff Road4/6/2021 4 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Pal Rivers Road4/6/2021 4 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 17 0

District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup 7th Street3/25/2021

Litter Pickup 8th Street3/25/2021

Box drag Avenue G NW (City of Carrabelle)3/25/2021

Box drag Mill Road3/25/2021

Litter Pickup 4th Street3/25/2021

Litter Pickup 6th Street3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Cypress Lane3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Cypress Lane3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd3/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd3/25/2021

Litter Pickup Sanborn Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Ridge Road3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Sanborn Road3/29/2021

Litter Pickup Carlton Millender Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Ridge Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes Ridge Road3/29/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes, Litter Pickup 10th Street3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road3/31/2021

Litter Pickup 10th Street3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Wilderness Road3/31/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 5)3/31/2021

Otterslide Road3/31/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes 7th Street3/31/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes 10th Street3/31/202140

A.



District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road3/31/2021

Rocked ends of culvert pipes, Litter Pickup 7th Street3/31/2021

Driveway repair, Shoulder Work Ridge Road4/1/2021

Sign Maintenance County Roads, Carrabelle, Jessica Ward4/1/2021

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup CC Land4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Wilderness Road4/6/2021

Box drag Quail Run Drive4/6/2021

Box drag Herndon Road4/6/2021

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road4/6/2021

Driveway repair Frank McKamey Way4/7/2021

Driveway repair Frank McKamey Way4/7/2021

Driveway repair Frank McKamey Way4/7/2021

Driveway repair Frank McKamey Way4/7/2021

Graded Road(s), Road Repair Mill Road4/7/2021

Litter Pickup Power Line Road (Forestry Road #166)4/7/2021

Pull ditches CC Land4/8/2021

Sign Maintenance Lagoon Street4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Sign Maintenance Messer Road4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Flagged CC Land4/8/2021

Flagged CC Land4/8/2021

Driveway repair Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Mill Road4/12/2021

Driveway repair Wilderness Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Ridge Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Bear Creek Rd4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Sand Beach Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Bloody Bluff Road4/12/2021

Litter Pickup Wilderness Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public North Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Hickory Landing Road (Forestry Road #101‐B)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Sand Beach Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Wright Lake Road (Forestry Road #101)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Gardners Landing Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Hickory Landing Road (Forestry Road #101‐B)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Bloody Bluff Road4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Wright Lake Road (Forestry Road #101)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Power Line Road (Forestry Road #166)4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public County Roads, Eastpoint Jessica Ward4/12/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Gardners Landing Road4/12/2021

41

A.



District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Ashley Landing Road (Forestry Road #101‐A)4/12/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Line Road (Forestry Road #166)4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd4/13/2021

Box drag Mill Road4/13/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd4/13/2021

Litter Pickup Bear Creek Rd4/14/2021

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road4/14/2021

Litter Pickup 4th Street4/14/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter 7th Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter 4th Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter 8th Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter 6th Street3/25/2021 0.5 0

Litter Sanborn Road3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter Sanborn Road3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter Carlton Millender Road3/29/2021 0.300000012 0

Litter Avenue A (District 5)3/31/2021 0.5 0

Litter Wilderness Road3/31/2021 0.5 0

Litter 10th Street3/31/2021 0.5 0

Litter Otterslide Road3/31/2021 0.5 0

Litter Otterslide Road3/31/2021 3 0

Litter Otterslide Road4/6/2021 1 0

Litter Wilderness Road4/6/2021 0.5 0

Litter CC Land4/6/2021 2 0

Litter Bear Creek Rd4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Wilderness Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Ridge Road4/12/2021 0.200000003 0

Litter Bear Creek Rd4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter 4th Street4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter Otterslide Road4/14/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter TOTAL 12.30000005 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Cold Mix, Asphalt Cypress Lane3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Bear Creek Rd3/25/2021 0.5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 1 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Ridge Road4/1/2021 4 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Sheriff's Office ( Jail )4/6/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Frank McKamey Way4/7/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Georgia Avenue (City of Carrabelle)4/8/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Wilderness Road4/12/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 40 0

Milled Asphalt Bear Creek Rd4/13/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 0.200000003 0

Rip Rap 7th Street3/31/2021 2 042

A.



District 5

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Rip Rap 10th Street3/31/2021 2 0

Rip Rap TOTAL 4 0

43

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Informational Item

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup / Recycle Material Hauled (agenda packet)

44

A.



 

 

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2021 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Fonda D. Davis 

Solid Waste & Recycling, Animal Control, Parks & Recreation  

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 0 

============================================================================ 

 

 

SUBJECT(S):  
 
 

FOR BOARD INFORMATION:  

 

 
 

 

Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled 

March 31, 2021-April 13, 2021 
 

RIGHT–OF–WAY DEBRIS PICKUP 

Apalachicola Eastpoint St George 

Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator Point 

29.78 

 TONS 

60.75 

TONS 

71.98 

TONS 

68.16 

TONS 

34.2 

TONS 

20.26 

TONS 

 

RECYCLE MATERIAL HAULED 

 Apalachicola Eastpoint St. 

George 

Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator 

Point 

St. 

James 

Cardboard 3.49 
TONS 

6.30 
TONS 

6.53 
TONS 

-0- 
TONS 

-0-
TONS 

-0- 
TONS 

.54 
TONS 

Plastic,Paper,Glass,  

Aluminum 
 

Landfill .67 Tons 

 

-0-  
TONS 

 

-0- 
TONS 

 

-0- 
TONS 

 

-0-  
TONS 

 

-0- 
TONS 

 

-0- 
TONS 

 

-0-
TONS 

REQUESTED ACTION: None  
 

45

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Action Item

1. Request the Approval of Awarding of the HLMP Bid Packet to Florida Retrofit and the Signing of 

the Contract

46

A.



47

A.



48

A.



49

A.



50

A.



51

A.



52

A.



53

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a single-family dwelling 12 feet into the 

25-foot setback off River Road, 15 feet variance into the 25-foot setback off River Street 

(Unconstructed), and a 15 feet variance in to the 50-foot wetlands setback requirement from 

Carrabelle River. Property described as 339 River Road, block 5, Carrabelle River Sub Lot 1, 

Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Richard A. Glover, agent for Richard L. 

Wood, Sheryl T. Wood, and Donna B. Bostwick, applicant.  Advisory Board Recommended 

Approval.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

54

A.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 24-07S-05W-0180-0005-0010

Sec/Twp/Rng 24-7S-5W

Property Address 339 RIVER RD

Alternate ID 05W07S24018000050010

Class MISCELLANE

Acreage 0.18

Owner Address BOSTWICK DONNA B 

RICHARD L WOOD & SHERYL T 

2408 CLARAKEE BLVD 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32303

District 1

Brief Tax Description BL 5 CARRABELLE RIVER SUB

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 3/22/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 3/22/2021 7:41:11 AM

189 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

55

A.



56

A.



57

A.



58

A.



59

A.



60

A.



61

A.



62

A.



63

A.



64

A.



File Attachments for Item:

B. Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a single-family dwelling 10 feet into the 

25-foot setback into right of way on Indian Harbor Drive. Property described as 1931 Indian Harbor

Road, Lot 8 Indian Bay Village, St. George Island, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by 

Garlick Environmental, agent for Walter Sears, applicant.  Advisory Board Recommended 

Approval. 

BOARD ACTION: Approval, Table, or Deny

65

B.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 29-09S-06W-7337-0000-0080

Sec/Twp/Rng 29-9S-6W

Property Address 1931 INDIAN HARBOR ROAD

ST GEORGE ISLAND

Alternate ID 06W09S29733700000080

Class VACANT

Acreage n/a

Owner Address SAZERAC,LLC 

4935 TAYLOR LANE 

GAINESVILLE, GA 30504

District 1

Brief Tax Description LOT 8 INDIAN BAY VILL

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 3/22/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 3/22/2021 7:41:11 AM

378 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

66

B.



67

B.



68

B.



69

B.



70

B.



71

B.



72

B.



73

B.



74

B.



75

B.



76

B.



77

B.



78

B.



79

B.



File Attachments for Item:

C. Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a single-family dwelling 13.4 feet into the 

front 25-foot setback off Highway C30 and a 3 feet variance into both the left and right 10-foot side 

setback requirement. Property described as 1610 Highway C30, Carrabelle, Franklin County, 

Florida. Request submitted by Robert Mollergren & Leslie Denhard, applicants.  

Advisory Board recommended approval of Front Setback variance request contingent upon 

Demolition of Current Home/Structure. 

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

Advisory Board recommended denial for side setback request.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

80

C.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 28-07S-04W-0000-0030-0000

Sec/Twp/Rng 28-7S-4W

Property Address 1610 C30

CARRABELLE

Alternate ID 04W07S28000000300000

Class SINGLE FAM

Acreage n/a

Owner Address MOLLERGREN ROBERT & LESLIE 

DENHARD 

319 MORSE PLAZA 

FT MYERS, FL 33905

District 1

Brief Tax Description 50 FT PARCEL FACING ST

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 3/22/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 3/22/2021 7:41:11 AM

244 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

81

C.



82

C.



83

C.



(850) 668-3111
Tallahassee, FL 32312
5082 Bird Nest Trail

Oasis Designs

84

C.



Oasis Designs
5082 Bird Nest Trail

Tallahassee, FL 32312
(850) 668-3111

85

C.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Consideration of a request to construct a Single Family Private Dock located at 1545 Alligator 

Drive, Lot 3, Block R, Peninsular Point, Unit 5,  Alligator Point, Franklin County, Florida. The 

applicant has both State and Federal Permits. The dock will be 229’ x 4’ with a 6’ x 20’ terminal 

platform and a 12’ x 20’ proposed boatlift.  Request submitted by Robert Kirby, applicant. (House 

Under Construction- #29097)  P&Z Board Recommended Approval

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

86

A.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 02-07S-02W-1045-000R-0030

Sec/Twp/Rng 2-7S-2W

Property Address 1545 ALLIGATOR DR

Alternate ID 02W07S021045000R0030

Class SINGLE FAM

Acreage 0.568

Owner Address KIRBY ROBERT H 

2755 MILLSTONE PLANTATION RD 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32312

District 7

Brief Tax Description UNIT 5 BL R LOT 3

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 3/3/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 3/3/2021 7:41:34 AM

228 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

87

A.



88

A.



89

A.



90

A.



91

A.



92

A.



93

A.



94

A.



95

A.



96

A.



97

A.



98

A.



99

A.



100

A.



101

A.



102

A.



103

A.



104

A.



105

A.



106

A.



107

A.



108

A.



109

A.



110

A.



111

A.



112

A.



113

A.



114

A.



115

A.



116

A.



117

A.



118

A.



119

A.



120

A.



121

A.



122

A.



123

A.



124

A.



125

A.



126

A.



127

A.



128

A.



File Attachments for Item:

B. Consideration of a request to construct a Roof over an existing Boatlift and Redesign of existing 

Terminus located at 71 Fiesta Drive, Unit 1, Lot 80 Holiday Beach, Alligator Point, Franklin County, 

Florida. The applicant has State and Federal Permits. The roof will be 29'x14' and the redesigned 

terminus will be 20'x8'. Request submitted by Better Built Docks, agent for Travis Fink, applicant. 

P&Z Board Recommended Approval

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

129

B.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 01-07S-02W-1031-0000-0800

Sec/Twp/Rng 1-7S-2W

Property Address 71 FIESTA DR

Alternate ID 02W07S01103100000800

Class VACANT

Acreage 0.268

Owner Address TCB VENTURES,FL,LLC 

14945 FISHER ROAD 

FAYETTEVILLE, AR 72701

District 7

Brief Tax Description UNIT 1 LOT 80 HOLIDAY BCH

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 3/3/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 3/3/2021 7:41:34 AM

114 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

130

B.



131

B.



132

B.



133

B.



134

B.



135

B.



136

B.



137

B.



138

B.



139

B.



140

B.



141

B.



142

B.



143

B.



144

B.



145

B.



146

B.



147

B.



148

B.



149

B.



150

B.



File Attachments for Item:

C. Consideration of a request to construct an additional 280 sq foot dock and 312 sq foot covered 

boat lift to an an existing dock located at 323 East Sawyer Street, Unit 5, Block 81, Lot 9, Eastpoint, 

Franklin County, Florida. The applicant has State and Federal Permits. Request submitted by 

Richard DeLarber, applicant. P&Z Board Recommended Approval.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

151

C.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 29-09S-06W-7315-0081-0090

Sec/Twp/Rng 29-9S-6W

Property Address 323 E SAWYER ST

Alternate ID 06W09S29731500810090

Class SINGLE FAM

Acreage n/a

Owner Address DELARBER RICHARD M & JANE D 

323 E SAWYER ST 

EASTPOINT, FL 32328

District 1

Brief Tax Description UNIT 5 BL 81 LOTS 9

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 4/8/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 4/8/2021 7:46:41 AM

56 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

152

C.



153

C.



154

C.



155

C.



156

C.



157

C.



158

C.



159

C.



160

C.



161

C.



162

C.



163

C.



164

C.



165

C.



166

C.



167

C.



168

C.



169

C.



170

C.



171

C.



172

C.



173

C.



174

C.



175

C.



176

C.



177

C.



178

C.



179

C.



180

C.



181

C.



182

C.



183

C.



184

C.



185

C.



186

C.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Consideration of a request for Final Plat Approval of a 21 acres of land lying in Sections 25 and 

35, Township 7 South, Range 5 West, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. The subdivision will be 

named "St George Bay" and will consist of 16 Lots over 1 acre each. Request submitted by Elaine 

Boone, agent for Ed Simmons, applicant. P&Z Board Recommended Approval Contingent Upon 

required permits for Final Plat.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

187

A.



   

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
120 N. HWY 71          WWW.SOUTHEASTERNCE.COM 
P.O. BOX 141       850.639.3860 
WEWAHITCHKA, FLORIDA 32465 
     
March 25, 2021 
 
Client:  Elaine Boone 
 
Project:  Shell Bay Development Design & Permitting 
 
Location: U.S. Highway 98 

Franklin County, FL 
 

Scope of Services:  
 

• Conduct Pre-Application Meetings with Franklin County, Northwest Florida Water Management District, FDEP, 
and Additional Jurisdictional Agencies to Discuss the Proposed Development 

• Develop Working Site Plan and Roadway Geometry based on conversations with the Client. 
• Provide Grading and Drainage Plan as required to obtain ERP Stormwater Permit.  
• Provide Drainage Calculations. 
• Conduct Pre-Application Meeting with FDOT regarding the existing driveway connection to U.S. Highway 98. 
• Obtain FDOT Driveway Connection Safety Upgrade Permit (Includes Trip Generation Report) 
• Obtain FDOT Drainage Connection Permit 
• Provide Geotechnical Report for pavement recommendations and required SWMF information. 
• Provide Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
• Prepare application and supporting documents as required to obtain Franklin County Development Order 
• Provide Final Construction Drawings. 
• Provide As-Built inspection services and final certification (As-Built Survey by Others) 

 
Assumptions:  
 

• It is the sole responsibility of the Owner to retain legal counsel (if required) for the preparation of subdivision 
documentation that may be required (or altered) in order to construct the proposed development. 

• No sub-consultant survey services are included in this Agreement and shall be the responsibility of the Owner. 
• No electrical or site lighting plan included in this Agreement. 
• No traffic study or turn lane analysis included in this Agreement.  
• No City Water or Sewer is available at the site. Each proposed lot will include a potable water well and on-site 

domestic wastewater system. The design and permitting (if applicable) for these services are outside the scope of 
this design. 

• Boundary & Topographic Survey to be provided by others. (Including As-Built Survey) 
• No irrigation plan provided in this agreement. 
• This agreement does not include any wetlands delineation or wetlands related permitting. 
• No permit submittal fees are included in this Agreement and shall be the responsibility of the Client. 
• No NPDES permitting or NPDES related site inspections included in this Agreement. 
• A separate Agreement will be provided for additional permit requirements/services not mentioned above prior to 

further work. 
 
Method of Contract: Lump Sum – Please See Attached Authorization Form 
 
Please sign the attached authorization form where indicated, and return a copy of the signed Agreement back to SCE at your 
earliest convenience. We appreciate the opportunity to provide our engineering services for this project. Should you have any 
questions, please feel free to give us a call for any further assistance. 
 
Sincerely, 
Southeastern Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

 
Tyler Marsh, P.E., Vice President 

188

A.



   

Page 2 of 5 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION: Our understanding of all aspects of design pertaining to 
this particular project and the scope of work and prior assumptions are based on: 
a. Recent conversations and/or emails with the Client 
b. Review of the property specific information (Franklin County Property Appraiser and 

GIS) 
 

2. SCOPE OF WORK: Southeastern Consulting Engineers, Inc. (SCE) shall perform the 
services outlined in this Agreement and shall invoice the Client in accordance with the 
compensation section of the Agreement (authorization form). Any estimated cost to the 
Client shall not be considered a fixed price, but only as an estimate (unless otherwise 
noted). SCE will provide additional services under this Agreement as requested by the 
Client in writing subject to acceptance by SCE. Client will be invoiced for additional 
services at SCE’s standard rates listed below or as mutually agreed upon, including but not 
limited to re-reviews, unforeseen inspections and/or additional site visits, changes by Client 
to a site plan, architectural plans, structural components, etc. 
 SCE STANDARD RATES: 

• CAD Technician/Inspector: $75.00/hr 
• Project Engineer:  $115.00/hr 
• Professional Engineer:  $175.00/hr 
• Additional Site Visits:  $550.00 per visit  
• Printing Services (Additional Prints):   

     
  8.5x11 Color:    $0.10/Sheet 
  8.5x11 B&W:    No Charge 
  11x17 Color:     $0.15/Sheet 
  11x17 B&W:     No Charge 
  24x36 Color:     $1.50/Sheet 
  24x36 B&W:     $1.15/Sheet 
 

To the extent these general terms and conditions are part of a proposal for services, the 
proposal shall be valid for a period of ninety (90) days unless otherwise stated within this 
Agreement. Once the proposal is accepted, via signature and date on the attached 
Authorization Form, these general terms and conditions shall apply to all services 
performed and shall survive any termination of the Agreement or completion of services. 
 

3. RIGHT OF ENTRY: The Client will provide right-of-way entry for SCE personnel and 
all necessary equipment to the project site(s) in order to complete any required site visit 
work. 
 

4. INVOICES: SCE will submit invoices to the Client as individual portions of the services 
are completed and a final bill upon completion of services. There shall be no retainage, 
unless otherwise agreed upon in the Agreement. SCE shall release all applicable plans, 
certificates, or other available documents as and when requested by Client provided all 
outstanding invoices pertaining to that particular project is paid in full. Payment is due 
within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the invoice. A finance charge will begin to accrue if 
payment is not received within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the invoice. Client agrees 
to pay an interest charge equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1½%) per month, 

189

A.



   

Page 3 of 5 
 

or the maximum amount allowed by law on past due accounts. Any attorney’s fees, 
collection fees or other costs associated with collecting any delinquent amount shall be paid 
by the Client. The Client agrees to pay SCE for its services in accordance with the 
agreement herein, regardless of whether or not he/she has been paid by his/her client. 

 
5. SUSPENSION, TERMINATION, CANCELLATION OR ABANDONMENT This 

Agreement may be suspended, terminated, cancelled, or abandoned by either party upon 
thirty (30) days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to 
perform in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. Such termination shall not be 
effective if that substantial failure has been remedied before expiration of the period 
specified in the written notice. In all events of suspension, termination, cancellation or 
abandonment, SCE shall be paid for all services performed up to and through the date of 
suspension, termination, cancellation or abandonment. 

 
6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: All reports, plans, calculations, supporting 

documents, etc. and other documents prepared by SCE, as instruments of services, shall 
remain the property of SCE. Client agrees that all work furnished to the Client, including 
but not limited to the items listed above, which are not paid for in full, will be returned to 
SCE upon demand and will not be used by the Client for any purpose whatsoever. SCE will 
retain all pertinent records related to the services performed for a period of three (3) years 
following the submission of the plans, specifications, etc. During this period, the records 
will be made available to the Client at all reasonable times and an administrative fee may 
be charged to the Client for retrieval and reproduction of such records. 

 
7. FAILURE TO FOLLOW RECOMMENDATIONS: SCE will not be held responsible 

for any problems that may occur as a result of any variation from the provided plan set, 
recommendations, etc. 
 

8. COST ESTIMATES: Client hereby acknowledges that SCE cannot warrant that any cost 
estimates provided by SCE will not vary from actual costs incurred by the Client. 
 

9. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES: If, under this Agreement, professional services are 
required and/or provided during the construction phase of the project, SCE shall not be held 
responsible for or have any control over means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work; nor shall 
SCE be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to carry out any of the work in accordance 
with the contract documents or for the Contractor’s failure to comply with applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules or regulations. 
 

10. INSURANCE: SCE shall at all times carry professional liability coverage. Insurance 
certificates shall be provided to the Client upon request. 
 

11. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT: This writing embodies the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties hereto, and there are no other Agreements and 
understandings, oral or written, with reference to the subject matter hereof that are not 
merged herein and superseded hereby. No alteration, change or modification of the terms of 
this agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by both parties hereto. SCE 

190

A.



   

Page 4 of 5 
 

shall perform the work as specified in this Agreement and complete the Client’s project in a 
timely manner, however no time of completion can be guaranteed. 
 

12. PERMITTING: In cases where the scope of services requires SCE to submit, on behalf of 
the Client, a permit application and/or approval by a third party to this contract, SCE does 
not make any warranties, guarantees or representations as to the success of our effort on 
behalf of the Client. Payment for services rendered by SCE is not contingent upon the 
successful acquisition of these permits. Permit applications will not be submitted until 
payment has been received in full. All permit fees are the sole responsibility of the Client.  
 

13. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: If a dispute arises out of or related to this Agreement or the 
breach thereof, the parties will attempt to settle the matter between themselves. If no 
agreement can be reached, the parties agree to use mediation with a mutually agreed upon 
mediator before resorting to a judicial form. The parties will share the cost of a third party 
mediator equally. In the event of litigation, the prevailing party will be entitled to 
reimbursement of all reasonable costs and attorney’s fees.  
 

14. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY: With the sole exception of specifically marked 
reproducible materials subject to the Limited Copyright License herein, all worldwide 
right, title and interest in and to any and all Intellectual Property conceived, invented, 
authored or otherwise made by or on this Agreement shall remain the sole and exclusive 
property of SCE, and its successors and assigns unless licensed or assigned by SCE 
pursuant to a separate written instrument. The term “Intellectual Property” shall be 
construed broadly to include all forms of intellectual properties including but not limited to 
inventions, discoveries, designs, plans, improvements, trademarks, service marks and 
copyright in drawings, computer programs, and all other original works of authorship.  

191

A.



   

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
120 N. HWY 71         WWW.SOUTHEASTERNCE.COM 
P.O. BOX 141       850.639.3860 
WEWAHITCHKA, FLORIDA 32465 

 
AUTHORIZATION FORM 

 
March 25, 2021 
 
Client:  Elaine Boone 
 
Project:  Shell Bay Development Design & Permitting 
 
Location: U.S. Highway 98 

Franklin County, FL 
 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 
 

N/A
$5,000.00
$1,500.00
$7,500.00

$13,750.00
$4,975.00
$3,250.00
$6,750.00
$3,750.00
$4,250.00
$2,500.00
$1,750.00

$54,975.00TOTAL SERVICES FEE(S)

As-Built Certification (Survey By Others)
SWPPP Design

FDOT Driveway Connection (Safety Upgrade, Includes Pre-Application Meeting)

Final Plans (Construction Drawings)
Franklin County Development Order Application Submittal

Site Planning & Roadway Geometry/Cross Sections
Grading / Drainage Plan (Includes SWMF Design & Permitting)

Geotechnical Investigation & Report

SCE Service Fees

Preliminary Plat Approval

FDOT Drainage Connection Permit

Topographic Survey (By Owner)
Pre-Application Consultation Meetings as Described Above

 
 
Note: Credit card payments are accepted for an additional 3.5% convenience fee. 
 
The undersigned agrees to the scope of work and assumptions outlined in the cover sheet and general terms 
and conditions above and herby authorizes the performance of work in the amount listed above as described 
herein and does so on behalf of the parcel owner and warrants that he/she has the authority to sign on behalf 
of the owner. Please note that any variation from the intended scope of work and/or assumptions will result 
in additional fees. 
 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________________ Date:_______________ 

192

A.



193

A.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Date created: 2/1/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 2/1/2021 7:54:41 AM

496 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

194

A.



SHELL BAY COURT 80' WIDE RIGHT OF WAY

U.S. HIGHWAY #98(66'~R/W)(OPEN/PAVED)

40' WIDE INGRESS, EGRESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

40' WIDE INGRESS, EGRESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

OLIVER-THOMAS
PARTNERSHIP, INC

PARCEL ID#35-07S-05W-
0000-0380-0400

(UNPLATTED LANDS)

SUSAN MACKEN
PARCEL ID#35-07S-05W-

0000-0401-0000
(UNPLATTED LANDS)

JUDY TAYLOR
PARCEL ID#35-07S-05W-

0000-0400-0000
(UNPLATTED LANDS)

JAMES & CANDICE
BOONE

PARCEL ID#35-07S-05W-
0000-0390-0060

(UNPLATTED LANDS)

CHARLES & CAROL CAROTHERS
PARCEL ID

#35-07S-05W-0000-0390-0070
(UNPLATTED LANDS)

ANTHONY & CHEREE WOOD
PARCEL ID

#35-07S-05W-0000-0390-0080
(UNPLATTED LANDS)

LOT 5, SHELL BAY
PB 8, PG 38

(UNPLATTED LANDS)

ANTHONY & WENDY WOOD
PARCEL ID

#35-07S-05W-0000-1002-0050

WALTER BONCZEK
PARCEL ID

#25-07S-05W-1004-0000-0030
(UNPLATTED LANDS)

SUNIL BABBAR
PARCEL ID

#25-07S-05W-1004-0000-0010
(UNPLATTED LANDS)

RICHARD URASH
PARCEL ID

#35-07S-05W-1000-0000-0030
LOT 3, DOC'S SEA SHORES

PB 7, PG 49

RE & CATHERINE HARDY
PARCEL ID

#35-07S-05W-1000-0140-0000
LOT 2, DOC'S SEA SHORES

PB 7, PG 49

LOT 16
1.00AC.±

LOT 9
1.06AC.±

LOT 1
1.00AC.±

LOT 8
1.00AC.±

LOT 2
1.00AC.±

LOT 3
1.00AC.±

LOT 15
1.04AC.±

LOT 14
2.85AC.±

LOT 7
1.00AC.±

LOT 11
1.05AC.±

LOT 10
1.05AC.±

LOT 12
1.05AC.±

LOT 13
1.05AC.±

LOT 6
1.00AC.±

LOT 4
1.01AC.±

LOT 5
1.00AC.±

195

A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(BEARING BASE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. BEGIN AT A FOUND 5/8" RC #6475 MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 2, DOC'S SEA SHORES A SUBDIVISION AS PER MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 49 IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF FRANKLIN COUNTY, FLORIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 4X4 CM NO ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 4X4 CM NO ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 4X4 CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC 2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 4X4 CM #4162

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #2470

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #7160

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 3" RND CM #2919

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 4X4 CM #4261

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" RC #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:1"=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ASSUMED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
 - PROPERTY CORNER(SEE DESCRIPTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 - PRM 5/8" ROD AND CAP #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
L - ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB - CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEL - DELTA OR INCLUDED ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAD - RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W - RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
P - RECORDED PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
M - MEASURED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SRB - SET 5/8" RE-BAR #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB - POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM - CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C - CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/C - ROD AND CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP - IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PC - POINT OF CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL - CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/B - RE-BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCM - SET 4X4 CONCRETE MONUMENT (#6475)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E - EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S - SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
N - NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
R - RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T - TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
W - WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNC - SET NAIL & CAP #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
FNC - FOUND NAIL AND CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND - FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
 - LINE NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 - CALCULATED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - SRB 5/8" #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRM - PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RND - ROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POC - POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. BOX 625, CRAWFORDVILLE, FLORIDA 32327

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYORS AND MAPPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB: 13-015 * PSC:41387

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARCH 31, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
LB #6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK______ PAGE NUMBER______

AutoCAD SHX Text
I hereby certify that this survey was made under my responsible direction and supervision, is a correct representation of the lands surveyed, that the permanent reference monuments and permanent control points have been set, and that the survey data and monumentation complies with Chapter 177 of the Florida Statutes and with Chapter 5J-17, Florida Administrative Code.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAT, AS RECORDED IN ITS GRAPHIC FORM, IS THE OFFICIAL DEPICTION OF THE SUBDIVIDED LANDS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND WILL IN NO CIRCUMSTANCES BE SUPPLANTED IN AUTHORITY BY ANY OTHER GRAPHIC OR DIGITAL FORM OF THE PLAT.  THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS THAT ARE NOT RECORDED ON THIS PLAT THAT MAY BE FOUND IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF THIS COUNTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA CERTIFICATE NO. 5959 LB#6475

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDWIN G. BROWN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
____________

AutoCAD SHX Text
WADE G. BROWN, PSM

AutoCAD SHX Text
  CHECKED BY: WADE G. BROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDWIN BROWN & ASSOCIATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(850) 926-3016  888-433-4436  FAX (850) 926-8180

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYORS * MAPPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 625 2813 Crawfordville Hwy. Crawfordville, Fl 32326

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DRAWN BY: ADRON ANDERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH - CHORD LENGTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1 - LINE NUMBER(SEE LINE TABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1 - CURVE NUMBER(SEE CURVE TABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS NOTE: LOTS 1 THRU 10 WILL HAVE DRIVEWAY ACCESS VIA THE 40' WIDE INGRESS, EGRESS & UTILITY EASEMENT LOTS 11 THRU 18 WILL HAVE DRIVEWAY ACCESS VIA THE 80' WIDE RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. GEORGE BAY SUBDIVISION A RE-PLAT OF LOTS 1 THRU 4 AND 6 THRU 10 OF SHELL BAY, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 8, PAGE 38 AND ADJOINING LAND LYING IN SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 5 WEST FRANKLIN COUNTY, FLORIDA



File Attachments for Item:

A. Consideration of a request for Commerical Site Plan Review of a 1,500 square feet Convenience Store

with a Deli and Drive Through located at 101 West Pine Ave, Unit 1, Block 2 west, Lots 17 and 18, St. 

George Island, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Jim Waddell, agent for Charles Robert 

Shiver and Donna Kay Barber, Applicants. P&Z Board Recommended Approval Contingent upon flood 

review and permits.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

196

A.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 29-09S-06W-7311-002W-0170

Sec/Twp/Rng 29-9S-6W

Property Address 101 W PINE AVE

Alternate ID 06W09S297311002W0170

Class VACANT COM

Acreage n/a

Owner Address SHIVER CHARLES ROBERT 

DONNA KAY BARBER 

W/R/O/S P.BOX 681 

EASTPOINT, FL 32328

District 1

Brief Tax Description UNIT 1 BL 2W LOTS 17 18

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 4/8/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 4/8/2021 7:46:41 AM

114 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

197

A.



Charles Robert Shiver and Donna Kay Barber

850-814-2907 850-814-2907 and 850-653-6512

PO Box 681 Eastpoint, FL 32328

Donna@DonnaKayBarber.com

TBD

101 W. Pine Ave., St. George Island, FL 32328

`17, 18 and 19 2 St. George Island Gulf Beaches 1 West

29-09S-06W-7311-002W-0170and 29-09S-06W-7311-002W-0190

Convenience Store

C4 & C2

1,500 0 1,500
TBD TBD

1 0 0

WMSI

120088 0565F AE
13

198

A.



N/A
TBD
38%

N/A

N/A
N/A

AE 13
13

7 (Building will be flood proofed to ELEV = 14)

N/A

X
X

X

X

TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD

N/A

TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD

TBD
TBD

199

A.



PLAT OF BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY CERTIFIED TO: 

CHARLES ROBERT SHRIVER and DONNA KAY BARBER, 

DONNA DUNCAN, P.A., 
NOTES: 

CHICAGOTillEINSURANCECOMPANY 

� 

Ff RC (5/8'') 

#6590 

LEGEND 

.s-, 
' 

'x4.92 

I g 

FCM 

RtW
M

FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SIRC 

FIRC 

RP 

FND 

RND 

CM 

MEASURED 

NOTTO SCALE 

POINTNOTSETORFOUND 

SET (5/8") IRON ROD AND CAP #1160 

FOUND (5/8") IRON ROD AND CAP 

RECORD PLAT 

FOUND 

ROUND 

CONCRETE MONUMENT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

Lots 16, 17 & 18, Block "2,.of ST. 

GEORGE ISLAND GULF BEACHES 

UNIT 1 WEST, a subdivision as 

per map or plat thereof recorded in 

Plat Book 2, Page 7 of the Public 

Records of Franklin County, 

Florida 

I hereby certifiy that this was performed under my responsible 
direction and supervision and the plat and description are 
true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
The survey meets or exceeds the standards for practice for 
land surveying as established by the Florida Board of 
Professional Surveyors and Mappers (F.A.C. SJ-17.051/.052). 

The undersigned surveyor has nat been provided a current title 
opinion or abstract of matters affecting title or boundary to the 
subject property. It is possible there are deeds of records, 
unrecorded deeds, easements or other instruments which could affect 
tho booodorl •· 

1
� 

JA T. RODDENBERRY 
Surveyor and Mapper 
Florida Certificate No: 4261 

\ 

\ 

1. SURVEY SOURCE: Record plat and a field survey performed by the undersigned surveyor.

2. BEARING REFERENCE: Westerly right-of-way boundary of 1st Street West
having a bearing of South 24 degrees 18 minutes 00 seconds East as per record plat.

3. NO IMPROVEMENTS have been located in this survey other than shown hereon.

4. There are NO VISIBLE ENCROACHMENTS other than those shown hereon.
5. This survey is dependent upon EXISTING MONUMENTATION.

6. Not valid without the signature and the original raised seal of 
a Florida licensed surveyor and mapper.

FIR (5/8'') 

-�----
-_ �I'\.-_-_-_-_ 

. \,1,,6._ ....
- � � . - -

-�···

ct:: 
0 
< 

FLOO D ZONE INFORMA TION: 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

Subject property is located in Zone ''AE" (EL 13) as per Flood 

Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No: 120088 0565F 

index date:February 5, 2014, Franklin County, Florida_ 

20 O 10 20 

□�•-:=1-••=--l�I
( IN FEET ) 

1 inch = 20 ft. 

R) 1 __ .....;:IJi.l=.rll.;;.hu;;.;.r.;;,;m.;;,;an;;.,;R=-.:.o;;..;d_de_n_be_r..:,ry_&.....:Jil::,;=::. s_so_c_ia_te�s,_I_n_c. __ _ 

■r-------,___.-+-�--=--1 PROFESSIONAL SURVEYORS AND MAPPERS

IA 
DATE: 03/03/21 

FILE: 94088.DWG 

p_o_ BOX 100 • 125 SHELDON STREET • SOPCHOPPY, FLORIDA 32358 
PHONE NUMBER: 850-962-1538 FAX NUMBER: 850-962-1103 

DRAWN BY: MMD 

DATE OF LAST FIELD WORK: 
03 02 21 

LB#7160 

N.B- PLAT PG COUNTY: Franklin 

JOB NUMBER: 94-088 

200

A.



2015 Centre Pointe Boulevard, Suite 103 • Tallahassee, FL 32308 • Phone.850.298.4213
 Civil Engineering • Land Use Planning • Environmental Permitting • CA8225

www.inoviagroup.com

March 29, 2021

Ms. Cortni Bankston
Franklin County Planning and Building Dept.
43 Forbes Street
Apalachicola, Florida  32320

Subject: Donna Barber and Charles Robert Shiver - Commercial Site Plan
   Lots 17,18,19, Block 2W, Unit 1 St. George Island
   Our Project 421.001.00

Dear Ms. Bankston:

Please accept this letter as our request to be placed on the agenda for the next P&Z
meeting, which is to be held in April 2021, for approval of the above-captioned project.

In summary, the project will consist of a 1,500 gsf convenience store.  The convenience
store will have a deli area for take-out only, either as walk in or via a proposed drive thru
window.    The main structure will be constructed slab on grade and will be flood proofed
to the required elevation of el= 14.0.

Water and sewer facilities for the site will be provided by WMSI and a commercial
grade, privately maintained, aerobic sewage treatment system unit, respectively.

It is our understanding, based on a review of the code and past approvals for similar
developments that the proposed project is consistent with the provisions of the C-4,
mixed use commercial zoning district.

 As is customary for this proceeding, we respectfully request that the board make a
recommendation of approval for this project, conditioned upon receipt of all applicable
state permits, including NWFWMD environmental resource and Health Dept. onsite
septic system permits.

Please advise if we can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,
INOVIA CONSULTING GROUP

Jim Waddell, P.E.
Principal

Jim Waddell

201

A.



R/W
R/W

R
/W R
/W

30
' 
A
LL

EY

75
.0
0'
(R

P)
S6

5°
42

'0
0"

W

N
65

°4
2'
00

"E

135.00'(RP)BEARING BASE

75
.0
0'
(R

P)

134.90'(M)
S24°18'00"E

N
65

°4
1'
16

"E
74

.9
9'
(M

)

N24°17'24"W 134.98'(M)

S6
5°

37
'3
5"

W
75

.0
2'
(M

)

135.00'(RP)N24°18'00"W

4

4

4

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

6

6

66

6

7

7

7

8

8

8

9

7.
74

g

8.
87

g

4.
92

g

4.
14

g

4.
17

g

3.
84

g

4.
49

g

4.
64

g
4.
68

g

5.
51

g

5.
16

eo
p

5.
20

eo
p

5.
37

eo
p4.
79

g5.
52

g

5.
94

g7.
48

g

4.
59

eo
p

4.
62

eo
p

ED
G
E 

O
F 

PA
V
EM

EN
T

25
.0
2'

24
.7
2'

1ST STREET WEST
60' R/W ~ PAVED

PI
N
E 

A
V
EN

U
E

60
' 
R
/W

 ~
 P

A
V
ED

ED
G
E 

O
F 

PA
V
EM

EN
T

FI
R 

(5 8
")

FI
RC

 (
5 8
")

#
71

60
FI
R 

(5 8
")

FI
R 

(5 8
")

FI
RC

 (
5 8
")

#
65

90

FC
M
 (
3x

3)
BR

O
KE

N

R
/W

R10'

R10'

R10'

GRAVEL PARKING

R10'

18'

12'9'

10'

12'

26

SWMF

BUILDING
WITH

DRIVE-THRU
1,500 SF
FFE: 7.0

5' VUA SETBACK

5' VUA SETBACK

25
' 
B
U
IL

D
IN

G 
S
E
TB

AC
K

4' SIDEWALK
25' BUILDING SETBACK

4'
 S

ID
E
W
AL

K

SEPTIC AND
DRAINFIELD

GRAVEL DRIVE AISLE

DRIVE-THRU

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOTS 16, 17 & 18, BLOCK "2"OF ST. GEORGE ISLAND GULF BEACHES
UNIT 1 WEST,  A SUBDIVISION AS PER MAP OR PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 7 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
FRANKLIN COUNTY, FLORIDA.

FLOOD ZONE INFORMATION:
SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE "AE" (EL 13) AS PER FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY PANEL NO: 120088 0565F INDEX
DATE:FEBRUARY 5, 2014, FRANKLIN COUNTY, FLORIDA.

00 20'10'

SCALE: 1"=20'

INITIAL DATE

SCALE:

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

COPYRIGHT © 2021 BY INOVIA CONSULTING GROUP.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF INOVIA CONSULTING GROUP.  IT IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC PROJECT IDENTIFIED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN AND IS NOT TO BE USED ON OTHER PROJECTS OR EXTENSIONS TO THIS PROJECT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, EXCEPT BY EXPRESSED WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH AND COMPENSATION TO INOVIA CONSULTING GROUP.

N
O
.

BY
DA

TE
RE

VI
SI

O
N
S

D
R
A
W

IN
G
 F

IL
E
:

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 N

O
.:

1983 CENTRE POINTE BLVD.
SUITE 103

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
32308

PHONE   850.298.4213
WWW.INOVIAGROUP.COM

CA8225

SHEET

PE NO.:
DATE:

D
E
S
IG

N
 B

A
S
E
.d

w
g

C
L
I
E
N
T

P
R
O
J
E
C
T

S
H
E
E
T

PERMIT RELEASE

PROGRESS PRINT

PLAN RELEASE STATUS

BID RELEASE

CONSTRUCTION RELEASE

RELEASE DATE:

30 Mar 21

30 Mar 21

JAMES F. WADDELL, III, P.E.
46019

1 OF 1

JFW
KRA

D
O
N
N
A
 
B
A
R
B
E
R
 
A
N
D

C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
R
O
B
E
R
T
 
S
H
I
V
E
R

B
A
R
B
E
R
 C

O
N
V
E
N
IE

N
C
E
 S

T
O
R
E

S
T
. 
G
E
O
R
G
E
 I
S
L
A
N
D

D
IM

E
N
S
IO

N
A
L
 S

IT
E
 P

L
A
N

AS SHOWN

3/30/21

3/30/21

202

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Consideration of a request for a Public Hearing to change a triangular parcel for a Re-zoning 

Change from C-1 Commercial Fishing to C-3 Commercial Recreation. Property described as 336 

Patton Drive, Franklin County, Florida.  Request submitted by Marsha Watson, agent for MMSW 

Holdings, LLC, applicant. P&Z Board Recommended Approval for Public Hearing.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

203

A.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 31-08S-06W-0000-2350-0000

Sec/Twp/Rng 31-8S-6W

Property Address 336 PATTON DR

EASTPOINT

Alternate ID 06W08S31000023500000

Class STORES, 1

Acreage n/a

Owner Address MMSW HOLDINGS, LLC 

3453 MAHONEY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309

District 5

Brief Tax Description A TRIANGULAR PARCEL WITH

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 4/8/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 4/8/2021 7:46:41 AM

98 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

204

A.



205

A.



206

A.



207

A.



208

A.



File Attachments for Item:

B. Consideration of a request for a Public Hearing to change a 200' x 300' parcel for a Land Use 

Change from Residential to Commercial and a Public Hearing to Re-zone from R-4 Single Family 

Home Industry to C-4 Mixed Use Residential. Property described as 31865 Highway 98 West,  

Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Blakey's Beach LLC, applicant. P&Z 

Board Motioned without a recommendation to present request for Public Hearing before 

Board of County Commissioners.

-Applicant has requested to revise request for re-zoning from R-4 Single Family Home 

Industry to C-2 Commercial Business. Email request attached

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

209

B.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 25-07S-05W-0000-0060-0000

Sec/Twp/Rng 25-7S-5W

Property Address 1865 HWY 98 W

CARRABELLE

Alternate ID 05W07S25000000600000

Class VACANT

Acreage n/a

Owner Address BLAKEYS BEACH, LLC 

1891 HWY 98 W 

CARRABELLE, FL 32322

District 1

Brief Tax Description 200X300 FT OR/77/134 &

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 4/8/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 4/8/2021 7:46:41 AM

185 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

210

B.



211

B.



212

B.



213

B.



214

B.



215

B.



216

B.



217

B.



218

B.



219

B.



1

cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com

From: Cheryl Whaley <gritcreek@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:09 PM
To: cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com
Subject: Re: Rezoning question

Cortni, 
 
Please accept this email as notification of our desire for the request of rezoning to C-4 previously submitted to be 
changed to request for rezoning to C-2. This is in reference to the property located at 1865 Hwy 98 W, Carrabelle FL 
owned by Blakeys Beach LLC. 
 
We have spoke to Mrs Mary Lawhon and she is writing a letter today in support of this request which will be notarized. 
The letter will be hand delivered to your office tomorrow. 
 
Please confirm receipt of this email and that this is everything you need to proceed on to the BOCC meeting on April 
20th. 
 
Thank you,  
 
Cheryl Whaley  
 
On Mon, Apr 12, 2021, 2:19 PM <cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com> wrote: 

Dear Cheryl, 

  

Cortni is out of the office today for a doctor’s appointment.  We have received the letters of support, and they will be distributed to the P and Z 
Board members for the meeting tomorrow. 

  

Sincerely, 

Mark C. Curenton 

County Planner 

Franklin County, Florida 

850-653-9783 x-160 

  

  

E-Mail addresses are public records under Florida Law and are not exempt from Public Records 
requirements. If you do not want your email address to be subject to  being released pursuant to a public 

220

B.



221

B.



222

B.



223

B.



224

B.



225

B.



226

B.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Consideration of a request for Special Exception in the C1 Commercial Fishing District to 

construct a  27'x 40' Water Dependent Tourist Commercial Facility (Kayak Rental Facility) located 

at 444 Highway 98, 150 feet facing Highway 98, Apalachicola, Franklin County, Florida. Request 

submitted by Barbara Mathis, applicant. P&Z Board recommended approval of the Special 

Exception.

***Staff recommends deferring this request until the Building Department and the 

Floodplain Administrator has an opportunity to discuss the building/shed currently on the 

property with no record of a permit.

BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

227

A.



Franklin County, FL

Developed by

Parcel ID 11-09S-08W-0000-1300-0000

Sec/Twp/Rng 11-9S-8W

Property Address -

Alternate ID 08W09S11000013000000

Class VACANT

Acreage n/a

Owner Address MATHIS BARBARA 

304 24TH STREET 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320

District 1

Brief Tax Description 150 FT FACING HWY 98 OR

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 4/8/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 4/8/2021 7:46:41 AM

227 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Roads

City Labels

228

A.



229

A.



230

A.



231

A.



232

A.



233

A.



234

A.



235

A.



236

A.



237

A.



238

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners is seeking civil engineering services 

relating to the construction engineering and inspection (CEI) of the multi-use trail and bike path on 

the CR 370 Alligator Point Multi-Use Path Project. The scope of this project will include the 

construction of a 10’ multi-use path from George Vause Road eastward for approximately 1 mile to 

Gulf Shore Boulevard on Alligator Point, FL as identified in the County’s Local Agency Participation 

contract with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT). Consideration will be given to only

those firms that are qualified pursuant to law and that have been prequalified by FDOT to perform 

the indicated types of work.

239

A.



FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  

FDOT FPID NO. 429854-2-68-01 

The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners is seeking civil engineering services relating to the 
construction engineering and inspection (CEI) of the multi-use trail and bike path on the CR 370 Alligator Point 
Multi-Use Path Project. The scope of this project will include the construction of a 10’ multi-use path from 
George Vause Road eastward for approximately 1 mile to Gulf Shore Boulevard on Alligator Point, FL as 
identified in the County’s Local Agency Participation contract with the Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT). Consideration will be given to only those firms that are qualified pursuant to law and that have been 
prequalified by FDOT to perform the indicated types of work. 

Work Types: 10.1 – Roadway Construction Engineering Inspection 
Response Deadline: Monday, April 19, 2021 at 4:30 P.M. EDT 
Opening Date: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 at the County Commission meeting which begins at 9:00 A.M. 

EDT. 

This project is federally funded with assistance from the FDOT and the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA). By submitting a letter of response, the Consultant certifies that they are in compliance with FDOT 
Procedure No. 375-030-006 (Restriction on Consultants Eligibility to Compete for Department Contracts) and 
that no principle is presently suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded 
from participation on this transaction by any Federal Department or Agency. 

Information regarding the proposal and the complete Request For Proposals package can be obtained from 
Cortni Bankston, Administrative Assistant, 850-653-9783 x-180 or cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com. In 
order to ensure a fair, competitive, and open process, once a project is advertised for proposals, all 
communications between interested firms and the County must be directed to Cortni Bankston, 
Administrative, 850653-9783 x-180 or cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com. 

If interested, qualified Consultants are required to submit the original and two (2) copies of the letter of 
response to the Franklin County Clerk’s Office, 33 Market Street, Suite 203, Apalachicola, FL 32320 by 
the response deadline. All letters of response shall be sealed and marked on the outside of the 
envelope “RFQ #429854-2-68-01; CR 370 Alligator Point Multi-Use Path Project CEI Services”.

 

240

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Action Items

1. Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project

Walter Marine of Orange Beach Alabama was the top ranked and only proposer for the Buddy Ward

Artificial Reef Project.  The ranking committee recommends the Board enter into a contract with 

Walter Marine as Walter Marine meets all contractor requirements of the RFP.  The grant award 

requires the deployment of at least 25 concrete prefabricated reef modules to construct three reef 

complexes in the Buddy Ward permit site located approximately 7.5 nautical miles off Bob Sikes 

Cut.  Walter Marine’s proposal will deploy 30 reef modules for the contract price of $70,000.  The 

deployment is to occur prior to August 1, 2021 and upon deployment, the GPS coordinates will be 

posted online via the Apalachicola Artificial Reef Association’s website: www.apalachicolareef.org. 

Board action to authorize the chairman’s signature on the attached contract with Walter Marine for 

the Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project.

2. Budget Resolution Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project

Pursuant to FS 129.06, the attached budget resolution is needed to incorporate the unanticipated 

revenues from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s $60,000 state grant and the

$10,000 contribution from the Apalachicola Artificial Reef Association into the 2020/2021 county 

budget.  The corresponding $70,000 expenditure line item will be 001.20.572.3401 titled Other 

Contract Services, Buddy Ward Reef Project.

Board action to adopt the attached resolution to incorporate the unanticipated grant revenues into 

the county budget to fund the artificial reef project.  

3. CARES Act Update, State Shared Gas Tax Revenues

The Florida Department of Revenue distributes state shared revenue proceeds several months after

the collection period.  The final state shared gas tax revenues were not received until December.  As

the COVID pandemic shifted into crisis mode in late March of 2020 - the state shared gas tax 

revenue estimates used in the budget process for 19/20 as released by the State of Florida were 

short by $162,029.33.  As the CARES funds can be used to offset losses in revenue, it is requested 

that the BOCC authorize booking $162,029.33 of CARES funds in the Road and Bridge Fund to 

stabilize the Road Department budget which is funded primarily by gas taxes.  Should the BOCC 

approve, this will leave approximately $66,763.78 remaining from the 1st CARES allocation.  The 

CARES cost tracking workbook with the proposed entry is attached and the impacted shared 

revenues are listed in the attached table.

Board action to authorize booking Cares Revenues in the Road and Bridge Fund to offset losses in 

State Shared Gas Tax Revenue Proceeds.

4. State Attorney Information Technology Line Item

Franklin County received a request from Mary Dean Barwick the Executive Director of the State 

Attorney’s Office to authorize a line-item budget amendment whereas the $6,500 budgeted in the 

State Attorney’s information technology contractual services budget to be used for the funding of a 

241



shared information technology position.  There will be no change in total budget for the State 

Attorney’s Office.

Board action to authorize the line-item budget amendment and authorize the attached memo be sent 

back to Ms. Barwick to confirm the change.

5. Sheriff’s Department E911 Grants

a. At the March 16th Commission Meeting, the Board authorized signing the RapidDeploy grant 

application. Attached to this report is the grant agreement which was sent to the county from the 

Department of Management Services.  The $63,960 grant is part of the tri-county rural grant for five

years of software licensing that will interface the newly updated mapping data with the E911 

system at the Sheriff’s Department.  The RapidDeploy system combines mapping and data analytics 

with cloud-based software.  This grant is funding the replacement of the existing GEOCOMM 

software which is out of date. 

Board action to authorize the Chairman to sign the attached grant agreement.

b. County Attorney Michael Shuler reviewed the MOU between the twelve region counties relative 

to the $422,816 Region 1 GIS Mapping Project NG-911 Grant and the Chairman signed the attached 

Regional MOU on April 13th.  The regional MOU was a necessary cornerstone of the regional grant 

application.  As this is a twelve-county project, all counties will be signing the MOU, applications, 

and vendor contracts to comprise one regional project.  The five-year grant will interface mapping 

data within the region and will leverage technology to enhance response time, provide additional 

mapping data and services to process incoming 911 calls. Once the application is signed, a grant 

agreement will follow shortly after along with the vendor contract and sole source provider letter.  

Board action to authorize the chairman’s signature on the attached grant application for the Twelve 

County Region 1 GIS E911 Mapping Grant. 

242

A.



 

 

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2021 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Erin Griffith, Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator 

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 4 

============================================================================ 

 
1. BOARD ACTION: Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project 
 

Walter Marine of Orange Beach Alabama was the top ranked and only proposer for the 
Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project.  The ranking committee recommends the Board enter 
into a contract with Walter Marine as Walter Marine meets all contractor requirements of 
the RFP.  The grant award requires the deployment of at least 25 concrete prefabricated 
reef modules to construct three reef complexes in the Buddy Ward permit site located 
approximately 7.5 nautical miles off Bob Sikes Cut.  Walter Marine’s proposal will deploy 30 
reef modules for the contract price of $70,000.  The deployment is to occur prior to August 
1, 2021 and upon deployment, the GPS coordinates will be posted online via the 
Apalachicola Artificial Reef Association’s website: www.apalachicolareef.org.  
 
Board action to authorize the chairman’s signature on the attached contract with Walter 
Marine for the Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project. 

 
2. BOARD ACTION: Budget Resolution Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project  

 
Pursuant to FS 129.06, the attached budget resolution is needed to incorporate the 
unanticipated revenues from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
$60,000 state grant and the $10,000 contribution from the Apalachicola Artificial Reef 
Association into the 2020/2021 county budget.  The corresponding $70,000 expenditure 
line item will be 001.20.572.3401 titled Other Contract Services, Buddy Ward Reef Project. 
 
Board action to adopt the attached resolution to incorporate the unanticipated grant 
revenues into the county budget to fund the artificial reef project.   

 
3. BOARD ACTION: CARES Act Update, State Shared Gas Tax Revenues 

 
The Florida Department of Revenue distributes state shared revenue proceeds several 
months after the collection period.  The final state shared gas tax revenues were not 
received until December.  As the COVID pandemic shifted into crisis mode in late March of 
2020 - the state shared gas tax revenue estimates used in the budget process for 19/20 as 

243

A.



released by the State of Florida were short by $162,029.33.  As the CARES funds can be used 
to offset losses in revenue, it is requested that the BOCC authorize booking $162,029.33 of 
CARES funds in the Road and Bridge Fund to stabilize the Road Department budget which is 
funded primarily by gas taxes.  Should the BOCC approve, this will leave approximately 
$66,763.78 remaining from the 1st CARES allocation.  The CARES cost tracking workbook 
with the proposed entry is attached and the impacted shared revenues are listed in the 
table below. 
 

TAX DESCRIPTION 
REVENUE 
CODE BUDGETED 19/20 

ACTUAL 
RECEIVED 19/20 VARIANCE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 1/2 CENT 
SALES TAX 140.335.180  $         341,056.00   $         283,106.74   $   (57,949.26) 

9TH CENT GAS TAX 140.312.300  $           14,052.00   $           13,022.64   $     (1,029.36) 

COUNTY FUEL TAX 140.335.491  $         367,771.00   $         332,450.97   $   (35,320.03) 

CONSITUTIONAL FUEL TAX 140.335.492  $         835,985.00   $         768,254.32   $   (67,730.68) 

     $      1,558,864.00   $      1,396,834.67   $ (162,029.33) 

 
Board action to authorize booking Cares Revenues in the Road and Bridge Fund to offset losses 
in State Shared Gas Tax Revenue Proceeds. 
 
4. BOARD ACTION: State Attorney Information Technology Line Item 

 
Franklin County received a request from Mary Dean Barwick the Executive Director of the 
State Attorney’s Office to authorize a line-item budget amendment whereas the $6,500 
budgeted in the State Attorney’s information technology contractual services budget to be 
used for the funding of a shared information technology position.  There will be no change 
in total budget for the State Attorney’s Office. 
 
Board action to authorize the line-item budget amendment and authorize the attached 
memo be sent back to Ms. Barwick to confirm the change. 
 
 
 
 
 

244

A.



245

A.



246

A.



247

A.



248

A.



249

A.



 

 

RESOLUTION 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

 WHEREAS, Franklin County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and subject 

to Florida Statutes Chapter 129 regarding preparation of budgets, and 

 

 WHEREAS, FS 129.06 provides for budget amendments for unanticipated revenues, and 

 

 WHEREAS, Franklin County will receive unanticipated state grant revenues in the 

amount of $60,000.00 from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission and a contribution from 

the Apalachicola Artificial Reef Association of $10,000.00 for the payment of expenses relative 

to the Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project and 

 

 WHEREAS, said revenue is needed to pay certain expenditures incurred in Fiscal Year 

2020-2021 and 

 

 WHEREAS, FS 129.06(2)(d) provides for budget amendments in relation to receipts and 

expenditures of the nature that is received, and 

 

WHEREAS, this section requires the Board of County Commission to spread on its 

minutes the expenditures for the purpose of: 

 

001.20.572.3401 Other Contract Svcs-Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Proj. $70,000.00    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Franklin County Board of County 

Commissioners appropriates these unanticipated revenues in the amount of $70,000.00 in the 

GENERAL FUND in order to comply with FS129(2)(d). 

 

THIS RESOLUTION ADOPTED by the Franklin County Board of County 

Commissioners this 20th day of APRIL 2021. 

 

 

                                                                                      

        RICKY D. JONES, CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                                                    

MICHELE MAXWELL, CLERK OF COURTS 

 

                                                                          

 

250

A.



CONTRACT 

This contract made this 20th day of April, 2021 between, Franklin County, Florida, hereinafter called the COUNTY, and Walter 
Marine, hereinafter called the CONTRACTOR. 

WITNESSETH, that the County and the Contractor for the consideration state herein agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF WORK.  See attached accepted proposal per RFP 

2. THE CONTRACT PRICE.  The County shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of this contract the sum as specified 
in the attached accepted proposal for said work not to exceed $70,000.00.

3. DURATION OF CONTRACT.  The contract shall take effect upon final execution and terminate August 1, 2021.

4. ASSIGNMENTS. This contract shall not be sublet, transferred, assigned or otherwise conveyed by the Contractor without 
prior written approval of the County. 

5. TERMINATION OF THIS CONTRACT.  The County reserves the right to terminate or suspend the contract in whole or in 
part at any time the interest of the County requires such termination or suspension.  The County shall notify the 
Contractor in writing of such action with instructions as to the effective date of termination or suspension or specify the 
stage of work at which the action is to be taken.   

If the County determines that the performance of the Contractor is not satisfactory, the County shall have the option of: 
(a) immediately terminating the contract, or (b) notifying the Contractor of the deficiency with a requirement that the 
deficiency be corrected within a specified time.  Failure to correct such deficiencies in the specified time will result in the 
Contractor being declared in default and the contract may be terminated. 

If the Contract is terminated for cause before the performance is completed, the Contractor shall be paid for the work 
units satisfactorily deployed and accepted at the contract unit price.  

6. DEFAULT OF CONTRACT.  If the Contractor fails to begin the work under the Contract the County shall have full power or 
authority, without violating the contract, to take the work out of the hands of the Contractor and to declare the contract 
in default. 

7. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY.  The Contractor shall preserve from damage all property associated with, or which is in 
the vicinity of, or is in any way affected by the work.  This applies to public and private property and/or utilities.  Any 
damage occurring to such properties shall be immediately repaired at the expense of the Contractor. 

8. HOLD HARMLESS AND INSURANCE.  To the extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall Indemnify, defend, and save and 
hold harmless, the County, all of its officers, agents, or employees from all suits, actions, claims, demands, and liabilities 
of any nature whatsoever arising out of, because of, or due to breach of this agreement by the Contractor, its sub-
contractors, agents, or employees or due to any negligent act or employees.  Neither Contractor nor any of its 
subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property 
directly caused or resulting from the sole negligence of the County or any of its officers, agents, or employees. 

9. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. The Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance or at least $1,000,000 per 
person and property damage insurance, holding the County harmless for the contractor’s negligence.  The Contractor 
must provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance on all employees working unless otherwise exempt.  Certificates of such 
insurance shall be filed with the County prior to beginning work under this contract and shall be subject to approval for 
adequacy of protection. 

251

A.



10. WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE.  The Contractor shall provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance (including 

Longshoreman’s) in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and in amounts sufficient to secure the benefits of 

the Florida Worker’s Compensation Law of all of its employees.  The Contractor shall insure that the employees of a 

subcontractor are covered by similar insurance.  Worker’s Compensation exemptions will be accepted upon providing a 

current certificate, Articles of Incorporation, and a signed Franklin County Worker’s Compensation Hold Harmless 

Agreement.   

11. PERMITS, RULES & REGULATIONS.  It shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to secure all permits necessary to conduct 

the work in accordance with required regulations and to notify all applicable utilities or parties affected by the 

Contractor’s operations.  The Contractor shall further be responsible for all fees associated with the performance of this 

contract.  The Contractor agrees to abide by all applicable State and Federal Laws, rules, and regulations. 

12. ACCESS TO RECORDS.  The Contractor agrees to provide access to those records, books and documentations that 

pertain to this project during the project period and for a three (3) year period thereafter. 

13. AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL.  The Contractor is to contact the following for any questions regarding this project: Erin 

Griffith, Franklin County Fiscal Manager / Grants Coordinator, 34 Forbes Street, Apalachicola, FL 32320, (850) 653-9783 

Ext. 158, e-mail: erin@franklincountyflorida.com.   

14. LITIGATION.  If any litigation arises out of this Contract, venue of all such cases shall be Franklin County, Florida, and the 

prevailing party is entitled to a reasonable attorney fees and costs. 

15. SPECIAL CONDITIONS. See attached accepted proposal per RFP.  

In WITNESS WHEROF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument, as the 20th day of April 2021.    

FRANKLIN COUNTY  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

By:_____________________________ 
      Ricky D. Jones, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

______________________ 
Michele Maxwell, Clerk 

WALTER MARINE 

By:_____________________________ 
      David Walter, Contractor 

NOTARIZED SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR: 
________________________________ 

STATE OF ________, COUNTY OF ________  Print, Type of Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ______, _________ who is personally known or 
has produced ______________ as identification. 

252

A.



253

A.



254

A.



255

A.



256

A.



257

A.



258

A.



259

A.



260

A.



261

A.



262

A.



263

A.



264

A.

Sharon
Rectangle



265

A.



Walter Marine offers the following reefs for consideration to

Franklin County

2021 ARTIFICIAL REEF PROJECT

1
266

A.



General Information:
Walter Marine 

4651 SW 74th Terrace Dr.

Davie, FL 33314-4127

Main Office:

PO Box 998

22605 Andrews Lane

Orange Beach, AL 36561

251-979-2200

Fax 251-967-2022

SSN#422-58-7980

www.reefmaker.com

Established 1968

Sole Proprietorship-David Walter D/B/A Walter Marine

Florida Secretary of State Fictitious Name - Doc. G02128900237

Davie, FL business license #158

Walter Marine was founded by David Walter in 1968 as a vessel 

repair/shipyard. Walter Marine/Reefmaker was founded in 1986 

as the first commercial artificial reef builder on the Gulf Coast. In 

1996, we built our first manufactured reef. Our business has 

grown over the years to include the only Corps of Engineers 

approved snorkeling reef and an innovative wave attenuator/reef.  

We have franchises on the east coast of Florida & mid Atlantic 

states. To date we have deployed over 50,000 artificial reefs.

We have an active R&D department that continually experiments 

with new designs and uses for our products. Our reefs are 

designed for 100+ year life cycles. We produce different reef 

models for Snapper, Grouper, juvenile fish, estuary 

enhancement, snorkeling, oyster restoration and wave 

attenuation. In addition, we have deployed 24 ships as artificial 

reefs. 
2

267

A.

http://www.reefmaker.com/
Sharon
Rectangle
422-58-7980



PERSONNEL:

Name:  David Walter 

Owner/Operator of Walter 

Marine since founded in 1968. 

Time in present position:  52 

years

Total years experience in marine 

operations:  60 years

Veteran: United States Marine 

Corps 1966-1968, Disabled 

Vietnam Veteran, Honorably 

Discharged

Faulkner State College 1969-

1971

Licensed pilot single engine 

seaplane

Licensed Marine Habitat 

Scientist

100-ton USCG license (expired)

Seventeen years as owner and 

operator of a shipyard 

Thirty-four years experience as 

an artificial reef builder

3
268

A.



PERSONNEL:

Name:  Stewart Walter 

Current Manager of Walter 

Marine. 

Time in present position: 20 

years

32 years total experience with 

Walter Marine

Auburn University  2005-2006

Licensed 200-ton US Coast 

Guard Captain

Licensed Marine Habitat 

Scientist

4
269

A.



1. Material Specifications

Small Tetrahedron Reef

5
270

A.



Florida Limestone Reef by 

Walter Marine

6

3 3

271

A.



48

7

Figure 1

3 3

272

A.



Isometric View: NOT TO SCALE  

For Viewing Purpose Only

3" Thick Concrete Tetrahedron Reef  
With Florida Limestone Inbed

With Shorthened Panel For Turtle Egress

Total Surface Area: 382.11 sqft  

Outter Suface Area: 142.62 sqft

Volume: 37.77 cubic feet
Window Area: 16.15 sqft

note: window area does not  

inclue turtle exculsion area

8' Flar

1
Date: October 13, 2018

Sheet 1 of 3

A A

B B

2

1

1

A
SIZE DWG. NO.

SCALE: 1:64

SOLIDWORKS Educational Pro2duct. For Instructional Use Only.

Figure 2

8
273

A.



2 1
ITEM NO. PART NUMBER DESCRIPTION QTY.

2 8' flar long panel Made of Concrete and Limestone 2

2 8' flar short panel Made of Concrete and Limestone 1

B

3 8' flar holder Made of Concrete 1

B110.70

127.83

A 28.73

Top View 26.29

42.73

DETAIL A

SCALE 1 : 32

24.46

100.00 26.00

127.82

Front View

9.00

45.80

15.46

Isometric View

A
108.2
5

A

Bottom View

Scale: 1:64
Sheet 2 of 3

SOLIDWORKS Educational Pro2duct. For Instructional Use Only.

26.29
48.00

Figure 3

9274

A.



2 1
Window Holes Width (in) Height (in)

1 7.50 3.50
2 5.00 5.00
3 10.00 16.50
4 12.50 23.50

2

2.00

B 3
16.00

B

4 28.50

3.97 X10

4

35.00

1 1

2.99
16.00

23.50 19.00
14.50

19.00 23.50

1.75

2.50
30.00 2

4 19.00

4

35.00

A
3.97 X8

1

1

16.00

A

14.50 1.75

23.50 19.00 19.00 23.50

Scale: 1:64
Sheet 3 of 3

SOLIDWORKS Educational Pro2duct. For Instructional Use Only.

Figure 4

10
275

A.



Figure 5

11
276

A.



Figure 6

12
277

A.



Figure 6

13
278

A.



Current

Current

With Current Deflector

Without Current Deflector

Figure 7

Angled concrete 

member prevents 

scouring

14
279

A.



Florida Limestone Reef
MODULE SPECIFICATIONS: 

1. Reef is built under Patent No. 

7513711 for embedding  

limestone rocks into the sides of 

the reef. Florida Limestone rocks 

are the perfect PH for all marine 

life to live, even boring animals. 

It’s the only manufactured reef 

that can support all the marine 

life that lives on a natural reef. 

(See Figure 6) 

2. Each unit is 8’ tall with a 130” 

triangular base

3. Materials used: Concrete,

(See Figure 5) rebar & Florida 

Limestone rocks.

4. Detailed drawing (See Figure 

1-4) 

5. Three isosceles trapezoid 

panels are cast with protruding 

rebar.

6. The panels are 3 inches thick

7. The panels are set into a jig 

and the protruding rebar is 

welded together.

8. Molds are placed on the three 

corners and concrete is poured 

to seal the corners & connecting 

rebar.

15
280

A.



Florida Limestone Reef
MODULE SPECIFICATIONS: 

9. 270 feet of welded #4 (½ 

inch) rebar comprise rebar 

framework. Meets or exceeds 

DOT method of welding rebar. 

The heavy welded rebar 

framework makes the reef 

virtually indestructible. 

(See Figure 4)

10. #4,000 lb concrete mix

11. No external frame is used 

and no exposed rebar or 

metal.

12. Weight  5,500-6,000 lbs.

13. Each unit contains Florida 

Limestone rocks embedded, 

ranging from 4 inches to 8 

inches

Footprint is  a 130” X 130”’ X 

130” triangle = 51 Sq. Ft.

1. Two panels of the three-

sided structure contains 5 

windows & 1 panel has 4 for a 

total of 14, ranging from 60 to 

380  square inches

2. Reef has 48” requirement 

for turtle  escape. Opening is 

also large enough for easy 

diver ingress. 

16
281

A.



Florida Limestone Reef
MODULE SPECIFICATIONS: 

3. Each reef has 373 sq. feet 

of surface area outside 

4. Each reef has a total of 577 

sq. feet of surface area

5. Each reef has 176 cubic 

feet of volume.

6. All reefs will cure at least 

fourteen days before 

deployment

7.These units have  

demonstrated good stability 

during storm events over 

many years without settling, 

scouring, turning over or 

moving. See attached letter 

from “Fish Haven Services”

8. Deployed 75 units MBARA -

2007

9. Deployed 16 units 

Escambia Co. 2007

10. Deployed 225 units State 

of Mississippi – 2007

11. Deployed 365 units State 

of Alabama -2007

. 

17
282

A.



Florida Limestone Reef
MODULE SPECIFICATIONS: 

12. All the above units have 

preformed as advertised with 

no scouring or settling. See 

attached documentation “Fish 

Haven Services”

13. Designed for 100+ year 

life cycle. Of thousands built 

since 2006, we never had a 

structural failure. 

15. Reefs are designed with 

anti-scouring device. See 

attached documentation. (See 

Figure 7)

18
283

A.



EXCEEDS REQUIREMENT FOR TURTLE 

ESCAPE

19
284

A.



LIFTING & DEPLOYMENT IS DONE 

WITH REMOVALABLE LIFTING STRAPS

20
285

A.



TAPERED WIDE FOOT PREVENTS 

SCOURING & SETTLING

21
286

A.



22

2. Price

35 Florida limestone reefs = 
$70,000

287

A.



3. Available Deployment 

Resources

23
288

A.



Walter Marine’s Yard 

Located at 22605 

Andrews Lane, Orange 

Beach, AL

24
289

A.



1. Walter Marine owns 521 ft. of

waterfront on the Intracoastal  

canal at 22505 Andrews Lane, 

Orange Beach, AL.

2. Facility & reef modules are 

available for inspection at any 

time.  

3. Vessel Specifications:

MARANATHA ll:

➢ 170’ X 39’ Offshore supply 

vessel refitted in 2017 for

deploying artificial reefs.

➢ Dry-dock:  February 2020.

➢ 3000 hp twin engine.

➢ Kongsberg Dynamic Positioning 

System able to hold position 

while deploying

➢ 85-ton crane

➢ Survey Grade GPS unit 

mounted to crane boom for 

recording deployment 

coordinates.

➢ 2 Furuno Radars

➢ Nobeltec Electronic Charting –

Linked to ComNav AIS Collision 

Avoidance

➢ Kongsberg Auto Pilot

➢ Kongsberg weather Station

Available Deployment Resources:

25
290

A.



Deployment Capability: M/V 

MARANATHA ll Dynamic Positioning

crane

3 m

3 m

3
 m

3
 m

Kongsberg computers 

take control of the 

vessel’s main engines 

and bow thruster and 

using GPS, hold the 

vessel within 3 meters 

of the desired location 

and within 1 degree of 

heading

Survey 

grade 

GPS on 

boom

26
291

A.



➢ FCV 1220L Furno Sounder 

200 KHZ Processor

➢ Remote mounted thermal 

imagining camera

➢ 12 Knots 

➢ 250 KW generator capacity 

➢ 2400 sq. feet of deck space

➢ 350 tons deck-load capacity 

➢ 13,000 gallons potable water 

➢ 25,000 gallons fuel

4. Our equipment & vessels 

are properly licensed, 

certified and approved as 

required for this project. Land 

operated equipment to 

include, but not limited to:

A. Two (2) 10K tele-handler 

forklifts.

B. One (1) 10K Case front 

loader forklift. 

C. Two (2) 20-ton rough 

terrain cranes

D. One (1) 65-ton Grove 

rough terrain crane

Available Deployment Resources:

27
292

A.



E. One (1) International 

front-end loader

F. Four (4) Welding 

machines    

Other Floating Equipment:

A. 170' X 39' X 3' draft spud 

barge w/110-ton Lima 

crane

B. M/V MARANATHA 114’ X 

30’ X 5.5’ draft w/20-ton 

crane

5. Specialized Equipment:

A. Other equipment may 

include specialized 

equipment for loading and 

deploying the reefs.

6.Walter Marine owns all 

the equipment needed for 

the manufacture and 

deployment. 

7. No subcontractors are 

used. 

8. All equipment and 

personnel are available for 

this project. 

Available Deployment Resources:

28
293

A.



4. Task Plan

29
294

A.



Deployment Plan
Work Force

1. We have a work force of 12. 

Some wear more than one 

hat. Most are highly skilled 

with many years associated 

with Walter Marine. 

Department heads include: 

Concrete Foreman, Machinist, 

Welders, Fabrication, R & D, 

Mechanic, USCG Captains, 

Mate, Engineer, Deck Hand, 

Machine Operator and several 

general helpers. 

2. However, our company is 

small and micro-managed by 

David & Stewart Walter that 

oversee and check each 

phase of operation and serve 

as quality control officers, 

environmental protection 

officers and safety officers. 

Manufacture

1. Walter Marine has 

numerous concrete molds, 

jigs, welding facilities, and 

equipment to manufacture 

the requested modules.

2. The reef units are 

manufactured and stored 

near the bulkhead for loading 

onto the desired vessel.
30

295

A.



Deployment Plan
Loading/transport

1. Walter Marine will consult with Franklin 

County Beach officials concerning a 

suitable day to inspect.

2. Walter Marine will fill out and submit the 

Cargo Manifest to the owner 14 days 

prior to loading.

3. The vessel will lift, via crane, the reefs 

from the shoreline onto the vessel and 

secure for transport. 

4. Vessels are fitted with wooded decks to 

cushion and prevent movement. 

5. MARANATHA ll is capable of transporting   

12 Super Reefs, or 120 Florida 

Limestone, or 43 Grouper Reefs or 

combinations for deployment at a time. 

7. After the vessel is loaded, the QC 

inspector will check for damaged units 

and order replacements if found. The 

safety inspector will come after that and 

check for stability and security of the 

material on deck. 

8. A suitable day will be chosen in 

coordination with Franklin County 

officials

9. Walter Marine will provide an air-

conditioned stateroom, food and 

comfortable arrangements for an 

observer.
31

296

A.



Deployment Plan

32

Deployment

1. The actual setting of the reef 

modules will be arranged carefully 

with Franklin County Beach officials, 

(buoys, small vessels, positions, 

communications, etc.)

2. If required a buoy will be placed at 

each individual reef site.

3. The vessel will maneuver next to 

the coordinates using Dynamic 

Positioning. This is a computer 

program that holds the vessel’s 

position and heading within 3 

meters. 

4. Corrections to the vessel’s 

position will be coordinated via radio 

between the crane operator and the 

captain. 

5. The crane operator will place each 

reef on the coordinates as directed 

by the computer operator in the 

wheelhouse using the GPS unit on 

the cranes boom.

6. Reef locations will be recorded on 

the GPS computer program. 

7. Coordinates will be delivered to 

Franklin County Beach. 

297

A.



Permits, Licenses, etc.

All of Walter Marine’s vessels and 

personnel are properly licensed 

and/or approved for all artificial 

reef deployment operations. 

Florida does not require a 

contractor license for artificial 

reefs. Walter Marine has a 

properly licensed branch office in 

Davie, FL (enclosed) and is 

properly registered with the State 

of  Florida, Department of State 

(enclosed) to do business in 

Florida.

Walter Marine will have onboard 

the latest NOAA Charts, Coast 

Guard Documentation, Latest copy 

of “Notice to Mariners”, Corps 

Permit, Cargo Manifest and all 

other necessary documentation 

for operation inland and offshore 

for the purposes of building 

artificial reefs. 

One crewmember will be 

designated to watch for turtles or 

manatees and suspend 

operations should any be sited.     

Deployment Capability:

33
298

A.



5. Schedule of 

Construction Operations

34
299

A.



Schedule of Operation:
1. Total estimated days of 

manufacturing, loading, travel 

& deployment is 90 working 

days. 

2. Estimated number of 

separate trips is 1.

3. Loading will take a total of 

3 days .

4. Transit = 19 hours.

5. Days at sea = 1.

6. MARANATHA ll is capable of 

transporting  up to 12 Super 

Reefs, 120 Florida Limestone 

& 43 Grouper Reefs or 

combinations for deployment 

at a time. 

7. Estimated date of 

completion is within 90 days.

.
. 

35
300

A.



Route

36

Pensacola 

Pass Sea 

Buoy

Transit Time:

Loading Site to Pensacola Pass 3.0 hours

Pensacola Pass to Deployment site 16 hours

TOTAL TRANSIT TIME = 19 hours 

301

A.



6. Experience and 
Understanding

37
302

A.



38
303

A.



39
304

A.



40
305

A.



41
306

A.



42
307

A.



43
308

A.



44
309

A.



References/Qualifications:  
Walter Marine
Patent holder No. 6,042,300 Artificial Reef.  
Patent holder No. 6,824,327 B1 Artificial Reef
Patent holder No. 7,513,711 Artificial Marine Reef 
Inducement  Patent holder No. 7,827,937 Marine Line Form 
Habitat  Patent holder No. 9,339,017 B1 Living Wave Barrier
David Walter D/B/A Walter Marine was founded in 1968. It has remained in the same hands  
as a sole proprietorship repairing vessels and owning and operating a shipyard until 1986. In  
1986 Walter Marine became the first commercial artificial reef builder in the State of  
Alabama. By the year 2021 Walter Marine had deployed over 51,000 artificial reefs and  
today is the largest deployer of artificial reefs in the United States. It holds five patents for  
artificial reefs. In addition, Walter Marine has prepared and deployed 24 ships in the Gulf of  
Mexico.
Executive Summary:
Walter Marine deployed materials of opportunity until 1996. In 1996 Walter Marine began  
designing and manufacturing artificial reefs. The majority were undocumented private reefs  
in the State of Alabama and Florida Panhandle. Included below is a list of documented  
public reefs.

Previous Experience:

1990
Escambia County, Florida:
May 29, 1990 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Contract with Escambia County Florida for the donation, preparation, cleaning, delivery and  
sinking of a tugboat “Sylvia” cleaning.This vessel was purchased cleaned, prepared and  
deployed by Walter Marine.
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us for 2003  
contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member since  
1988 (850) 433-4319.
$25,000

45
310

A.

mailto:robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us


Escambia County, Florida:
June 15, 1990 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Purchase Order #09100. Contract with Escambia County Florida for turnkey project.
“Furnishing, cleaning (to all required agency specifications-Coast Guard, U. S. Army Corps of  
Engineers, Florida Department of Environmental Regulation, and Florida Department of
Natural Resources) one LCM donated by Gulf Islands National Seashore and one 56’ Tugboat  
“Heron””. The LCM donated by Gulf Islands National Seashore was sunk at their dock.
Walter Marine raised the vessel without incident and towed it its facility. The Heron was  
located at Radcliff Material in Mobile, Alabama. It was purchased by Walter Marine, raised  
and towed to Walter Marine’s facility. Both vessels were cleaned, prepared and deployed by  
Walter Marine. Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator,  
(robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) for 2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard
Escambia County Recreational board member since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$30,000

Escambia County, Florida:  
1990
Funding - State of Florida
Contract with Escambia County, Florida for the preparation and deployment of
the Tugboat “Phillip” (to all required agency specifications-Coast Guard, U. S. Army Corps of  
Engineers, Florida Department of Environmental Regulation, and Florida Department of  
Natural Resources). This vessel was purchased cleaned, prepared and deployed by Walter  
Marine.
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us)for  
2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member  
since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$25,000

State of Alabama  
1990
Contract with Alabama Department of Conservation for the preparation and deployment of  
a US Coast Guard buoy tender. Tender was towed from Mobile, AL Coast Guard Base and  
cleaned to all required agency specifications-Coast Guard, U. S. Army Corps of Engineers,  
Florida Department of Environmental Regulation, and Florida Department of Natural  
Resources) and deployed without incident. This vessel was deployed by Walter Marine.
Contact: Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
Payment in form of material/equipment removed from vessel
$- Records lost in flood

46
311

A.



1991
Escambia County, Florida:
January 1, 1991 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Purchase Order #03961. Contract with Escambia County Florida for turnkey project for
deployment of tugboat “Born Again” and a FAA tower (to all required agency specifications-
Coast Guard, U. S. Army Corps of Engineers, Florida Department of Environmental  
Regulation, and Florida Department of Natural Resources). This vessel was purchased  
cleaned, prepared and deployed by Walter.
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us)for  
2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member  
since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$25,000

Escambia County, Florida:
May 16, 1991 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Purchase Order #06358. Contract with Escambia County Florida for preparation,  
transportation and deployment of the dredge “Avocet” (to all required agency  
specifications-Coast Guard, U. S. Army Corps of Engineers, Florida Department of  
Environmental Regulation, and Florida Department of Natural Resources). This vessel was  
purchased cleaned, prepared and deployed by Walter Marine.
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) for  
2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member  
since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$55,000

1993
Escambia County, Florida:
April 23, 1993 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Purchase Order #5305. Contract with Escambia County Florida for the design, Manufacture,  
transportation, deployment and study of 12 experimental reef modules.
Deployed on time and regular dive reports were issued for 3 years.
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) for  
2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member  
since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$1,500

Escambia County, Florida:
1993
Funding - State of Florida
Purchased, cleaned & deployed 180’ ship “Pete Tide”

47
312

A.



Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) for  
2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member  
since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$55,000

1995
U. S. Coast Guard:
June 1995 completion date/on time  
Funding - United States Coast Guard
Contract #DTCG84-95-R-HYU469. Walter Marine worked as a subcontractor under Oil  
Recovery Company for the preparation, cleaning and deployment of a 3,000 ton vessel  
“Antares”. This is one of the largest vessels deployed as an artificial reef in the Gulf of  
Mexico. This vessel was cleaned, prepared and deployed by Walter Marine.
Contact: Oil Recovery Company President Paul 251-432-4223
$50,000

1999
U. S. Navy:
May 17, 1999 completion date/on time  
Funding - United States Navy
Purchase Order #N61331-99-M-1860 and N61331-99-M-1862. Towing and disposal of two  
Navy Ships YDT-14 & YDT-15, Navy Base - Coastsysta Dahlgren in Panama City, Florida.
Cleaned, prepared and deployed vessels in Escamiba County's reef site.
Ed Delanoy at the Craft Office 850-234-5230 or Mr. Art Ducette, NDSTC Code 09, Naval  
Diving and Salvage Training Center, 350 Craig Rd., Panama City, FL 32407-7016.
$28,000 plus equipment and material removed from vessels

2001
Military Sealift Command N00031-01-C-1005
February 2001 completion date/on time
Walter Marine ferried two Naval vessels, 131 ft. YTB tugs from Virginia to Guantanamo Bay,  
Cuba
Achille Broennimann 202-685-5965
$150,000

Military Sealift Command N00031-01-C-1005
July 2001 completion date/on time
Walter Marine ferried naval vessel "C-Note" from Virginia to Roosevelt Roads, Puerto Rica  
Achille Broennimann 202-685-5965
$31,000

48
313

A.



U. S. Army Corps of Engineers:
November 13, 2001 completion date/on time
Evans-Hamilton, Inc. Purchase Order # 6000-28-11. Remove and replace a wave action POD  
located Gulf of Mexico near Alabama Point. This project is ongoing and Walter Marine has  
provided this service three times since 11-13-2001. Contact Larry G. Caviness U. S. Army  
Corps of Engineer Research & Development Center, Vicksburg, Mississippi, 601-634-2338
$5,000

2002
Florida Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission:
December 17, 2002 completion date/on time
FWC Contract #FWCC-02097. Designed, manufactured & deployed 227  
artificial reefs as pictured below. Patent holder No. 6,824,327 B1 Artificial Reef  
Model: Florida Special "FSMR"
Contact: Keith Mille, Biological Administrator
Division of Marine Fisheries Management - Artificial Reef Program  
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
620 South Meridian Street, Box 4B2  
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600
web: http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/ 
office: (850) 617-9633
mobile: (850) 509-2974
fax: (850) 487-4847
email: keith.mille@myfwc.com
$ Record destroyed in flood

2003
Bay County, FL
Feburary19, 2003 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
57 "Florida Specials"
Allen Golden  
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173
$ record destroyed in flood

Destin, Okaloosa County
March 24, 2003 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
56 "Florida Special" reefs
Contact Cindy Halsey, Board of County Commissioners

49
314

A.

http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/
mailto:keith.mille@myfwc.com
mailto:agolden@baycountyfl.gov


602C North Pearl St., Crestview, FL 32536 850-651-7394
$ record destroyed in flood

Escambia County, Florida:
May 12, 2003 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Purchase Order #231562-1. Contract with Escambia County, Florida for the design,  
manufacture & deployment of 113 "Florida Special" artificial reefs.
Contact: Trey Goodman at the Parks and Recreation Department of Escambia for projects  
from 1990 to 1993. Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator  
(robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) for 2003 contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard
Escambia County Recreational board member since 1988 (850) 433-4319.
$ record destroyed in flood

Taylor County, Florida
2002 & 2003 completion date/on time
Sub-contacted to ARI. Precision deployment of ARI reef units. Contact Clay Olsen at (850)  
838-3508.
$ record destroyed in flood

Organization for Artificial Reefs (OAR):
2003 Contracted to ARI. Precision deployment of ARI reef units. Contact Alan Richardson -
(grouperboy@yahoo.comOAR)
2545 Blairstone Pines Drive Tallahassee, FL 32301  
at (850) 656-2114.
$ record destroyed in flood

2004
Destin, Okaloosa County, Florida  
June 8, 2004 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
60 "Florida Special" reefs
Contact Cindy Halsey, Board of County Commissioners  
602C North Pearl St., Crestview, FL 32536 850-651-7394
$ record destroyed in flood

2005
Martin County, Florida
June, 2005 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
60 “Florida Specials. Contact: Kathy
Fitzpatrick, PE, Coastal Engineer, Martin County Engineering Department

50
315

A.



2401 SE Monterey Rd., Stuart, FL 34996
$ record destroyed in flood

Mexico Beach, FL
January 11, 2005 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
33 "Florida Special" reefs  
Contact Robert Cox 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$ record destroyed in flood

Okaloosa County, Florida
June 2005 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida $100,000 project
Okaloosa County Reef development Project 2004, “Starfish Artificial Reef”  
Designed, manufactured & deployed 120 "Florida Special" artificial reefs  
Contact Cindy Halsey, Board of County Commissioners
602C North Pearl St., Crestview, FL 32536 850-651-7394
$ record destroyed in flood

2006
Escambia County, Florida
June 2006 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Contract # PD05-06.064
Designed, manufactured & deployed 20 "Florida Special" reefs. Contact Robert Turpin  
Escambia County Reef Coordinator (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) 850-595-4395
$ record destroyed in flood

State of Alabama
2004 – 2006 completion date/on time
Designed, manufactured & deployed 460 “Florida Specials”. Contact: Craig Newton  
(Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson (Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov)  
251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P. O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL  
36547
$ record destroyed in flood

Santa Rosa County, Florida
June 2006 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
30 “Florida Limestone” reefs
Contact Contact: Keith Mille, Biological Administrator
Division of Marine Fisheries Management - Artificial Reef Program

51
316

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission  
620 South Meridian Street, Box 4B2
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600
web: http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/ 
office: (850) 617-9633
mobile: (850) 509-2974
fax: (850) 487-4847
email: keith.mille@myfwc.com
$ record destroyed in flood

City of Destin, Florida
June 2006 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
RFP # P06-01A“Barnacle” Artificial Reef Project
Designed, manufactured & deployed 30 “Florida Special” reefs Contact Cindy Halsey 850-
651-7394 or Scott 850-978-0009
$ record destroyed in flood

Okaloosa County, Florida
September 2006 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Purchased, cleaned & deployed 129’ Tugboat
Contact Cindy Halsey 850-651-7394 or Scott 850-978-0009
$ record destroyed in flood

2007
Mexico Artificial Reef Program
2007 completion date/on time
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed 75 Florida Limestone reef units  
Mexico Artificial Reef Association
Contact Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$ record destroyed in flood

Escambia County, Florida
April 2007 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Deployed approx. 200 tons of pipe + designed, manufactured & deployed 16 Florida  
Limestone reef units
Contact Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator
(robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) 850-595-4395
$ - record destroyed in flood

52
317

A.

http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/
mailto:keith.mille@myfwc.com
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


State of Mississippi
July, 2007 completion date/on time
Designed, manufactured & deployed 240 reef units (15 Florida Specials & 225 Florida  
Limestone)
Contact: James Sanders - (James.Sanders@dmr.ms.gov) Artificial Reef Bureau Director |  
Office of Marine Fisheries Mississippi Department of Marine Resources |dmr.ms.gov  
1141 Bayview Avenue | Biloxi, MS 39530 Office: 228-523-4089
$ - record destroyed in flood

State of Alabama
2007 completion date/on time
Designed, manufactured & deployed (50 Florida Specials & 365 Florida Limestone)
Contact Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$ - record destroyed in flood

State of Alabama
2007 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
(40 Florida Specials & 20 Florida Limestone)
Contact Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$ - record destroyed in flood

Panama City, Bay County, FL - Organization of Artificial Reefs
2007 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
25 "Florida Limestone" reefs
Contact Alan Richardson - (grouperboy@yahoo.comOAR)  
2545 Blairstone Pines Drive Tallahassee, FL 32301
at (850) 656-2114.
$ - record destroyed in flood

2008
State of Mississippi
2008 completion date/on time
Designed, manufactured & deployed 60 Florida Limestone reef units
Contact James Sanders - (James.Sanders@dmr.ms.gov) Artificial Reef Bureau Director |  
Office of Marine Fisheries Mississippi Department of Marine Resources |dmr.ms.gov 1141  
Bayview Avenue | Biloxi, MS 39530
Office: 228-523-4089
$ - record destroyed in flood

53
318

A.



Escambia County, Florida  
2008 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
30 Florida Limestone reef units
Contact Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator  
(robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) 850-595-4395
$ - record destroyed in flood

Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association
2008 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
100+ Florida Special – Florida Limestone reef units  
Robert L. Cox Jr
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association 850-819-2333
$ - record destroyed in flood

2009
State of Mississippi
2009 completion date/on time
Purchased, cleaned and deployed 85’ Shrimp boat
Contact James Sanders - (James.Sanders@dmr.ms.gov) Artificial Reef Bureau Director |  
Office of Marine Fisheries Mississippi Department of Marine Resources |dmr.ms.gov 1141  
Bayview Avenue | Biloxi, MS 39530 Office: 228-523-4089
Vessel was acquired by Walter Marine and cleaned to U.S. army Corps of Engineers/U.S.  
Coast Guard specifications, towed to site in Gulf of Mexico and sunk. The vessel was  
anchored and sunk offshore from Biloxi, MS.
$25,000

City of Mexico Beach
June 2009 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
29 Florida special & 26 Grouper reefs
Robert L. Cox Jr
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association 850-819-2333
$ - record destroyed in flood

Escambia County
June 2009 completion date/on time

54
319

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Deployed residue of ARI reefs and designed, manufactured & deployed 3 Florida Limestone  
& 1 grouper reef
Contact Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator  
(robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) 850-595-4395
$ - record destroyed in flood

State of Alabama
June 2009 completion date/on time
Deployed 2 barge loads of concrete rubble from old Gulf State Park fishing pier  
Contact Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$ - record destroyed in flood

State of Alabama
July 2009 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
12 Florida Limestone reefs next to new Gulf State Park Fishing Pier  
Contact Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$ - record destroyed in flood

City of Gulf Breeze
September 1, 2009 completion date/on time  
400 ft. EcoSystems Wave Barrier
Heather Reed  
Project Manager
The City of Gulf Breeze Deadman’s Island Restoration Project
Ecological Consulting Services Inc  
38 S Blue Angel Pkwy #346  
Pensacola , FL 32506
850-417-7008
850-346-2073
$201,000

2010
State of Alabama project:
March, 2010 completion date/on time
Manufactured 546 Wave Attenuator Devices – 13,000 lbs ea. and delivered to Bayou  
LaBatre, AL
J & W Marine Enterprises, Inc.
Wayne Eldridge, President 251-751-4127
$546,000

55
320

A.



Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association  
September 28, 2010 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
1 Florida special, 18 Florida limestone & 3 EcoSystems on pedestals  
Robert L. Cox Jr
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association (850) 647-6169
$-Record destroyed in flood

2011
Organization of Artificial Reefs
May 3, 2011 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
15 Florida Special Artificial Reefs
Contact Alan Richardson - (grouperboy@yahoo.comOAR)  
2545 Blairstone Pines Drive Tallahassee, FL 32301
at (850) 656-2114.
$-Record destroyed in flood

Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association  
May 5, 2011 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed
22 Florida Limestone, 8 EcoSystems & 5 Grouper artificial reef units  
Robert L. Cox Jr
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association (850) 647-6169
$-Record destroyed in flood

Florida Fish & Wildlife FWC 09/10-102  
May 23, 2011 completion date/on time
Manufactured & deployed 1800 Artificial reefs. Designed and built a device to  
deploy 4 units at a time maintaining 6 inches clearance between.
Contact: Keith Mille, Biological Administrator
Division of Marine Fisheries Management - Artificial Reef Program  
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
620 South Meridian Street, Box 4B2  
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600
web: http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/
office: (850) 617-9633
mobile: (850) 509-2974
fax: (850) 487-4847

56
321

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/


email: keith.mille@myfwc.com
Bill Lindberg - WJLindberg@mail.ifas.ufl.edu 
352-392-9617 ext 239 & 352-871-5104
Funding - State of Florida $508,333.00 .

City of Gulf Breeze, Florida
June, 2011 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
Deadman’s Island EcoSystems Living Wave Barrier
Heather Reed  
Project Manager
The City of Gulf Breeze Deadman's Island Restoration Project
Ecological Consulting Services Inc  
38 S Blue Angel Parkway #346
Pensacola FL 32506
850-417-7008
850-346-2073 (cell preferred)
$325,000
Texas Parks & Wildlife Department
Contract 802-11-13077
April 15, 2011 to August 31, 2011 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
200 “Florida Specials” & 200 “Florida Limestone” reef units offshore.
Dale Shively 512-389-4686
$498,000

Escambia County, Florida
July, 2011 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured and deployed
33 EcoSystems Snorkeling Reefs on Pensacola
Beach. Designed and built a special device to install the reefs on 20' pilings driven  
Piling without the use of divers
Contact Robert Turpin (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us) 850-595-4395
$60,000

Okaloosa County
July 28, 2011 completion date/on time  
Design, Manufacture and Deploy
32 Florida Limestone reefs  
Scott Henson 
shenson@co.okaloosa.fl.us
$48,400

2012
Mexico Artificial Reef Association

57
322

A.

mailto:keith.mille@myfwc.com
mailto:WJLindberg@mail.ifas.ufl.edu
mailto:shenson@co.okaloosa.fl.us


April, 2012 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
31 Florida Limestone
10 EcoSystems
13 Grouper Reefs  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$-Destroyed in flood

Mexico Beach, FL
April 6, 2012 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
3 piling mounted EcoSystems
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$3,000

Santa Rosa County
May 21, 2012 & September 21, 2012 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
135 EcoSystem Snorkeling Reefs  
Mark Griffith 
mark.griffith.home@gmail.com 
850.677.1875
$199,995

Okaloosa County
August 7, 2012 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
40 Florida Limestone Reefs
Scott Henson 
shenson@co.okaloosa.fl.us 
850-978-0009
$-Record destroyed in flood

Panama City, Bay County, FL
July 10, 2012 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
20 Florida Limestone, 10 Grouper reefs & 10 EcoSystems
units.
Allen Golden  
agolden@baycountyfl.gov

58
323

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:mark.griffith.home@gmail.com
mailto:shenson@co.okaloosa.fl.us
mailto:agolden@baycountyfl.gov


205-567-0173
$63,000

2013
Yellow River Marsh Preserve
March 2013 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
1000' EcoSystem Wave Attenuators  
Earth Ethics 850-549-7472
$349,275

Mexico Beach
April, 2013 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
10 EcoSystems Reefs
28 Florida Limestone
10 Grouper  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$79,950

Alabama Reef Foundation
June, 2013 completion date/on time
Purchased, cleaned and deployed 271 ship “The Lulu”
Vince Lucido, PE & PLS
Lucido Engineering and Surveying, LLC  
24693 Canal Rd. Suite A
Orange Beach, AL 36561
251 967 3250 office 
VinceLucido@Lucidoeng.com
$500,000

Alabama Department of Conservation  
July 2013 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
220 - 6’ Florida Limestone reef units
34 - EcoSystems reef units mounted on pilings
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$374,000

59
324

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:VinceLucido@Lucidoeng.com


State of Alabama
August 2013 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
30 Super reefs
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$402,000

State of Mississippi
September, 2013 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
50 Florida Limestone reefs.
James Sanders - (James.Sanders@dmr.ms.gov) Artificial Reef Bureau Director | Office of  
Marine Fisheries Mississippi Department of Marine Resources |dmr.ms.gov 1141 Bayview  
Avenue | Biloxi, MS 39530 Office: 228-523-4089
$96,000

2014
Alabama Poseidon's Playground
January, 2014 completion date/on time
Walter Marine has an ongoing contract to deploy various structures in this area. It has  
included statues and 6 ft. versions of Florida Limestone with famous actors handprints.  
Vince Lucido, PE & PLS
Lucido Engineering and Surveying, LLC  
24693 Canal Rd. Suite A
Orange Beach, AL 36561  
251 967 3250 office
VinceLucido@Lucidoeng.com
$4,300

Escambia County
March 12, 2014 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
Snorkeling reef on Perdido Key
33 Reef units
Contact Robert Turpin 850-595-4395 (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us)
$60,000

City of Mexico Beach
April 2, 2014 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed 15 Grouper/EcoSystems  
33 Florida Limestone
10 Super reefs

60
325

A.

mailto:VinceLucido@Lucidoeng.com


Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$60,000

MBARA
April 2, 2014 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
3 Florida Limestone
1 Grouper reef  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$3,400

Panama City, Bay County
June 10, 2014 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
18 Florida Limestone & 18 Grouper reefs  
Allen Golden
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173
$60,000

Panama City, Bay County
June 30, 2014 completion date/on time  
Deployed two fighter jets
Allen Golden  
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173
$22,500

Organization for Artificial Reefs
June 20, 2014 completion date/on time
4 Florida Limestone
2 Super Reefs
4 Grouper reefs
Alan Richardson alan@talcor.com
$43,050

City of St. Marks
October 23, 2014 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
68 Lingberg cubes & 18 EcoSystems reefs.
Contact Alan Richardson - (grouperboy@yahoo.comOAR)  
2545 Blairstone Pines Drive Tallahassee, FL 32301

61
326

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:agolden@baycountyfl.gov
mailto:agolden@baycountyfl.gov
mailto:alan@talcor.com


at (850) 656-2114.
$67,000

Texas Parks & Wildlife
September 18, 2014 completion date/on time  
155 ft. Ship deployed
Dale Shively [Dale.Shively@tpwd.texas.gov]
$490,000

City of Carrabelle
July 26, 2015 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
30 Florida Limestone
1 Super Reef
Alan Richardson alan@talcor.com
$67,000

2015
City of Mexico Beach
April 8, 2015 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed 18 Florida Limestone  
10 Super reefs
8 Grouper Reefs
2 EcoSystems units on pilings  
1 Florida Special
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$165,000

City of Mexico Beach
April 8, 2015 completion date/on time
Designed, manufactured & deployed 18 Florida Limestone  
4 Florida Limestone reefs
4 EcoSystems units on pilings  
1 Florida Special
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$16,995

City of Carrabelle
July 26, 2015 completion date/on time

62
327

A.

mailto:Dale.Shively@tpwd.texas.gov
mailto:alan@talcor.com
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
6 Florida Limestone
8 EcoSystems on Pedestals  
12 Lindberg boxes
Alan Richardson alan@talcor.com
$55,000

Ocean Engineering cable reels
August 10, 2015 completion date/on time  
Large 50 ton Cable Reels
Deployed in MBARA reef sites
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$73,000

MoBay Gas Platform
August, 2015 completion date/on time  
Disassemble, transport & deploy a gas platform.
Reef was paid for by Mobay LLC and deployed as a public reef for the State of  
Alabama.
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov)
$1,350,000

Escambia County
August 24, 2015 completion date/on time  
Design, manufacture and depoy
12 Florida Limestone
Contact Robert Turpin 850-595-4395 (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us)
$19,200

City of Gulf Breeze
September 11, 2015 completion date/on time  
238 EcoSystems Wave Barrier units
Design, manufacture and depoy  
Heather Reed
Project Manager
The City of Gulf Breeze Deadman’s Island Restoration Project
Ecological Consulting Services Inc  
38 S Blue Angel Pkwy #346  
Pensacola , FL 32506
850-417-7008
850-346-2073
$423,500

63
328

A.

mailto:alan@talcor.com
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Iberia Soil & Water Conservation District
November 14, 2015 completion date/on time
Design, manufacture and install 500 ft. of EcoSystems Wave Attenuator at Shark IslandJoey  
Breaux
Agri. Enviro. Specialist/Admin. Coord.  
LDAF/Office of Soil & Water Conservation  
225.922.1269
$677,156

South Walton Artificial Reef Association
Oct. 7, 2015 completion date/on time
58 EcoSystems Snorkeling Reefs on Grayton Beach  
SWARA, Inc. P.O. Box 2482 Santa Rosa Beach, FL 32459  
info@waltonreefs.org
$162,250

2016
Escambia County, Florida
January 14, 2016 completion date/on time  
Deployed tugboat Ocean Wind
Contact Robert Turpin 850-595-4395 (robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us)
$18,000

Alabama Department of Conservation  
March 22, 2016 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed
150 - 8’ Florida Limestone reef units
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$315,000

City of Mexico Beach
May 11, 2016 completion date/on time  
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
18 Florida Limestone
2 Grouper Reefs
1 Florida Special
8 coops
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$57,687

64
329

A.

mailto:info@waltonreefs.org
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Bay County
May 14, 2016 completion date/on time
Designed, manufactured & deployed 5 Super Reefs  
Allen Golden
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173
$60,000

City of Mexico Beach
May 11, 2016 completion date/on time  
Funding - State of Florida
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
31 Florida Limestone
15 Grouper Reefs  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$84,990

Alabama Department of Conservation
June 30, 2016 completion date/on time
Deployed state supplied 7,289 tons of concrete culvert/boxes  
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$121,000

State of Mississippi
June 16, 2016 completion date/on time
Built molds according to state supplied design, manufactired and deployed  
229 Juvenile reef Fish Habitats
James Sanders - (James.Sanders@dmr.ms.gov) Artificial Reef Bureau Director | Office of  
Marine Fisheries Mississippi Department of Marine Resources |dmr.ms.gov 1141 Bayview  
Avenue | Biloxi, MS 39530 Office: 228-523-4089
$194,250

Alabama Department of Conservation
Sept 15, 2016 completion date/on time
Deployed 50 Super Reefs & 125 EcoSystems on Pilings
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$1,041,000

65
330

A.

mailto:agolden@baycountyfl.gov
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Ocean Engineering cable reels
Sept. 17, 2016 completion date/on time  
Five Large 50 ton Cable Reelsl
Deployed in MBARA reef sites  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com
$40,000

City of Mexico Beach
Oct 14, 2016 completion date/on time  
Funding - NRDA
Designed, manufactured & deployed
102 Florida Limestone
20 Super Reefs  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$427,174

City of Mexico Beach
Oct 15, 2016 completion date/on time  
Funding - NRDA
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
54 Florida Limestone
10 Super Reefs  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$219,004

Alabama Department of Conservation
Oct. 26, 2016 completion date/on time
Deployed 2 Super Reefs
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$26,025

City of Mexico Beach
Nov. 16, 2016 completion date/on time  
Funding - NRDA
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
66 Florida Limestone
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$119,999.88

66
331

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


2017

Alabama Department of Conservation  
Feb. 15, 2017 completion date/on time  
Deployed 132 EcoSystem Reefs on pilings
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$400,000

City of Mexico Beach
Feb. 17, 2017 completion date/on time  
Funding - Local
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
7 Memorial Reefs
6 Grouper Reefs
2 - EcoSystems on discs
5 Chicken Transport Devices  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$23,450

City of Mexico Beach
April 28, 2017 completion date/on time  
Funding - FWC
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
30 Grouper Reefs
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$60,000

City of Mexico Beach
May 10, 2017 completion date/on time  
Funding - NRDA
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
179 EcoSystems
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$568,998

67
332

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Escambia County, Florida:
May 31, 2017 completion date/on time  
Funding - NRDA
30 Florida Limesone Reef units and 8 Super Reefs.
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us for 2003  
contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member since  
1988 (850) 433-4319.
$150,000

Walton County
July 21, 2017 completion date/ on time  
Funding NRDA
170 Grouper reefs
185 Florida Limestone Reef units  
Melinda Gates
Environmental Specialist, “Coastal Resource Liaison”
Phone: (850)892-8108
$681,000

Walton County
July 23, 2017 completion date/ on time  
Funding NRDA
254 EcoSystems Snorkeling Reefs
Melinda Gates
Environmental Specialist, “Coastal Resource Liaison”
Phone: (850)892-8108
$803,148

Santa Rosa
Sept. 28, 2017 completion date/ on time
48 EcoSystems Snorkeling Reefs  
Sheila Fitzgerald
Grants & Special Programs Director
Santa Rosa County Board of Commissioners
P: 850.981.2016 | C: 850.393.5239 | F: 850.981.2015
$171,600

2018

City of Mexico Beach
April 23, 2018 completion date/on time  Funding – FWC
Designed, manufactured & deployed
10 Super Reefs
8 Grouper Reefs
5 Florida Limestone pyramid

Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$146,710

68
333

A.

mailto:robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us
mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association  
April 23, 2018 completion date/on time  
Funding - Private
Designed, manufactured & deployed  
7 - 10’ Florida Limestone Pyramids
3 - 8’ Florida Limestone Pyramids
1 Grouper  
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com
WWW.MBARA.ORG
$21,700

Alabama Department of Conservation  
April 24, 2017 completion date/on time  
Funding - NRDA
Deployed Concrete Pipe & one Tugboat
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$179,000

Alabama Department of Conservation
June 18,2018 completion date/on time
Funding - NRDA
Deployed 120 Super Reefs
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson  
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P.
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547
$1,209,000

Walton County
June 2018 completion date/ on time  
Funding FWC

12 Florida Limestone Pyramid Reefs  
10 EcoSystems on Pedestals
14 Lingberg Cubes  
Melinda Gates
Environmental Specialist, “Coastal Resource Liaison”
Phone: (850)892-8108
$59,800

69
334

A.

mailto:rcox@mchsi.com
http://www.mbara.org/


South Walton Artificial Reef Association  
June 27, 2018 completion date/on time  
Underwater Muesum
SWARA, Inc. P.O. Box 2482 Santa Rosa Beach, FL 32459  
info@waltonreefs.org
$10,500

Santa Rosa
Sept. 24, 2018 Ongoing project scheduled completion 12/31/2018
Funding - NRDA
40 Florida Limestone Pyramid Reefs  
26 Grouper
22 Super Reefs
Sheila Fitzgerald
Grants & Special Programs Director
Santa Rosa County Board of Commissioners
P: 850.981.2016 | C: 850.393.5239 | F: 850.981.2015
$1,224,200

Alabama Department of Conservation 
Oct. 15,2018 completion date/on time 
Funding - NRDA
Deployed 600 10’ Florida Limestone Reefs 
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson 
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P. 
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547 
$1,200,000

Alabama Department of Conservation 
Nov. 20,2018 completion date/on time 
Funding - NRDA
Deployed 166 Snorkel Reefs 
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson 
(Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P. 
O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547 
$590,345

70
335

A.

mailto:info@waltonreefs.org


2019
Escambia County, Florida: 
March 15/2019
Funding - NRDA
304 Florida Limestone, 44  Super Reefs  
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us for 2003 
contracts (850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member since 
1988 (850) 433-4319. 

Santa Rosa 
March 15, 2019
Funding - NRDA
269 Florida Limestone Pyramid Reefs
153 Grouper
22 Super Reefs
Sheila Fitzgerald
Grants & Special Programs Director
Santa Rosa County Board of Commissioners
P: 850.981.2016 | C: 850.393.5239 | F: 850.981.2015
$1,224,200

Okaloosa County
April 19, 2019
Funding - NRDA
205 EcoSystem pile mounted snorkeling reefs
Okaloosa County Commissioners
Alex Fogg
Marine Resource Coordinator
(850) 609-5394
$719,998

Okaloosa County
April 30, 2019
Funding - NRDA
14 Super Reefs
310 8’ Florida Limestone
113 Grouper
Okaloosa County Commissioners
Alex Fogg
Marine Resource Coordinator
(850) 609-5394
$978,441

71
336

A.



Okaloosa County
July 31, 2019
Funding - NRDA
12 Super Reefs 
Okaloosa County Commissioners
Alex Fogg
Marine Resource Coordinator
(850) 609-5394
$120,000

Walton County
July 31 2019
Funding FWC
5 Florida Limestone Pyramid Reefs
48 Florida Limestone
4 Grouper
Melinda Gates
Environmental Specialist, “Coastal Resource Liaison”
Phone: (850)892-8108
$152,000

Texas Parks & Wildlife Department 
Purchase Order #518406   
November 8, 2019 completion date/on time 
Manufactured & deployed 
180 Low Relief reefs
Dale Shively 512-389-4686 
$234,000 

2020
Boy Scouts of America Troop 49

May 8, 2020 completion date/on time 

Funding - Private

Deployed 60’ shrimp boat

Garret Ard

251-979-9266

$25,000

Mexico Beach Artificial Reef Association

May 18, 2020 completion date/on time 

Funding - Private

Designed, manufactured & deployed 

6 - 8’ Florida Limestone Pyramids

3 – EcoSystems reefs

1 – Grouper reef

Robert L. Cox Jr 

rcox@mchsi.com 

WWW.MBARA.ORG 

$44,739 72
337

A.



73

City of Mexico Beach 
May 18, 2020 completion date/on time 
Funding – FWC
Designed, manufactured & deployed 
6 Super Reefs
17 Florida Limestone pyramid
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG 
$92,309

Okaloosa County
May 28, 2020 completion date/on time
Funding - NRDA
35 - 8’ pyramids
5 - Super Reefs 
Okaloosa County Commissioners
Alex Fogg
Marine Resource Coordinator
(850) 609-5394
$120,000

Escambia County, Florida: 
June 18/2020 completion date/on time
Funding - NRDA
17 Snorkel reefs
Robert Turpin Escambia County Reef Coordinator robert_turpin@co.escambia.fl.us for 2003 contracts 
(850) 595-4395. Eileen Beard Escambia County Recreational board member since 1988 (850) 433-4319. 
$59,500

Alabama Department of Conservation 
July 8, 2020 completion date/on time 
Funding - NRDA
Deployed 327 anchored shallow-water limestone and concrete matrix type reefs
Craig Newton (Craig.Newton@dcnr.alabama.gov) or Kevin Anson (Kevin.Anson@dcnr.alabama.gov) 
251-968-7576, Alabama Department of Conservation, P. O. Drawer 458, Gulf Shores, AL 36547 
$1,140,000

City of Mexico Beach 
August 12, 2020 completion date/on time 
Funding – FWC
Designed, manufactured & deployed 
9 Super Reefs
27 Florida Limestone pyramid
3 Grouper
Robert L. Cox Jr 
rcox@mchsi.com 
WWW.MBARA.ORG 
$157,200

338

A.



74

Okaloosa County
August 11, 2020 completion date/on time
Funding - NRDA
4 FADs
Okaloosa County Commissioners
Alex Fogg
Marine Resource Coordinator
(850) 609-5394
$312,996

Alabama Wildlife Federation Inc.
Sept. 8, 2020 completion date/on time
3050 Lanark Rd.
Millbrook, AL 36054
Culverts
$25,600

Bay County 
Oct. 27, 2020 completion date/on time 
Designed, manufactured & deployed 10 Super Reefs & 23 - 8’ pyramids
Allen Golden 
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173 
$142,179

Bay County 
Nov. 2, 2020 completion date/on time 
Designed, manufactured & deployed 8 Super Reefs & 23 - 8’ pyramids
Allen Golden 
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173 
$125,749

Bay County 
Nov. 16, 2020 completion date/on time 
Designed, manufactured & deployed 8 Super Reefs & 40- 8’ pyramids
Allen Golden 
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173 
$152,209

Bay County 
Nov. 23, 2020 completion date/on time 
Designed, manufactured & deployed 8 Super Reefs & 23- 8’ pyramids
Allen Golden 
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173 
$125,749

339

A.



75

Bay County 
Dec. 12, 2020 completion date/on time 
Designed, manufactured & deployed 9 Super Reefs & 22- 8’ pyramids
Allen Golden 
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173 
$131,129

Bay County 
Dec. 22, 2020 completion date/on time 
Designed, manufactured & deployed 8 Super Reefs & 27- 8’ pyramids
Allen Golden 
agolden@baycountyfl.gov 
205-567-0173 
$128,809

2021

Santa Rosa 
January 6, 2021 completion date/on time
Funding - FWC
269 Florida Limestone Pyramid Reefs
9 Grouper
2 Super Reefs
31 FLAR
Sheila Fitzgerald
Grants & Special Programs Director
Santa Rosa County Board of Commissioners
P: 850.981.2016 | C: 850.393.5239 | F: 850.981.2015
$99,237.63

Navarre Chamber Foundation

January 6, 2021 completion date/on time
Self

5 Super Reefs

Mike Sandler <mjsandler@bellsouth.net>

$55,637.90

340

A.



State of Florida
Department of State

I certify from the records of this office that WALTER MARINE is a
Fictitious Name registered with the Department of State on May 8,
2002.

The Registration Number of this Fictitious Name is G02128900237.  

I further certify that said Fictitious Name Registration is active.

I further certify that said Fictitious Name Registration filed a renewal on
June 6, 2017, and expires on December 31, 2022.

Given under my hand and the Great Seal of
Florida, at Tallahassee, the Capital, this the
Seventh day of June, 2017

Authentication ID: 100300043281-060717-G02128900237

To authenticate this certificate,visit the following site, enter this  
ID, and then follow the instructions displayed.

https://efile.sunbiz.org/certauthver.html

76

341

A.



77342

A.



78
343

A.



79
344

A.



345

A.



346

A.



347

A.



348

A.



349

A.



350

A.



351

A.



352

A.



353

A.



354

A.



355

A.



356

A.



357

A.



358

A.



359

A.



360

A.



361

A.



362

A.



363

A.



364

A.



365

A.



366

A.



367

A.



368

A.



369

A.



370

A.



371

A.



372

A.



373

A.



374

A.



375

A.



376

A.



377

A.



378

A.



379

A.



380

A.



381

A.



382

A.



383

A.



384

A.



385

A.



386

A.



387

A.



388

A.



389

A.



390

A.



391

A.



392

A.



393

A.



394

A.



395

A.



396

A.



397

A.



398

A.



399

A.



400

A.



401

A.



402

A.



403

A.



404

A.



405

A.



406

A.



407

A.



408

A.



409

A.



410

A.



411

A.



412

A.



413

A.



414

A.



415

A.



416

A.



417

A.



418

A.



419

A.



Attachment B

420

A.



421

A.



422

A.



423

A.



424

A.



425

A.



426

A.



427

A.



428

A.



429

A.



430

A.



431

A.



PERSONAL 

SERVICES (DIRECT 

OVERTIME 

RELATED EXPS - 

EOC)

OVERTIME, FICA 

TAXES, 

RETIREMENT 

001.45.525.1400-

001.45.525.2200

OPERATIONAL 

EXPENDITURES 

001.45.525.5201

PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 

001.45.525.3101

AID TO CITIZENS 

001.45.525.8201 & 

AID TO OTHER 

GOVT UNITS 

001.45.525.8101

REIMB FOR LOSS 

OF REVENUE 

140.332.000  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE COVID SAFETY GOGGLES -                  429.13            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE COVID 3M FILTER -                  480.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE COVID GERMICIDAL CLEANER -                  184.95            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE P95 FILTERS -                  179.92            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE INHALATION GASKET -                  100.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE 3M FILTER -                  251.81            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73086 CARDMEMBER SERVICE NITRILE GLOVES -                  400.23            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73092 QUILL CORPORATION LYSOL, PINESOL -                  40.43              -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73092 QUILL CORPORATION PAPER TOWELS -                  144.55            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73092 QUILL CORPORATION CLEANING WIPES -                  59.98              -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/07/20 73092 QUILL CORPORATION PUMP DISPENSER -                  14.76              -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/21/20 73112 CARDMEMBER SERVICE ALCOHOL WIPES -                  180.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/21/20 73112 CARDMEMBER SERVICE HAND SANITIZER -                  773.80            -                  -                  -                  -                  

04/21/20 73112 CARDMEMBER SERVICE NITRILE GLOVES -                  500.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/05/20 73243 QUILL CORPORATION GLOVES -                  212.80            -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/05/20 73243 QUILL CORPORATION EXAM GOWNS -                  2,669.70         -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/05/20 73243 QUILL CORPORATION EXAM GOWNS -                  1,062.84         -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/05/20 73243 QUILL CORPORATION RETURN PAPER TOWELS -                  (33.18)             -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE ELASTIC BANDS AND FACE MASKS -                  41.52              -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LYSOL, FOOD FOR VOLUNTEERS -                  75.85              -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE PARTICLE FILTERS -                  341.91            -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE RETURN ARCHEM -                  (134.00)           -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE RETURN ARCHEM -                  (134.00)           -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73331 SIGN DESIGN COVID BEACH CLOSURE SIGNS -                  650.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/19/20 73331 SIGN DESIGN COVID PARK CLOSURE SIGNS -                  237.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/31/20 PRSTUB 47189 JENNIFER DANIELS PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNED 1,087.67         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/31/20 PRSTUB 47187 PAMELA BROWNELL PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNED 2,385.20         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/31/20 5/31/2020 UNITED STATES TREASURY FICA TAXES PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNINGS 265.68            -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

05/31/20 5/31/2020 FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION DUE COVID COMP EARNINGS 698.21            -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

06/02/20 73406 QUILL CORPORATION LYSOL DISPENSER -                  32.36              -                  -                  -                  -                  

06/02/20 73415 SIGN DESIGN COVID BEACH CLOSURE SIGNS -                  501.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

06/02/20 73420 SUBSTANCIAL STRUCTURES INC COVID WALL PARTITIAN BUILDING DEPARTMENT -                  6,793.00         -                  -                  -                  -                  

06/16/20 73448 CARDMEMBER SERVICE THERMOMETERS -                  157.32            -                  -                  -                  -                  

06/16/20 73448 CARDMEMBER SERVICE DIGI KEY CORP RETURN -                  (242.82)           -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN - CBELLE -                  358.12            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN - ANNEX -                  637.78            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS GLASS - CLERK -                  956.67            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN - CLERK -                  514.48            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN - CLERK -                  637.78            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN - SOE -                  318.89            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73566 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN - SOE -                  358.12            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/07/20 73611 SIGN DESIGN BALLFIELD COVID SIGNS -                  200.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/21/20 73717 QUILL CORPORATION DISINFECTANT SPRAY -                  46.47              -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/21/20 73717 QUILL CORPORATION CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES -                  34.74              -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/21/20 73649 ATCO INTERNATIONAL N95 FACE MASK -                  293.23            -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/21/20 73640 ACTION RESTORATION FOG COURTHOUSE & ANNEX DISINFECTANT MIST -                  21,114.00       -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/27/20 73746 EFT CENTENNIAL BANK PROTECTION SHIELDS -                  95.00              -                  -                  -                  -                  

07/27/20 73746 EFT CENTENNIAL BANK CROWD CONTROL BARS -                  188.99            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73750 APALACHICOLA ACE HARDWARE ODORBAN, GLOVES, SPRAY -                  72.72              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73776 DELL MARKETING SAO LAPTOPS ACCESSORIES -                  1,771.58         -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73776 DELL MARKETING SAO LAPTOPS   -                  -                  -                  2,666.42         -                  -                  

08/04/20 73796 HILL MANUFACTURING SANITIZING MIST, WIPES -                  544.33            -                  -                  -                  -                  

CARES ACT FUNDING

PERIOD OF SERVICE: 03/01/20-12/31/20

DIRECT EXPENSES RELATIVE TO CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE

AGREEMENT # Y2314, CFDA# 21.019

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES   

DATE REC/CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

EXPENDITURES 

001.45.525.6401 REVENUE

432

A.



08/04/20 73823 SIGN DESIGN COVID BEACH WARNING SIGNS -                  2,250.00         -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73780 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREENS CLERK'S OFFICE CIVIL -                  956.67            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73780 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN CLERK'S OFFICE SEC TO THE BOCC -                  293.89            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73967 QUILL CORPORATION DISINFECTANT SPRAY -                  8.99                -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73967 QUILL CORPORATION VIREX DISINFECTANT CLEANER -                  25.14              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73779 ELIZABETH TRAMMELL REIMB PURCHASE DISINFECTANT SPRAYS -                  20.00              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/04/20 73779 ELIZABETH TRAMMELL REIMB PURCHASE DISINFECTANT SPRAYS -                  35.10              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/14/20 R26844 STATE OF FLORIDA CARES FUNDING #1 001.332.000, 140.332.000 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  528,930.00     

JE081420 DEF REV JE DEFERRED REVENUE JE DEFERRED REVENUE 19/20 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (273,687.76)    

08/18/20 74007 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LYSOL WIPES -                  67.91              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74007 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MIST FOGGERS -                  791.98            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74007 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MIST FOGGERS -                  558.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74007 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MICROBAN , LYSOL WIPES -                  78.22              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74007 CARDMEMBER SERVICE QUATRICIDE SPRAY -                  107.78            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74007 CARDMEMBER SERVICE GLISSEN CHEMICAL DISINFECTANT -                  295.92            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74033 HILL MANUFACTURING DISINFECTANT WIPES -                  447.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74033 HILL MANUFACTURING AERO DISINFECTANT -                  178.50            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74042 KELLEY FUNERAL HOME FREEZER STORAGE TIME DUE TO COVID BERKOWITZ -                  350.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION HAND SANITIZER -                  71.76              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION HAND SANITIZER, DAWN -                  164.95            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION HAND SANITIZER, WIPES -                  640.68            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION HAND SANITIZER -                  104.75            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION NITRILE GLOVES -                  21.58              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES -                  34.74              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74058 QUILL CORPORATION HAND SANITIZER -                  71.76              -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74009 CENTENNIAL BANK DESK SCREEN CLERK'S MAIN OFFICE -                  499.99            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74017 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN TAX COLLECTOR MAIN OFFICE -                  1,532.80         -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74017 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN TAX COLLECTOR CARRABELLE -                  514.48            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74017 EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPLY WELLNESS SCREEN TAX COLLECTOR -                  771.72            -                  -                  -                  -                  

08/18/20 74046 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 07/07/20-08/06/20 -                  -                  6,480.00         -                  -                  -                  

09/01/20 74147 ELIZABETH TRAMMELL DISINFECTANT SPRAY -                  15.60              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/01/20 74136 SIGN DESIGN HEALTH DEPT COVID PARKING SIGNS -                  290.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/01/20 74121 QUILL CORPORATION EXAM GLOVES -                  19.18              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/01/20 74121 QUILL CORPORATION NITRILE GLOVES -                  52.95              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/15/20 74235 QUILL CORPORATION LYSOL -                  6.79                -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/15/20 74235 QUILL CORPORATION PURELL HAND SANITIZER -                  53.88              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/15/20 74244 TAYLOR'S BUILDING SUPPLY WOOD FOR COVID SIGNS -                  206.97            -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/15/20 74244 TAYLOR'S BUILDING SUPPLY WOOD FOR COVID SIGNS -                  43.77              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/15/20 74221 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 08/07/20-09/06/20 -                  -                  3,015.00         -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 PRSTUB 47808 PAMELA BROWNELL PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNED 05/24/20-09/05/20 2,903.90         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 PRSTUB 47811 JENNIFER DANIELS PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNED 05/24/20-09/05/20 1,556.36         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 PRSTUB 47805 AMANDA ANTHONY PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNED 07/12/20-09/05/20 603.71            -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 9/30/2020 UNITED STATES TREASURY FICA TAXES PAYOUT OF COVID COMP EARNINGS 387.39            -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 9/30/2020 FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION DUE COVID COMP EARNINGS 1,008.48         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74328 HILL MANUFACTURING DISPENSERS, WIPES -                  478.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74328 HILL MANUFACTURING DISPENSERS, MIST -                  883.50            -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74328 HILL MANUFACTURING WIPES, DISPENSERS -                  640.75            -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74336 KRISTEN KENT CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES -                  11.94              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74357 QUILL CORPORATION EOC ALCOHOL WIPES -                  7.38                -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74358 QUILL CORPORATION CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES -                  15.60              -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74324 GOVCONNECTION, INC CARES LAPTOPS FOR CLERK'S OFFICE -                  6,037.02         -                  -                  -                  -                  

09/30/20 74297 CENTENNIAL BANK SNEEZE GUARD ANNEX COURTROOM -                  275.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

10/20/20 74490 CARDMEMBER SERVICE *FY* 3 CARES LAPTOPS FOR EOC -                  -                  -                  4,011.00         -                  -                  

10/20/20 74572 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS *FY* CARES PROGRAM MGMT 09/07/20-09/30/20 -                  -                  2,047.50         -                  -                  -                  

11/03/20 74684 OFFICE OF THE STATE ATTORNEY *FY* SAO CARES EARPHONES -                  49.99              -                  -                  -                  -                  

JE093020 JE09/30/20 REVENUE LOSS IN EXCESS OF 5% ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND - STATE SHARED REVENUE PROCEEDS 162,029.33     

FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 TOTAL 10,896.60       64,096.39       11,542.50       6,677.42         -                  162,029.33     255,242.24     

10/20/20 74572 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 10/01/20-10/06/20 -                  -                  585.00            -                  -                  -                  

11/03/20 74679 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 10/07/20-10/31/20 -                  -                  6,682.50         -                  -                  -                  

11/17/20 74744 ATCO INTERNATIONAL HAND SANITIZER -                  261.66            -                  -                  -                  -                  

11/17/20 74736 ACCESS WIRELESS DATA SOLUTIONSCARES CRADELPOINT NET CLOUS EMERGENCY MGMT -                  2,287.25         -                  -                  -                  -                  

11/17/20 74751 WALLACE BRASWELL TRIAGE STATION GROUND PREP -                  500.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

11/17/20 74841 CENTENNIAL BANK 8 CARES LAPTOPS FOR PROPERTY APPRAISER -                  6,319.92         -                  -                  -                  -                  

11/17/20 74860 UNITED RENTALS INC 6 MESSAGE BOARDS -                  -                  -                  100,058.82     -                  -                  

11/17/20 74860 UNITED RENTALS INC 2020 DOOSAN FORKLIFT -                  -                  -                  29,386.81       -                  -                  

433

A.



11/17/20 74849 NET SOUTH 10 CARES COMPUTERS FOR TAX COLLECTOR -                  -                  -                  13,850.00       -                  -                  

11/17/20 74844 FASTSIGNS 7 COVID KIOSKS -                  -                  -                  25,651.55       -                  -                  

12/01/20 74920 GATEHOUSE MEDIA CARES SMALL BUSINESS ASSIST AD -                  202.50            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/09/20 R27390 STATE OF FLORIDA CARES ACT FUNDS 001.332.000 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  423,144.00     

12/15/20 74994 OPPORTUNITY FLORIDA CARES ACT SVCS -                  -                  2,000.00         -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 74994 OPPORTUNITY FLORIDA CARES ACT SVCS -                  -                  1,500.00         -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75066 EPROMOS PROMOTIONAL PRODUCTSCARES BAGS, SANITIZERS, WIPES, ETC -                  54,278.78       -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75074 GATEHOUSE MEDIA CARES SMALL BUSINESS ASSIST AD -                  281.50            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK COURT TECH MICROPHONES -                  294.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK MICROPHONE SYSTEM FOR COURT, MONITOR -                  640.42            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK APPLE KEYBOARD FOR MEETING ROOM -                  119.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK APPLE MAC MINI BCC -                  928.36            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK CARES MICROPHONE, TV STANDS FOR COURTROOM -                  376.72            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK CARES CABLE FOR COURTROOM -                  5.66                -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK CARES 2 MONITORS COURTROOMS -                  339.98            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 75056 CENTENNIAL BANK WIDESCREEN MONITOR FOR BOARD ROOM -                  199.99            -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/15/20 74980 BTK INNOVATIONS 14 BODY TEMPERATURE KIOSKS -                  -                  -                  38,858.00       -                  -                  

12/21/20 75141 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 11/01/20-11/30/20 -                  -                  7,110.00         -                  -                  -                  

12/21/20 75136 GOVERNMENT SOFTWARE ASSURANCECLOUD BASED SOFTWARE AND DATA CONVERSION TAX COLL -                  216,481.00     -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/21/20 75136 GOVERNMENT SOFTWARE ASSURANCECLOUD BASED SOFTWARE AND DATA CONVERSION PROP APPR -                  216,481.00     -                  -                  -                  -                  

12/21/20 75143 PREMISE NETWORK SOLUTIONS 4 BOARD MEETING MONITORS -                  -                  -                  7,250.00         -                  -                  

12/21/20 75140 LYNN'S QUALITY OYSTERS CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  1,519.48         -                  

12/21/20 75142 MSH HIGH FIVE ADVENTURES CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  7,155.17         -                  

12/21/20 75139 ISLAND DOG TOO, LLC CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75138 HOLE IN THE WALL SEAFOOD CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75137 HIGH FIVE DIVE BAR, LLC CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75135 EDGE SALON, INC CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75129 CROOMS MINI-MALL, INC CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75125 CARRABELLE LIGHTHOUSE ASSOCIATIONCARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75124 CARRABELLE CARES CORP CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75145 THE BEACH PIT RESTAURANT CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/21/20 75123 APALACHICOLA MAIN STREET CARES BUSINESS GRANT -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/31/20 75148 CARRABELLE UNITED METHODIST CHURCHCARES FOOD PANTRY ASSISTANCE -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/31/20 75150 FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH OF EASTPOINTCARES FOOD PANTRY ASSISTANCE -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/31/20 75149 ELDER CARE COMMUNITY COALITIONCARES FOOD PANTRY ASSISTANCE -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/31/20 75151 FRANKLIN'S PROMISE COALITION CARES FOOD PANTRY ASSISTANCE -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/31/20 75332 THE GRAND ORDER OF ARCHANGELS DBA FRANKLIN FOODSCARES FOOD PANTRY ASSISTANCE -                  -                  -                  -                  10,000.00       -                  

12/31/20 JE12/31/20 JE MOVE DEF REV 19/20 TO REV 20/21JE MOVE DEF REV 19/20 TO REV 20/21 001.332.000 273,687.76     

01/05/21 75227 SIGN DESIGN REFLECTIVE DECALS FOR FLASHING SIGNS -                  450.00            -                  -                  -                  -                  

01/19/21 75282 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 12/01/20-12/31/20 -                  -                  4,612.50         -                  -                  -                  

01/19/20 75278 INTELLICHOICE INC DBA E-FORCE E-FORCE COMPUTER ANIMATED DISPATCH PROGRAM FOR SHERIFF-                  -                  -                  192,855.54     -                  

02/16/21 75541 MANAGEMENT EXPERTS CARES PROGRAM MGMT 01/01/20-01/31/20 -                  -                  7,875.00         -                  -                  -                  

02/19/21 R27693 STATE OF FLORIDA CARES ACT FUNDS 001.332.000 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  1,163,645.00  

03/16/21 75691 CITY OF CARRABELLE REIMB PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY EMPLOYEES EXP -                  -                  -                  -                  250,663.02     -                  

03/16/21 75693 CITY OF APALACHICOLA REIMB PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY EMPLOYEES EXP -                  -                  -                  -                  393,093.85     -                  

TBD PENDING PENNTEK EVOLUTION CHIP SYSTEM JAIL ANTIBACTERIAL & ANTIMICROBIAL SURFACE COATING -                  62,558.00       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 TOTAL -                  563,005.74     30,365.00       407,910.72     792,431.52     -                  1,860,476.76  

10,896.60       627,102.13     41,907.50       414,588.14     792,431.52     162,029.33     2,115,719.00  

2,048,955.22            

66,763.78       

 

 

TOTALS

434

A.



Florida Department of Management Services  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Application Instructions For The 
E911 STATE  

GRANT PROGRAM 
 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Florida Administrative 
Code Rule 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs Revised June 

June, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

435

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 2 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

County Franklin- Region 1, 12 
Counties 

 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA E911 BOARD 
E911 STATE GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION FORM 

 
 

Total Amount Requested: $422,816 
 

Year Total Amount 
1 230,530 
2 44,634 
3 46,860 
4 49,177 
5 51,615 

 
 

Project Title: Franklin-Region 1 GIS Regional Data Project 
 
1. Board of County Commissioners Chair: Ricky Jones 

 
Mailing Address: 33 market St 
 Suite 203 
City: Apalachicola 
State: FL  32320   
Phone:  850  653-8861   
Email Address:  

 
 
2. County 911 Coordinator: Renee Brannan 

Mailing Address: 270 Hwy 65 
City: Eastpoint 
State: FL  32425 -  
Phone: ( 850 ) 670-8500 Fax:  
Email Address: r.brannan@franklinsheriff.com 

 
 
3. Federal Tax ID Number: 59-60000612 

 

 

436

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 3 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

County Franklin 
 

COUNTY INFORMATION 
USE 12 POINT FONT OR LEGIBLE HAND PRINTING 

 
4. County Fact Information  
 

County Franklin 
Population 11,704 
Total Number of Incoming Nonwireless Trunks VOIP 
Total Number of Incoming Wireless Trunks Voip 
Number of PSAP’s 1 

Number of Call- taking Positions per 
PSAP 

3 

Total Volume of 911 Calls 8532 
What equipment is needed to provision the Enhanced 911 system? 

 None this is a GIS request 

What equipment is requested in this grant application? 
 None this is a GIS request 

Financial Information:  
1.) What are the current annual costs for your E911 system (circuits, customer 

records hardware and software, etc.) not including maintenance? 
 23,329.20 

2.) What are the current annual costs for maintenance of items included in 1?  
 34,366.21 

3.) Total amount of E911 fee revenue received in the preceding year.  
 49,607.09 

4.) Total amount of county carry forward funding retained in the preceding year.  
 6016.56 

5.) Current total amount of county carry forward funding?  
 421,447.58 

6.) Two year maximum calculated amount for applied carry forward funding  
Calculation (current year carry 
forward funding amount based on 
General Condition 5.12 multiplied 
by 2) 

 
 

29,909.98 

7.) Minimum calculated amount for Applied Carry Forward Funding   
Calculation (amount in J.5. 
subtracted by amount in J.6.) 
Insert in Item 12. Budget/Quarterly 
Expenditure Report 

 
 

391,537.90 

437

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 4 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

5. Describe your county’s existing E911 system.  Include specific information 
on existing system equipment upgrades and when the installation of this 
equipment was completed.  
 

The is the first regional GIS system.  Each county’s E911 System is described below: 

FRANKLIN: 

Franklin County enabled a E911 System is known as the Tri-County Regional E911 
System.  The E911 System consists of a Solacom IP enabled router, Guardian 911 
answering positions, standalone redundant ALI database, and DBMS application.  The 
IP enabled E911 System was put in service July 21, 2011.  

 

6. Describe the scope of work for the proposed project including any goal(s) 
and objectives. Include the tasks to be performed as part of the project. 
Provide scope of work in quantifiable units of deliverables that shall be 
received and accepted.  For each deliverable specify the required minimum 
level of service to be performed and the criteria for evaluating the 
successful completion of each deliverable. 

 

Work as a region to aggregate and validate GIS data in preparation for the regional 
ESInet and for Next Generation Core Services (NG-911).  This project includes the 
following counties:  

Bay Calhoun Escambia Franklin 
Gulf Holmes Jackson Liberty 
Okaloosa Santa Rosa Walton Washington 

 

The GIS Project will be broken down into 3 separate phases.  

Phase Explanation Overview Deliverables 
Phase 1: 
Data 
Readiness 
Assessment 

Comprehensive Assessment of how each 
of the 12 individual county’s GIS data 
meets NENA standards for NG-911.  
*For Counties that have had an 
assessment done in the last 2 years.  An 
assessment of data compared to 
surrounding the counties will be 
executed.  

Assessment 

Phase 2: 
Data 
Creation and 
Remediation 

Creation and remediation od GIS data 
(RCL, AP and Boundaries) to meet and 
exceed NENA standards to support 
geospatial routing.  

NENA compliant RCL, AP 
and Boundaries  

438

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 5 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

Phase 3: 
Validation 
and 
Aggregation 

Proprietary & Confidential Information- 
Please see proposal for additional 
information.  

GIS Data & Validation  
Training  
Support 

Phase 4: 
Boundary 
Facilitation 

Ensure that all boundaries have no gaps 
or overlaps.  

Boundary Facilitation 
Workshops 

Phase 5: 
Ongoing 
GIS 
maintenance  

Ensure GIS data meets NENA standards GIS data maintenance and 
support 

  

7. Justification of the need for the proposed project.   Provide detailed 
information on the existing system’s condition including a detailed 
justification for any system with an expected remaining life of less than 1 
year on system, standalone equipment or Software(SW) replacement, 
addition or upgrade requests. 

 

Region 1 was chosen for the Pilot Region for NG-911 Grant.  In preparation for 
implementing a regional ESInet and Next Generation Core Services (NGCS), there is a 
need to ensure GIS data meets NENA standards to be ready when the regional ESInet 
and NGCS are procured.  

 

8. Describe why your county will not be able to complete this project without 
this grant funding.  

 

Due to limited funding in the counties, not all have the ability to have GIS support for 
911.  As a region, the counties have been working as silos and do not share data at this 
time.  Additional funds are needed to ensure that boundaries are established, counties 
work together, and the region works as a whole.   

 

9. Briefly describe how this grant project would conform with the State E911 
Plan.  

Preparing GIS, MSAG and ALI data will align with the State E911 Plan and NG-911 
practicies in accordance with the State E911 Plan. Ensuring that all 12 counties data 
meets the minimum 98% match rate for MSAG and ALI.  This project will help to 
leverage technology to enhance response time, provide additional mapping data and 
services to process incoming 911 calls.   

 

439

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 6 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

 

10. Describe the required steps with an anticipated time schedule with 
procurement and payment milestones and a total project completion date.  

This contract will be executed through a GSA contract with Michael Baker International.  Upon 
contract execution the following steps will be accomplished: 

Phase Explanation Overview Deliverables 
Phase 1: 
Data 
Readiness 
Assessment 

Comprehensive Assessment of how each 
of the 12 individual county’s GIS data 
meets NENA standards for NG-911.  
*For Counties that have had an 
assessment done in the last 2 years.  An 
assessment of data compared to 
surrounding the counties will be 
executed.  

Assessment 

Phase 2: 
Data 
Creation and 
Remediation 

Creation and remediation od GIS data 
(RCL, AP and Boundaries) to meet and 
exceed NENA standards to support 
geospatial routing.  

NENA compliant RCL, AP 
and Boundaries  

Phase 3: 
Validation 
and 
Aggregation 

Proprietary & Confidential Information- 
Please see proposal for additional 
information.  

GIS Data & Validation  
Training  
Support 

Phase 4: 
Boundary 
Facilitation 

Ensure that all boundaries have no gaps 
or overlaps.  

Boundary Facilitation 
Workshops 

Phase 5: 
Ongoing 
GIS 
maintenance  

Ensure GIS data meets NENA standards GIS data maintenance and 
support 

 

 

11.      If applicable, sole source justification must include sole source letter from 
county’s purchasing department; see instruction 5.5. 

The counties will be using a GSA Contract, please see attachment below.  By using a 
GSA contract the counties will be receiving pre-approved pricing.  This means that the 
federal government has already determined the pricing as fair and reasonable by 
government standards, the pricing also has a ceiling rate for all products and services.  
This ensures value for the dollar spent.  

The vendor’s technical capabilities are also pre-vetted prior to a GSA contract being 
awarded.   

Each county will be following their local process for GSA approval.  

440

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 7 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

441

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 8 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

12. Budget/Quarterly Expenditure Report  
Prepare an itemized Grant Budget (“Line Item” breakdown should include separated systems, i.e.; 911 system, logging recorder, centerline 
mapping, etc. and services items).  The completed form shall be used to complete quarterly report requirements, listing expenditures and revisions 
{if any} in appropriate columns.  If there is insufficient space, please include details in an attachment.  Budget costs should match requested 
vendor quote. 

County: 
Franklin Regional Grant Number:  Report Date:  

 
For Grant Period Ending:  March 31  June 20  September 30  December 31 Year: 

 
Is This a Final Report?  Yes ☐  No☐   (To request reimbursement please submit appendix IV) 
 

Proposed Budget USE FOR QUARTERLY REPORTS 
Line Item –Provide detail itemized information Unit Price ($) Quantity Total Cost ($)  Revised 

Budget 
Total Cumulative 
Expenditures ($) 

A. Systems (Hardware, Software, Equipment & 
Labor) 
 
Datamark VEP-Annual Cost 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

35904 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 Total System Items      
B. Services (Training, Maintenance and Warranty 
Items) 
 
Data Support Services 
Boundary Facilitation 
Data Assessment 
Managed Services 
Strategic Planning 
ACE 
AP Placement 
Field Collection 
Data Creation 
Data Remediation 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

146,544 
22500 

 
38,182 
32,500 
15270 
18,000 
22,500 
46000 
45416 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 Total Service Items     

442

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 9 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

Less any Applied County Carry Forward or other Funding (if applicable)      
Grant Request Total 422,816     

 
USE FOR ALL REPORTS     

Total Amount of Grant Awarded        
Final Completion Date       

     Signature, County 911 Coordinator 

 

 

443

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 10 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

 

Annual VEP Service Fees* Annual VEP Service Fees include GIS data validation, editing and 
provisioning of data to support NG9-1-1 geospatial call routing within 
the next generation core services. 

Database Setup Fees Time and material costs to setup and onboard the VEP database 
service. 

Data Support Services Ongoing GIS data maintenance services to support individual 
counties. Services to include but not limited to maintenance, creation 
or remediation of GIS data.  

Additional User Licensing* Additional user access to the VEP validation, editing and provisioning 
service.  

Boundary Facilitation Facilitation and best-practice consulting services with adjacent and 
bordering counties to ensure there are agreed upon boundaries to 
resolve and gaps, overlaps and topology deficiencies.  

Data Assessment Assess data for adherence to VEP onboarding requirements.  
Managed Services Project management and integration fees associated with managing 

the aggregated dataset.  
Strategic Planning Strategic planning includes current state assessment, future state 

recommendation and an implementation/sustainability plan of the 
clients GIS and public safety workflows, technology, addressing and 
policies to support NG9-1-1 GIS.  

ACE Address Comparison and Evaluation is a process which compares the 
clients address point data with additional address lists to ensure the 
AP layer includes all addresses within the client, to include sub-
addressing.  

AP Placement Placing or moving points of the site/structure in accordance with 
NENA standards.  

Field Collection Conducting in-person verification of locations that cannot be verified 
using supplemental and/or alternative technologies.  

Data Creation Creation of GIS data (AP, RCL, Boundaries) that the client does not 
currently have to support NG9-1-1. 

Data Remediation Data cleanup of GIS data (AP, RCL, Boundaries) to meet/exceed 
NENA standards. 

444

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 11 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

 
13. Assurances 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS: The grantee accepts all grant terms and 
conditions.  Grantee understands that grants are contingent upon the availability of funds. 
 
DISCLAIMER: The grantee certifies that the facts and information contained in this 
application and any attached documents are true and correct.  A violation of this 
requirement may result in revocation of the grant and return of all grant funds and interest 
accrued (if any), pursuant to the E911 Board authority and any other remedy provided by 
law. 
 
NOTIFICATION OF AWARDS: The grantee understands and accepts that the notice of 
award will be advertised on the Florida E911 website. 
 
MAINTENANCE OF IMPROVEMENT AND EXPANSION: The grantee agrees that any 
improvement, expansion or other effect brought about in whole or part by grant funds will 
be maintained.  No substantial changes or departures from the original proposal shall be 
permitted unless the E911 Board gives prior written authorization.  Any unauthorized 
change will necessitate the return of grant funds, and accrued interest (if any) to the E911 
Board. 
 
Failure to utilize grant funds as represented may jeopardize eligibility to be considered for 
future funding. 
 
14. Authority 
 
I hereby affirm my authority and responsibility for the use of funds requested. 
 
_________________________________________________    ______________ 
SIGNATURE – CHAIR, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS     DATE 
or COUNTY MANAGER  
 
_________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 

_________________________________________________ 

Position

445

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 12 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

 

 

Appendix I 

NO requests for funding will be acknowledged for any items not specified in Section 
365.172, Florida Statutes, Emergency communication number “E911”; paragraph (10) 

(shown below). 

Section 365.172 (10), Florida Statutes 

AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES OF E911 FEE.— 

(a)  For purposes of this section, E911 service includes the functions of database 
management, call taking, location verification, and call transfer. Department of Health 
certification, recertification, and training costs for 911 public safety telecommunications, 
including dispatching, are functions of 911 services. 

(b)  All costs directly attributable to the establishment or provision of E911 service and 
contracting for E911 services are eligible for expenditure of moneys derived from imposition of 
the fee authorized by subsections (8) and (9). These costs include the acquisition, 
implementation, and maintenance of Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) equipment and 
E911 service features, as defined in the providers' published schedules or the acquisition, 
installation, and maintenance of other E911 equipment, including circuits; call answering 
equipment; call transfer equipment; ANI or ALI controllers; ANI or ALI displays; station 
instruments; E911 telecommunications systems; visual call information and storage devices; 
recording equipment; telephone devices and other equipment for the hearing impaired used in 
the E911 system; PSAP backup power systems; consoles; automatic call distributors, and 
interfaces, including hardware and software, for computer-aided dispatch (CAD) systems; 
integrated CAD systems for that portion of the systems used for E911 call taking; GIS system 
and software equipment and information displays; network clocks; salary and associated 
expenses for E911 call takers for that portion of their time spent taking and transferring E911 
calls, salary, and associated expenses for a county to employ a full-time equivalent E911 
coordinator position and a full-time equivalent mapping or geographical data position, and 
technical system maintenance, database, and administration personnel for the portion of their 
time spent administrating the E911 system; emergency medical, fire, and law enforcement 
prearrival instruction software; charts and training costs; training costs for PSAP call takers, 
supervisors, and managers in the proper methods and techniques used in taking and 
transferring E911 calls, costs to train and educate PSAP employees regarding E911 service or 
E911 equipment, including fees collected by the Department of Health for the certification and 
recertification of 911 public safety Telecommunicator’s as required under s. 401.465; and 
expenses required to develop and maintain all information, including ALI and ANI databases 
and other information source repositories, necessary to properly inform call takers as to location 
address, type of emergency, and other information directly relevant to the E911 call-taking and 
transferring function. Moneys derived from the fee may also be used for next-generation E911 
network services, next-generation E911 database services, next-generation E911 equipment, 
and wireless E911 routing systems. 

 

446

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 13 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

(c)  The moneys should not be used to pay for any item not listed in this subsection, 
including, but not limited to, any or operational costs for emergency responses. Even any which 
occur after the call transfer to the responding public safety entity and the costs for constructing, 
leasing, maintaining, or renovating buildings, except for those building modifications necessary 
to maintain the security and environmental integrity of the PSAP and E911 equipment rooms. 

447

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 14 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

Attachment 1: County Fiscal Form 6A 

 

448

A.



Application for E911 State Grant Program, revised June 2019 
Page 15 

W Form 3A, incorporated by reference in Fla. Admin. Code R. 60FF1-5.003 E911 State Grant Programs 
 

 
 
Attachment 2: County Carry Forward Form 
 

 

449

A.



450

A.



451

A.



452

A.



453

A.



454

A.



455

A.



456

A.



457

A.



1 
 
 

 
Next Generation 911 (NG-911) Additional Terms and Conditions for Rural and State Grant Funded by Federal 

Grant Funding or Deemed State Match Funding 
Grant Agreement No. S17-21-02-15 

 
The State of Florida (hereinafter “State”), Department of Management Services (hereinafter “Department” or 
“DMS”), acting as a pass-through entity, has made this subaward, as defined in 2 CFR §200.92, of Federal Award 
No. 69N37619300000911FL0.  All subrecipients, as defined by 2 CFR §200.93, and all recipients of state funding 
provided in accordance with federal grant matching requirements (hereinafter both referred to, without 
distinction, as “Grantee”) must comply with the terms and conditions specified herein, in accordance with 2 
CFR §200.332.  The terms of this addendum supplement the terms and conditions contained in W Form 1A, 
Application for the E911 Rural County Grant Program or W Form 3A, Application for the 911 Grant Programs 
(hereinafter the “Application”), and the Grantee’s award letter.  

Subaward Agreement 

Federal Award Identification 
Federal Awarding Agency: Joint grant with U.S. Department of Transportation National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), and the U.S. Department of Commerce, National 
Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA)  
Federal Award Date: August 9, 2019 
State Agency/Pass-Through Entity: The 
Florida Department of Management Services  
 

Sub recipient Name: (must match name associated 
with FEIN) 
 
Franklin Board of County Commissioners 

Federal Award No. (FAIN): 
69N37619300000911FL0 

Subaward Period of Performance: Begins upon 
award (made at the E911 Board approval on 
February 23, 2021), and continues until March 31, 
2022  

Federal Award Period of Performance: 
Start: August 9, 2019      End: March 31, 2022 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this 
Subaward: As specified on Grantee award letter 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to 
Grantee by DMS for any purpose, 
including under this agreement: 
$ 431,592.00  
 

Total Amount of this Federal Award 
Committed to Grantee by DMS: 
 

$ 12,792.00  
 

Federal Award Project Description: The Next Generation 911 (NG-911) Advancement Act 
provides new funding for grants to be used for 1) the implementation and operation of 911 
services, Enhanced 911 (E911) services, migration to an IP-enabled emergency network, and 
adoption and operation of NG911 services and applications; 2) the implementation of IP-
enabled emergency services and applications enabled by NG-911 services, including the 
establishment of IP backbone networks and the application layer software infrastructure 
needed to interconnect the multitude of emergency response organizations; and 3) training 
public safety personnel, including call-takers, first responders, and other individuals and 
organizations who are part of the emergency response chain in 911 services. 
 

458

A.



2 
 
 

Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance No.: 20.615 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Title: 
911 Grant Program  

Grantee receives federal awards directly from a Federal Awarding Agency: ☐YES ☐ No 
Grantee has disclosed if it has prior experience with same or similar subawards to DMS: ☐YES ☐ No 

 
1. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
By executing this agreement, the Grantee agrees to the following: 

1.1. The Application, the Grantee’s award letter, and this document, including its attachments and exhibits 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agreement”), contain all of the terms and conditions agreed 
upon by the parties.  If there are any conflicting provisions between the documents that make up the 
Agreement, the following order of precedence applies:   

1.1.1. this document; 
1.1.2. Attachment 1, Audit Requirements for Awards of State and Federal Financial Assistance (with its 

Exhibit 1); 
1.1.3. the Grantee’s award letter; and 
1.1.4. the Grantee’s submitted Application. 

1.2. In accordance with sections 365.172 and 365.173, F.S., the Grantee shall perform the tasks specified 
herein in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

1.3. The term of this agreement is coterminous with the subaward period of performance identified in the 
table above. 

1.4. The parties shall be governed by all applicable state and federal laws , rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the federal 911 Grant Program  Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO), 2 CFR Part 
200, and those identified in the “Applicable Statutes and Regulations” table below. Any express 
reference in this Agreement to a statute, rule, or regulation in no way implies that no other statue, rule, 
or regulation applies. 

1.4.1. The Grantee agrees to conduct all procurements in accordance with 2 CFR §200.318 – 200.326.    
1.4.2. The Grantee agrees that this Agreement is subject to the Federal Funding Accountability and 

Transparency Act (FFATA), which may require the Grantee to report to the FFATA Subaward 
Reporting System (FSRS).  

1.4.3. The Grantee agrees to comply with the State of Florida Reference Guide for State Expenditures, 
which can be obtained at: 
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpe
nditures.pdf.  

1.5. This is a cost reimbursement agreement.  This Agreement shall not exceed the amount specified on the 
Grantee’s award letter, and payment shall only be issued by the Department after acceptance of the 
Grantee’s performance as set forth by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  No renewals of this 
Agreement are available. 

1.6. The Grantee agrees to use the funds awarded under this Agreement only for costs directly incurred for 
the grant project activities specified in the Application and costs consistent with the cost principles 
identified in 2 CFR Part 200, including Subpart E of such regulations. Costs must be reasonable, 
necessary, allocable, and allowable for the approved project and only incurred during the period of 
performance specified in the table above.  In addition to the “Specifically Excluded E911 Expenses,” 
identified on the Application,  ineligible costs that  are not reimbursable under this Agreement include, 
but are not limited to, costs to operate legacy E911 or 911 systems, costs to operate the NG911 system 

459

A.

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf


3 
 
 

after it is fully operational, activities related to construction, and independent verification and validation  
testing for product service, and system purchases.  

1.6.1. The Grantee shall refund to the Department any balance of unobligated funds that was advanced 
or paid to the Grantee. 

1.6.2. The Grantee shall refund any monies used for ineligible purposes under the laws, rules, and 
regulations governing the use of these funds. 

1.6.3. The Grantee agrees that this Agreement is not for indirect cost rate or research and development.   
1.7. The Grantee agrees that the final request for reimbursement and supporting documentation for 

incurred obligations shall be submitted to the Department no later than the term of this Agreement. 
1.8. The Grantee agrees to provide a completed Exhibit 2, Pilot Region Project Metrics to the Department 

on a quarterly basis.  The quarters shall run from January to March, April to June, July to September, 
and October to December.  The completed Exhibit 2 will be due to the Department no later than fifteen 
(15) calendar days past the end of the preceding quarter. 
 

2. AUTHORITY  
The Department has been appropriated funds from the Emergency Communications Number E911 System Trust 
to provide grants to counties for the purpose of upgrading E911 systems.  The Department has the authority, 
pursuant to section 282.702, F.S., to enter into this Agreement and to disburse the appropriated funds to the 
Grantee under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
3. OBLIGATION TO PAY  
The State’s obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the 
Legislature and the funding sources set forth in the Federal Award Identification and is subject to any 
modification in accordance with either Chapter 216, F.S., or the Florida Constitution. 
 
4. MODIFICATION  
The terms of the Application are hereby modified as follows: 

4.1. The following is hereby added to Section 9.3: 
The E911 Board will not approve any change requests that do not comply with the federal grant.  
4.2. The following is hereby added to Section 9.3.2: 
Time extensions for awards funded with federal grant money, as identified on the Grantee’s award letter, 
must not exceed the period of performance specified in the table above. If the time extension for an award 
that is State match, only the funds expended within the period of performance will be considered as state 
match.   
4.3. The Scope of Work is hereby modified to specify the following deliverable(s): 

 
Deliverable No. 1 – Tasks for Tactical Mapping and Analytics   
Performance Standard Documentation Financial Consequences 
Complete all work to 
Integrate an advanced 
tactical mapping solution  
in accordance with the 
Grantee’s contract with its 
vendor, which is attached 
as Attachment 2 [note: 

1) Reimbursement claim in 
accordance with Section 
15, below. 

2) The Grantee shall submit 
copies of:  

If Grantee fails to comply 
with any term of the award, 
DMS shall take one or more 
of the following actions: 
 

460

A.



4 
 
 

this Agreement will be 
amended to attach this 
contract once obtained by 
the Grantee].  

a. Any contracts or 
purchase orders with 
vendors; 

b. Vendor invoices; 
c. Proof of payment to 

vendors; and 
d. Proof of receipt of 

deliverables. 

1. Temporarily withhold cash 
payments pending correction 
of the deficiency by Grantee; 
2. Disallow all or part of the 
cost of the activity or action 
not in compliance; 
3. Wholly or partly suspend 
or terminate the current 
award for the Grantee;  
4. Suspend or deny future 
grant awards; or 
5. Take other remedies that 
may be legally available. 
 
DMS will provide no 
reimbursement for any 
improvement that does not 
meet the standards 
established in this award. 
 

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $12,792.00 
 

5. CONTACTS 
In accordance with section 215.971(2), F.S., and 2 CFR §200.332(a)(x), 

5.1. The Department’s Grant Manager is responsible for enforcing performance of this Agreement’s terms 
and conditions and will serve as the Department’s liaison with the Grantee.  As part of his or her duties, 
the Department’s Grant Manager will: 

5.1.1. Monitor and document the Grantee’s performance of the terms of this Agreement, which may 
include but shall not be limited to, onsite visits by DMS staff, limited scope audits, or desktop 
monitoring; 

5.1.2. Review all documentation for which the Grantee requests payment; and 
5.1.3. Reconcile and verify all funds received against all funds expended during the period of this 

Agreement and produce a final reconciliation report that identifies any funds paid in excess of 
the expenditures incurred by the Grantee.  

 

The Department’s Grant Managers responsible for the 
administration of this Agreement are: 

Leon Simmonds, State 911 Coordinator 
4030 Esplanade Way 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
 
 
Pam Gerard, Federal Program Manager 
4030 Esplanade Way, Ste 180k  
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

 

461

A.



5 
 
 

 

5.2. The Grantee’s Agreement Manager is responsible for monitoring performance of this Agreement’s 
terms and conditions and will serve as the Grantee’s liaison with the Department.  As part of his or her 
duties, the Grantee’s Agreement Manager shall provide all reports, as well as any other required 
documents under this Agreement, to the E911 Board in accordance with Section 9.0 of the Application.   

The Grantee’s Agreement Manager responsible for the 
administration of this Agreement is:  
 
The County 911 Coordinator, named in the Application.     
 

5.3. In the event that different managers or addresses are designated by either party after execution of this 
Agreement, notice of the name, title, and address of the new manager will be provided to the other 
party in writing.  Such changes do not require a formal written amendment to the Agreement. 
 

6. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS  
6.1. The Grantee shall retain all its records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and 

any other documents, including electronic storage media, pertinent to this Agreement in accordance 
with the record retention requirements of Part V of Attachment 1, Audit Requirements for Awards of 
State and Federal Financial Assistance.  The Grantee shall cooperate with the Department to facilitate 
the duplication and transfer of such records or documents upon the Department’s request.     

6.2. The Grantee shall maintain books, records, and documents in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles to sufficiently and properly reflect all expenditures of funds provided by the 
Department under this Agreement. 

6.3. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable requirements of section 215.97, F.S., and Attachment 1, 
Audit Requirements for Awards of State and Federal Financial Assistance. If the Grantee is required to 
undergo an audit, the Grantee shall disclose all related party transactions to the auditor.   
  

7. RECORDS 
7.1 As required by section 215.97, F.S., and Rule 69I-5.006 Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C), the Department, 

the Department of Financial Services, and the Florida Auditor General, or any of their authorized 
representatives, shall enjoy the right of access to any documents, financial statements, papers, or other 
records of the Grantee which are pertinent to this Agreement, in order to make audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcripts.  The right of access also includes timely and reasonable access to the Grantee's 
personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents.  This provision does not 
limit the Department’s authority to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional audits or evaluations 
of state financial assistance or limit the authority of any state awarding agency inspector general, the Auditor 
General, or any other State official. 

7.2 The Grantee shall maintain all records, including those pertaining to any and all contractors, subcontractors, 
and consultants to be paid from funds provided under this Agreement and further including documentation 
of all program costs in a form sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements and objectives of 
the Application, and all other applicable laws and regulations, for the longer of five (5) years after the end 
of the performance period specified in the table above and all pending matters or the period required by 

462

A.



6 
 
 

the General Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State (available at: 
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/). 

7.3 If the Grantee’s record retention requirements terminate prior to the requirements stated herein, the 
Grantee may meet the Department’s record retention requirements for this Agreement by transferring its 
records to the Department at that time, and by destroying duplicate records in accordance with section 
501.171, F.S., and, if applicable, section 119.0701, F.S.  The Grantee shall adhere to established information 
destruction standards such as those established by the National Institute of Standards and Technology 
Special Publication 800-88, “Guidelines for Media Sanitization” (2006).  See http://csrc.nist.gov. 

7.4 The Grantee's performance under this Agreement shall be subject to the 2 CFR Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 225 
(OMB CIRCULAR A–87).  

7.5 The Grantee shall be subject to Federal Acquisition Regulations 31.2 and 931.2. 
 

8. PUBLIC RECORDS 
The Grantee, an agency as defined in section 119.011(2), F.S., must comply with the requirements of Chapter 
119, F.S., in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. The Grantee must also ensure that any 
contractors and subcontractors that perform work pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements 
of Chapter 119, F.S., as applicable. 
 
9. LIABILITY 

9.1. The Grantee is solely responsible to parties it deals with in carrying out the terms of this Agreement 
and, subject to the limitation of section 768.28, F.S., the Grantee shall hold the Department harmless 
against all claims of whatever nature by third parties arising from performance under this Agreement. 

9.2. The Grantee, a subdivision as defined in section 768.28, F.S., agrees to be fully responsible for its 
negligent or tortious acts or omissions which result in claims or suits against the Department and agrees 
to be liable for any damages proximately caused by the acts or omissions to the extent set forth in 
section 768.28, F.S.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity 
by the Grantee.  Nothing in this Agreement may be construed as consent by a State agency or 
subdivision of the State to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of any contract. 

 
10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 
If any of the following events occur ("Events of Default"), all obligations on the part of the E911 Board  to make 
any further payment of funds shall, if the Department elects, terminate and the Department has the option to 
exercise any of its remedies set forth herein.  However, the Department may make payments or partial 
payments after any Events of Default without waiving the right to exercise such remedies and without becoming 
liable to make any further payment. The Events of Default are: 

10.1. If any warranty or representation made by the Grantee in this Agreement or any previous agreement 
with the Department is or becomes false or misleading in any respect; 

10.2. If the Grantee fails to keep or timely perform any of the obligations, terms, or covenants in this 
Agreement or any previous agreement with the Department and has not cured them in timely 
fashion; 

10.3. If the Grantee or is unable or unwilling to meet its obligations under this Agreement; 
10.4. If material adverse changes occur in the financial condition of the Grantee at any time during the 

term of this Agreement; or 
10.5. If any reports required by this Agreement have not been submitted to the Department or have been 

submitted with incorrect, incomplete, or insufficient information. 

463

A.

http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/
http://csrc.nist.gov/
http://csrc.nist.gov/


7 
 
 

 
11. REMEDIES 
If an Event of Default occurs, then the Department shall provide a written notice to the Grantee, and, upon the 
Grantee's failure to cure the default within the thirty (30) calendar days, the Department may exercise any one 
(1) or more of the following remedies, either concurrently or consecutively: 

11.1. terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12, Termination, below; 
11.2. withhold or suspend payment of all or any part of a request for payment; 
11.3. exercise any corrective or remedial actions, including but not limited to: 

11.3.1. request additional information from the Grantee to determine the reasons for or the extent 
of non-compliance or lack of performance; 

11.3.2. issue a written warning to advise that more serious measures may be taken if the situation is 
not corrected; or 

11.3.3. advise the Grantee to suspend, discontinue, or refrain from incurring costs for any activities 
in question. 

 
Pursuing any of the above remedies will not preclude the Department from pursuing any other remedies 
available under this Agreement or at law or in equity.  If the Department waives any right or remedy in this 
Agreement or fails to insist on strict performance by the Grantee, it does not affect, extend, or waive any other 
right or remedy of the Department, or affect the later exercise of the same right or remedy by the Department 
for any other default by the Grantee. 
 
12. TERMINATION 

12.1. Termination Due to the Lack of Funds.  If funds become unavailable for the Agreement’s purpose, 
such event will not constitute a default by the Department or the State.  The Department agrees to 
notify the Grantee in writing at the earliest possible time if funds are no longer available.  In the 
event that any funding identified by the Grantee as funds to be provided for completion of the 
project as described herein becomes unavailable, including if any State funds upon which this 
Agreement depends are withdrawn or redirected, the Department may terminate this Agreement 
by providing written notice to the Grantee.  The Department will be the final authority as to the 
availability of funds.   

12.2. Termination for Cause.  The Department may terminate this Agreement for cause after ten (10) days 
of a written notice, which will be issued after the 30-day cure period ends.  Cause includes, but is not 
limited to, misuse of funds, fraud, lack of compliance with applicable rules, laws, and regulations, 
failure to perform on time, or refusal to permit public access to any document, paper, letter, or other 
material subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, F.S., unless exempt from Section 24(a) of Article I 
of the State Constitution and section 119.07(1), F.S., or applicable state or federal law, which the 
Grantee created or received under this Agreement. 

12.3. Termination for Convenience.  The Department may terminate this Agreement for convenience or 
when it determines, in its sole discretion, that continuing the Agreement would not produce 
beneficial results in line with the further expenditure of funds by providing the Grantee with thirty 
(30) calendar days’ prior written notice. 

12.4. Mutual Termination.  The parties may agree to terminate this Agreement for their mutual 
convenience through a written amendment of this Agreement.  The amendment will state the 
effective date of the termination and the procedures for proper closeout of the Agreement. 

12.5. Grantee Responsibilities upon Termination.  Upon notice of termination, the Grantee shall: 
12.5.1. not incur new obligations for the terminated portion of the Agreement; and 

464

A.



8 
 
 

12.5.2. cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible.  Costs incurred after receipt of the 
termination notice are disallowed.  The Grantee shall not be relieved of liability to the 
Department because of any breach of this Agreement by the Grantee.  The Department may, 
to the extent authorized by law, withhold payments to the Grantee for the purpose of set-off 
until the exact amount of damages due to the Department from the Grantee is determined. 

 
13. RESULTING THIRD PARTY CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 
13.1. The Grantee may contract with third parties to perform work.  The Grantee remains fully responsible for 

satisfactory completion of any and all work performed by any contractors and subcontractors.  
13.1.1 If the Grantee contracts all or part of the work contemplated under this Agreement, including 

entering into contracts with vendors for services, it is understood by the Grantee that all such 
contract arrangements shall be evidenced by a written document containing all provisions 
necessary to ensure the contractor’s compliance with applicable state and federal laws.  The 
Grantee further agrees that the Department shall not be liable to the contractor for any expenses 
or liabilities incurred under the contract and that the Grantee shall be solely liable to the 
contractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the contract.  The Grantee, at its 
expense, will defend the Department against such claims. 

13.2. With the Grantee’s approval, the Grantee’s contractor may subcontract work performed, and the 
Grantee’s contractor will be fully responsible for satisfactory completion of all subcontracted work. 

13.3. The Grantee agrees all Grantee contracts or subcontracts entered into pursuant to this Agreement shall 
contain: 

 13.3.1 language requiring contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) who are paid from funds provided under 
this Agreement (i) be bound by the terms of this Agreement, as applicable; and (ii) be bound by, 
and contain all provisions necessary to ensure the contractor’s compliance with, all applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations.  

13.3.2 all applicable provisions from Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200—Contract Provisions For Non-Federal 
Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards; and 

13.3.3. without modification, all paragraphs contained in Section 16, Instructions for Lower Tier 
Participants, of this Agreement. 

 
14. MANDATED CONDITIONS 
14.1. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and venue for any actions arising 

out of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Leon County.   
14.2. If any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any applicable statute or rule or is unenforceable, 

then the provision shall be null and void to the extent of the conflict and shall be severable but shall not 
invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. 

14.3. In accordance with Executive Order 11-116, the Grantee is required to utilize the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired 
during the term of the Agreement for the services specified in the Agreement.  The Grantee must also 
include a requirement in contracts that the contractor must utilize the E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the Agreement term.  If 
the Grantee is not enrolled in DHS E-Verify System, it will do so within five (5) days of notice of the 
Agreement execution. The link to E-Verify is http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify.  

14.4. In accordance with section 11.062 and 216.345, F.S., funds received under this Agreement are not to be 
used for the purpose of lobbying or used to directly or indirectly influence legislation or any other official 
action by the Florida Legislature, the judicial brand, or any state agency. 

 
 
 

465

A.

http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify
http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify


9 
 
 

15. MISCELLANEOUS  
15.1. Payment Process.  Subject to the terms and conditions established in this Agreement and the billing 

procedures established by the Department, the Department agrees to pay the Grantee in accordance 
with section 215.422, F.S.  The applicable interest rate can be obtained at:  
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm.   

15.2. Invoicing. The Grantee shall submit all claims for reimbursement and for progress payments, as 
described in the Application, using Appendix IV, Financial Reimbursement of Expenditures Reporting 
Form, to the Application.  The Grantee may submit claims to the Board as needed; however, the Grantee 
shall not submit more than one claim per month. After receipt of the reimbursement claim, and in 
accordance with the payment provisions established in this Agreement, the Department shall disburse 
the amount of funds approved by the Board.   

15.3. Invoice Detail.  Invoices submitted by the Grantee must fulfill all requirements specified in the scope of 
work and include all supporting documentation, when applicable.  The Grantee shall also submit 
invoices in sufficient detail to fulfill all applicable requirements of the State of Florida Reference Guide 
for State Expenditures.   

15.4. Intellectual Property.  Where activities supported by this Agreement result in the creation of intellectual 
property rights, the Grantee shall notify the Department, and the Department will determine whether 
the Grantee will be required to grant the Department a perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, 
nonexclusive license to use, and to authorize others to use for State government purposes, any resulting 
patented, copyrighted, or trademarked work products developed under this Agreement. The 
Department will also determine whether the Grantee will be required to pay all or a portion of any 
royalties resulting from such patents, copyrights, or trademarks.  

15.5. Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject to Chapter 112, F.S.  The Grantee shall disclose the name 
of any officer, director, employee, or other agent who is also an employee of the State.  The Grantee 
shall also disclose the name of any State employee who owns, directly or indirectly, more than a five 
percent (5%) interest in the Grantee or its affiliates. 

15.6. Non-Discrimination.  The Grantee shall not unlawfully discriminate against any individual employed in 
the performance of this Agreement due to race, religion, color, sex, physical handicap unrelated to such 
person’s ability to engage in this work, national origin, ancestry, or age.  The Grantee shall provide a 
harassment-free workplace, and any allegation of harassment shall be given priority attention and 
action. 

15.7. Electronic Funds Transfer Enrollment. The Grantee agrees to enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), 
offered by the State’s Chief Financial Officer, within thirty (30) days of the date the last Party signed this 
Agreement. Copies of the authorization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be found at: 
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/.  Questions should be directed to the EFT Section 
at (850) 413-5517.  Once enrolled, invoice payments will be made by EFT. 

15.8. Survival.  Any right or obligation of the parties in this Agreement which, by its express terms or nature 
and context, is intended to survive termination or expiration of this Agreement, will survive any such 
termination or expiration.  

15.9. Notices.  All notices from both parties, outside of the notice of award and notices related to the business 
of the E911 Board, shall be effective when placed in the United States, first class mail, postage prepaid, 
by registered or certified mail-return receipt requested, to the address in section 5 herein. 
 
 
 
 

466

A.

http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/


10 
 
 

16.  INSTRUCTIONS FOR LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT CERTIFICATION  

The provisions in this section are required by Section f)7., Certifications Regarding Debarment and Suspension, of 
the Revised NOFO.  For purposes of this section, the Department is the primary tier participant; the Grantee and 
all vendors with which the Grantee contracts to perform work pursuant to this Agreement are lower tier 
participants; and “proposal” means this Agreement.  Furthermore, the Grantee must include the following 
provisions, without modification, in all contracts with vendors performing work pursuant to this Agreement (see 
subsection 6, below).    

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing 
the certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Parts 
180, 1200 and 1326.  

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when this transaction was entered. If it is later determined that the prospective 
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other 
remedies available to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment.  

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the 
person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier 
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

4. The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, 
participant, person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180, 1200 and 1326.  You may contact the person to whom this proposal is 
submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.  

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower 
tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 
9, Subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated. 

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it 
will include the clause titled "Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including 
the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- 
Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions and will require lower 
tier participants to comply with 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective 
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 
48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as 

467

A.



11 
 
 

well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each participant may, but is 
not required to, check the System for Award Management Exclusions website 
(https://www.sam.gov). 

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a 
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. 
The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction 
with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9.4, suspended, 
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension 
or debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - 
Lower Tier Covered Transactions: 

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that 
neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by 
any Federal department or agency. 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements 
in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 
proposal. 

I hereby affirm my authority and responsibility for the use of funds requested.  
 
Grantee 
 
___________________________________________________________               Date: _____________                                           
Signature - Chair, Board of County Commissioners or County Manager 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
Grantor 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Department of Management Services                                                                             Date: ______________ 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 

 

  

468

A.

https://www.sam.gov/
https://www.sam.gov/


12 
 
 

 

APPLICABLE STATUTES AND REGULATIONS 
The Grantee and the Department shall be governed by all applicable State and federal laws, rules, and 
regulations, including those identified in this table.   
 
General Requirements 

Florida Statutes (F.S.) 
§ 11.062, F.S. - Use of state funds for lobbying prohibited; penalty 
§ 20.055, F.S. - Agency inspectors general 
Chapter 112, F.S. - Public Officers and Employees: General Provisions 
Chapter 119, F.S. - Public Records 
§ 215.34, F.S. - State funds; noncollectible items; procedure 
§ 215.422, F.S. - Payments, warrants, and invoices; processing time limits; dispute resolution; agency or 
judicial branch compliance 
§ 215.97, F.S. - Florida Single Audit Act 
§ 215.971, F.S. - Agreements funded with federal or state assistance 
§ 216.301, F.S. - Appropriations; undisbursed balances 
§ 216.347, F.S. - Disbursement of grants and aids appropriations for lobbying prohibited 
§ 216.3475, F.S. - Maximum rate of payment for services funded under General Appropriations Act or 
awarded on a noncompetitive basis 
§ 216.181(16), F.S.- Approved budgets for operations and fixed capital outlay 
§ 273.02, F.S. - Record and inventory of certain property 
§ 287.133, F.S. - Public entity crime; denial or revocation of the right to transact business with public 
entities 
§ 287.134, F.S. - Discrimination; denial or revocation of the right to transact business with public entities 
§ 287.135, F.S. - Prohibition against contracting with scrutinized companies 
Chapter 443, F.S. - Reemployment Assistance 
§ 501.171, F.S. - Security of confidential personal information 

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) 
Rule Chapter 69I-5 - State Financial Assistance 

Memoranda 
CFO Memorandum No. 02 (2012-13) - Contract and Grant Reviews and Related Payment Processing 
Requirements 
CFO Memorandum No. 20 (2019-20) - Compliance Requirements for Agreements 

State E911 Plan and E911 Board Statutes and Rules 

Florida Statutes 
Chapter 365, F.S. - Use of Telephones and Facsimile Machines 

Florida Administrative Code 
Rule Chapter 60FF-6 - State E911 Plan 
Rule Chapter 60FF1-5 - E911 Board 

 

  

469

A.



13 
 
 

Federal Rules 

NOTE: Compliance with the following is required for grantees awarded with federal funds or state match funds, 
as identified in the Grantee’s award letter.  

United States Code (U.S.C.) 
8 U.S.C. Chapter 12 - Immigration and Nationality (Immigration and Nationality Act) 
10 U.S.C. 2409 - Contractor employees: protection from reprisal for disclosure of certain information 
41 U.S.C. 4304 - Specific costs not allowable under Federal Procurement Policy 
41 U.S.C. 4310 - Civil, Criminal, and Administrative proceeding costs of contractors not allowable 
41 U.S.C. 4712 - Enhancement of contractor protection from reprisal for disclosure of certain information 
42 U.S.C. Chapter 126 - Equal Opportunity for Individuals with Disabilities (Americans with Disabilities Act) 

United States Code of Federal Regulation (C.F.R.) 
2 C.F.R. Part 25 - Universal Identifier and System for Award Management 
2 C.F.R. Part 170 - Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information 
2 C.F.R. Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards 
2 C.F.R. Part 1201 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards as adopted and amended by the United States Department of Transportation 
2 C.F.R. Part 1327 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards as adopted by the United States Department of Commerce 
47 C.F.R. Part 400 - 911 Grant Program  

Presidential Executive Orders 
Exec. Order No. 13043 - Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States 
Exec. Order No. 13513 - Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving 

Other 
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) No. NHTSA-NTIA-911-GRANT-PROGRAM-2018, 911 Grant Program 
NOFO (Aug. 9, 2018) 
Revision to NOFO No. NHTSA-NTIA-911-GRANT-PROGRAM-2018, 911 Grant Program NOFO (Feb. 1, 2019) 

 

Catalog of State Financial 
Assistance number: 

72.002 
 

Catalog of State Financial Assistance Title: 
 

 

 

 

State Grant Number:  Tactical Mapping and Analytics State Grant Award Date: 02/23/2021  
 

E911 State Grant Program 

470

A.



 

DFS-A2-CL Page -14- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

Attachment 1 
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR AWARDS OF STATE AND FEDERAL 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 
The administration of resources awarded by the Department of Management Services 
(Department) to the Grantee may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department, as 
described in this section.  

MONITORING 

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit 
Requirements, and section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see AUDITS below), 
monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by Department staff, limited 
scope audits as defined by 2 CFR §200.425, or other procedures.  By entering into this 
agreement, the Grantee agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures or 
processes deemed appropriate by the Department.  In the event the Department determines that 
a limited scope audit of the Grantee is appropriate, the Grantee agrees to comply with any 
additional instructions provided by Department staff to the Grantee regarding such audit.  The 
Grantee further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or 
audits deemed necessary by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General. 

AUDITS 

Part I:  Federally Funded 
This part is applicable if the Grantee is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as 
defined in 2 CFR §200.90, §200.64, and §200.70. 

1. A grantee that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a 
single or program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, 
Subpart F - Audit Requirements.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the federal resources awarded 
through the Department by this agreement.  In determining the federal awards expended in 
its fiscal year, the Grantee shall consider all sources of federal awards, including federal 
resources received from the Department.  The determination of amounts of federal awards 
expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established in 2 CFR §§200.502-
503.  An audit of the Grantee conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the 
provisions of 2 CFR §200.514 will meet the requirements of this Part. 

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the Grantee shall fulfill the 
requirements relative to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR §§200.508-512. 

3. A grantee that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required 
to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - 
Audit Requirements.  If the Grantee expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its 
fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 
CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-
federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from Grantee resources 
obtained from other than federal entities). 

Part II:  State Funded 
In the event that the Grantee expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to 
or in excess of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such Grantee (for fiscal years ending June 30, 
2017, or thereafter), the Grantee must have a state single or project-specific audit for such 

471

A.



 

DFS-A2-CL Page -15- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

fiscal year in accordance with section 215.97, F.S.; applicable rules of the Department of 
Financial Services; and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit 
and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the 
state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this agreement.  In 
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the Grantee shall 
consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance 
received from the Department, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities.  State 
financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources 
received by a nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements. 

For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the Grantee shall ensure that the 
audit complies with the requirements of section 215.97(8), F.S.  This includes submission 
of a financial reporting package as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S., and Chapters 10.550 
(local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of 
the Auditor General. 

If the Grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, or thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of section 215.97, F.S., is not required.  If the Grantee expends less than 
$750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of section 215.97, F.S., the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
Grantee’s resources obtained from other than state entities). 

Part III:  Other Audit Requirements 
N/A 
Part IV:  Report Submission 

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart 
F - Audit Requirements, and required by Part I of this form shall be submitted, when required 
by 2 CFR §200.512, by or on behalf of the Grantee directly to the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR §200.36 and §200.512. 

  The FAC’s website provides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the 
single audit reporting package.  Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system 
may be found at the OMB website. 

2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by Part II of this form shall be submitted by 
or on behalf of the Grantee directly to each of the following: 
a. The Department at each of the following addresses: 

Electronic copies (preferred):  
 
E911BoardElectronicGrantReports@dms.fl.gov 
 
or 
 
Paper (hard copy):   
 
Florida E911 Board 
4030 Esplanade Way Ste. 135 
Tallahassee, FL  32399-0950 
 

472

A.

mailto:E911BoardElectronicGrantReports@dms.fl.gov
mailto:E911BoardElectronicGrantReports@dms.fl.gov


 

DFS-A2-CL Page -16- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

b. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 
  Auditor General 
  Local Government Audits/342 
  Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 
  111 West Madison Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 
  The Auditor General’s website (https://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an 

electronic copy of a financial reporting package. 
3. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the 

Department pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 
§200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable. 

4. Grantees, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for audits done 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the 
Auditor General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was delivered to the 
Grantee in correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

Part V:  Record Retention 
The Grantee shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the 
award(s) and this agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is issued, 
and shall allow the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General access to such 
records upon request.  The Grantee shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to 
the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon request for a period of five (5) 
years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department. 

 

473

A.

https://flauditor.gov/


 

DFS-A2-CL Page -17- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

EXHIBIT 1 

Federal Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 

N/A 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to the Federal Resources 
  Awarded Pursuant to this Agreement are as Follows: 

N/A 
State Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 
Matching Resources for Federal Programs: 

Federal Project: The Next Generation 911 Advancement Act 
Federal Awarding Agencies: The U.S. Department of Transportation National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) and the U.S. Department of Commerce, National 
Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA) 
Catalog of State Financial Assistance Title: E911 State Grant Program 
Catalog of State Financial Assistance Number: 72.002 
Amount: $12,792.00 

Subject to Section 215.97, F.S.: 
N/A 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to State Resources Awarded 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Are as Follows: 

The compliance requirements are as stated in Grant Agreement # S17-21-02-15 between 
the Grantee and the Department, entered in State fiscal year 2020-21.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

474

A.



 

 Page -18- 
 
 
. 

EXHIBIT 2 

Pilot Region Project Metrics 

Grantee: Franklin Board of County Commissioners 

Project Identification Number: S17-21-02-15 

Reporting Quarter: ______ 

 

Metric One, Project Completion 

Description. This is a measure from the Grantee regarding their progress towards completing 
their project.   

Baseline.  The baseline is the schedule detailed in the Grantee’s E911 grant application.   

Measurement. This will be reported as a percentage of progress on the Grantee’s quarterly 
grant return.  

Percentage of progress towards project completion: ___% 

  

Metric Two, Geographic Information System (GIS) Database Synchronization   

Description. The Grantee’s reported GIS Database Synchronization that is in accordance with 
National Emergency Number Association (NENA) standards for the pilot region.  This can be 
reported for each county within the pilot region, or as a total number for the entire pilot region.    

Baseline. The baseline will be the numbers submitted in the grantee’s first quarterly report.  

Measurement. This will be reported as a percentage of synchronization on the Grantee’s 
quarterly grant return.   

Numbers demonstrated are for the pilot region in total: <yes or no> If no, please 
duplicate the lines below for each county. 

Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) to road centerlines: ____ % 

Automatic Location Identifier (ALI) to road centerlines: _____ % 

 

Metric Three, Equipment Upgrades 

Description The percent of Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) within the pilot region that 
have upgraded their equipment, for example upgrading servers to become IP capable.  This can 
be reported for each county within the pilot region, or as a total number for the entire pilot 
region. 

475

A.



 

 Page -19- 
 
 
. 

Baseline The number of PSAPs that require upgraded their equipment.  

Measurement This will be reported as a percentage of progress on the Grantee’s quarterly 
grant return.   

Numbers demonstrated are for the pilot region in total: <yes or no> If no, please 
duplicate the lines below for each county. 

Number of PSAPs that require equipment upgrades: _________ 

Number of PSAPs that have received equipment upgrades: ________ 

Percentage of PSAPs that have received equipment upgrades: ________ 

 

 

 

476

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Action Items

1. Grammercy Correction:  At your March 16, 2021 regular meeting Commissioner Ward asked staff

to investigate a possible scrivener’s error on the County’s map located at the corner of Highway 98 

and Highway 65 near Gramercy Plantation.  Mr. Mark Curenton, County Planner, provided a series 

of maps and information (attached) regarding the property in question.  Based on the information 

provided, the Board may decide there was a scrivener’s error and Mr. Curenton will make the 

necessary zoning change, however, if the Board decides no error was made then the zoning will 

remain as is.  Board action to determine if a scrivener’s error was made based on the information 

provided.

2. ARPC Code Enforcement Agreement:  Previously the Board requested Apalachee Regional 

Planning Council to conduct workshops throughout the County to hear from residents on code 

enforcement for unincorporated Franklin County.  At your last meeting, Ms. Caroline Smith of ARPC 

reviewed a proposal with the Board to provide the requested service.  Included in my report, is an 

agreement for the Chairman’s signature to authorize ARPC to conduct the workshops.  This 

agreement has been reviewed by Attorney Shuler.  Board action to authorize the Chairman to sign 

the ARPC agreement to conduct workshops to hear from residents on code enforcement.

3. Airport Fuel Farm Location:  John Collins of AVCON (Airport Engineers) presented three different

locations for a new Airport fuel farm at your last meeting.  After the presentation, the Board 

decided to schedule a workshop to discuss the different locations in more detail.  After the meeting, 

Mr. Alan Pierce realized that he used the recently constructed FDOT funded Airport access road as 

the required match for the TRIUMPH grant application to fund the new fuel farm.  Mr. Pierce then 

contacted Mr. Collins and they both agreed that the only location to consider building the new fuel 

farm is what is referred to as Alternate Site 2 (West Apron) on the attached map titled Updated Fuel 

Farm Alternative Locations, 4-2-2021. With that information, there was no need for the scheduled 

April 14th workshop to discuss all three locations, therefore it was cancelled.  If there are no 

additional questions or comments on this matter, the Board can authorize proceeding with that 

location today.  Board action to authorize the construction of the new Airport fuel farm at Alternate 

Site 2 (West Apron).

4. New EOC Location:  A couple of years ago the Board requested, as a legislative appropriation, 

funds to design and construct a new Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  The County received 

funds from the State to design and engineer a new EOC.  After much discussion the Board agreed to 

a location on the Airport for the new EOC, however, that location was considered “Airport” property

based on a 1947 FAA lease and recorded deed.  In order not to pay the Airport fair market value to 

use that property, FAA would have to exclude the property from the 1947 lease and recorded deed. 

AVCON tried but was unsuccessful on getting FAA to exclude this property.  So, in an attempt to 

avoid that issue, Mr. Clay Kennedy of Dewberry, Mr. John Collins and Mrs. Mary Soderstrum of 

AVCON, and county staff started a search for a parcel around the airport that would be big enough 

for the new EOC, but not part of the famous 1947 lease and recorded deed.  After many meetings 

and emails, the lot indicated by the green shade on the attached map is recommended.  This lot is 

located on the NE corner of Brownsville and Airport Road and a three acres section will be used to 

allow enough room for the EOC building, parking, stormwater, and expansion.  Now, this lot is not 

477



without its own challenges, as it was mistakenly included and recorded on the deed as part of the 

1942 lease, but there is a prior deed that shows it was never part of the 1942 lease.  AVCON is 

working with FAA and FDOT to remove this lot from the recorded deed, and even though both 

agencies agree that it was a mistake to include that lot, there is a process that will take a few 

months to correct the error.  Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Erin Griffith and I met with Attorney Shuler and 

explained the situation to him for his council and guidance on moving forward with this lot for the 

new EOC.  Attorney Shuler agrees that we should proceed with this lot and the design of the new 

EOC but wanted the Board to be aware that if we have to move the EOC from this location for any 

reason, there will be added expense for changes and re-engineering of the EOC at a new location.  

So, is the Board ready to move forward with the designing of the new EOC at this location with all 

the information that has been presented here today?  Board discussion and direction.

5. SGI Speed Limit Change:  At your last meeting, Chairman Jones requested, and the Board agreed 

by motion, to lower the speed limit to 25 mph on East Pine Street located in St. George Island’s 

business district. The Chairman informed me that the new speed limit should be 20 mph (not 25 

mph) and the section of West Pine Street located in the business district should be also be included 

in that speed limit change for the same reason.  Board action to reduce the speed limit on the sections

of East Pine Street and West Pine Street that is located in St. George Island’s business district to 20 

mph.

6. EOC Contract:  Mrs. Pam Brownell, Emergency Management Director, requested that Chairman 

Jones sign the Federally Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement No. Z2607 for Hurricane Sally.  

Mrs. Brownell stated that she was facing a deadline and needed the signed document sent to the 

Florida Division of Emergency Management last week.  In addition, Mrs. Erin Griffith completed the 

associated FDEM Risk Assessment Questionnaire.  Board action to ratify the Chairman’s signature on

the Hurricane Sally Federally Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement.

7. TDC Tax Increase:  At your June 16, 2020 meeting the Board discussed increasing the tourist 

development tax from 2% to 3% and ended the discussion with a motion to schedule a public 

hearing to increase the tax.  Later on, during that same meeting, the Board also motion to schedule a

workshop with the TDC to discuss how the additional funds would be spent.  That workshop was 

postponed and never rescheduled. The public hearing was never advertised or scheduled.  Is the 

Board ready to schedule the public hearing, and rather than having a separate workshop, have a 

representative from TDC appear at the public hearing and discuss possible future projects?  Board 

discussion and direction.

8. Congressman Dunn’s Request: About two weeks ago, Congressman Dunn office sent a request for 

Congressionally Directed Community Project Funding with an April 19, 2021 submission deadline.  

As time was an issue, I asked Mrs. Traci Buzbee to assist the County with the applications.  Since 

this information was already available, the County submitted applications for the construction of a 

new EOC and additional funding for Fort Coombs Armory fire sprinkler system.  Each application 

required a letter of support signed by the Chairman.  Board action to ratify the Chairman’s signature 

on the letters of support for both applications.

9. Abercrombie Boat Ramp Security Cameras:  A few years ago, the Board approved video security 

systems for a number of locations, Abercrombie boat ramp being one of those locations.    There 

were a few hurdles to overcome at the boat ramp, power and a solution for accessing the video due 

to communication access restrictions.  Power at the boat ramp has been available, however we had 

478



to make other concessions as it relates to the communication issue.  Of all the companies that I have

asked for proposals, I recommend the proposal from Inspired Technology.  Without revealing too 

much information, they have the best workaround for accessing the recorded video from the 

cameras.  The total amount of this proposal is $9,497.00.  Board action to accept the $9,497.00 quote 

from Inspired Technology for the installation of a CCTV camera system at Abercrombie boat ramp.

10. Prison Closing Letter to Senate: Earlier in the meeting the Board heard from Warden Conner 

regarding inmate labor and prison closings.  Prior to last week’s message and information Warden 

Conner may have provided this morning, the State Legislature was considering closing four prisons.

During the time when this was a probability, there was a call to action to send the Florida Senate 

President and the Speaker of the House a letter asking that the Franklin County Correctional 

Institute would not be included on the list of possible prisons closures.  Chairman Jones signed the 

letter, (attached) and it was immediately sent to the Senate President and Speaker of the House.  

Board action to ratify the Chairman’s signature on the letter.

479

A.



GRAMMERCY PLANTATION COMMERCIAL ZONING 

 

 Recently the issue of the zoning of a piece of property on the east side of Highway 65 just 

north of the Duke Energy transmission line, as shown in in Map I, has been raised. 

 

 

 
MAP I 

 

 

 On December 3, 1996, the Board of County Commissioners gave final approval to the 

abandonment of the Green Point Development of Reginal Impact, which included repeal of the 

Green Point Planned Unit Development District Ordinance 91-4.  This ordinance had designated 

what could be built on the Green Point property, at the northeast corner of Highway 65 and 

Highway 98. 

 To replace the Green Point Planned Unit Development the Board of County 

Commissioners adopted new zoning for the property on February 18, 1997.  The new zoning 

included two tracts of C-2 Commercial Business property: a six acre tract located near the 

intersection of Highway 98 and Highway 65 that was intended for a hotel and a sixteen acre tract 

further north on Highway 65 that was designated for retail space.   

 

480

A.



 
MAP II 

 

 

Map II is a site plan prepared by Dan Garlick and Associates that was submitted in 1996 

by the developers that shows what was proposed on the property at this time.  The yellow dashed 

line shows the electrical transmission line across the property.  The areas outlined in red show 

the two proposed commercial properties.  The light green area is areas designated for 

preservation and the blue areas are residential. 

 

481

A.



 
MAP III 

 

 

 Map III shows the map that was advertised in the newspaper at this time for the proposed 

rezoning.  The location of the electric transmission line is not shown on this map. 

 

482

A.



 
MAP IV 

 

 

 Map IV is the current Franklin County Zoning Map. 

 The question for the Board of County Commissioners is does the current zoning map 

reflect the intention of the Board in 1997 when they rezoned the property.  Should the area 

shown in Map I be included in the C-2 commercial area on Map IV? 

 

483

A.



Code Enforcement Public Workshop Series 
Apalachee Regional Planning Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposal for Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 

April 6, 2021 

 

 

 

 

484

A.



Overview 

Apalachee Regional Planning Council (ARPC) seeks to partner with Franklin County to provide 
technical assistance related to code enforcement. Specifically, ARPC proposes conducting a 
series of five workshops on code enforcement in various locations in Franklin County, during 
which ARPC staff will provide an overview of what code enforcement is, share examples of what 
has worked well in similar communities, and provide opportunity for public comment. Public 
input will be compiled, organized into a summary on public opinion of code enforcement, and 
shared with the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) to inform their ongoing 
code enforcement discussions. 

 

Background 

The ARPC is an intergovernmental, not-for-profit regional organization that works on behalf of its 
9-county region, including Franklin County, to provide technical assistance in the areas of 
economic development, emergency preparedness, transportation, housing, quality of life, and 
growth management, which encompasses the topic of code enforcement. ARPC staff seek to 
assist Franklin County as a neutral third party to understand and document community 
perspectives on code enforcement. 

 

Proposed Activities 

The primary activity of this project is a series of five public workshops, which will provide a forum 
to inform citizens about code enforcement, provide examples of what worked in similar 
communities, and solicit public input that can inform discussions taking place at the county-level.  

 

PUBLIC WORKSHOPS 

ARPC staff propose facilitating a series of five public workshops, on behalf of Franklin County, in 
various locations throughout Franklin County, which will target residents of: 

• Unincorporated areas of Apalachicola 
• Eastpoint 
• St. George Island 
• Unincorporated areas of Carrabelle 
• Lanark Village 

A summary of public input collected at the workshops will be presented by ARPC staff after the 
conclusion of the workshop series at a Franklin County Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) 
meeting.  

485

A.



Outcome 

This summary report on public comments from the five workshops will be used by the Franklin 
County BoCC to inform their discussions on code enforcement. The project will begin June 1, 
2021 and conclude by September 30, 2021.  

 

Proposed Budget 

This project proposes a cost-reimbursement contract in the amount of $6,000, which will 
support the three ARPC staff members needed to perform all services. Staff salary is calculated 
using an hourly rate of $55, which factors in indirect costs. Travel costs reflect three persons 
travelling in a shared vehicle between Tallahassee (Leon County) and Franklin County.  

 

Task Amount Cost Categories 
Code Enforcement Research 
and Workshop Preparation $550 Staff Salary, Indirect 

Workshop 1 – 
unincorporated areas of 
Apalachicola 

$ 900  Staff Salary, Indirect, Travel 

Workshop 2 – Eastpoint $ 900 Staff Salary, Indirect, Travel 

Workshop 3 – St. George 
Island $ 900 Staff Salary, Indirect, Travel 

Workshop 4 – 
unincorporated areas of 
Carrabelle 

$ 900 Staff Salary, Indirect, Travel 

Workshop 5 – Lanark Village  $ 900 Staff Salary, Indirect, Travel 

Summary Report and 
presentation to Franklin 
County BoCC 

$ 950 Staff Salary, Indirect, Travel 

Total Project $6,000   

 

 

 

486

A.



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  
APALACHEE REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL  
AND THE FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 7th day of April 2021, by and between the Apalachee 
Regional Planning Council, herein referred to as the ARPC, and the Franklin County Board of 
County Commissioners, herein referred to as the Franklin County BoCC. 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, the ARPC in furtherance of its duties desires to partner with the Franklin County 
BoCC to render Planning and Coordination services in Franklin County, Florida; and 
 
WHEREAS, ARPC possesses the qualifications and expertise to perform the services required by 
Franklin County per the Scope of Work outlined in the Franklin County Code Enforcement Public 
Workshop Series project proposal. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1 – SCOPE OF WORK 
 
ARPC agrees to assign Caroline Smith as the Administrator of this agreement and also agrees 
that she will be the ARPC employee assigned to the completion of the tasks outlined in this 
administrative agreement with the Franklin County BoCC. The Scope of Work to be provided by 
ARPC will include, but not be limited to, the following:  

o Lead Franklin County BoCC with Planning activities required under the Code 
Enforcement Public Workshop Series project, including but not limited to research, 
outreach, workshops, and creation of a summary report for the Franklin County BoCC. 

o Provide Coordination and Administrative support service to the Franklin County BoCC as 
needed and requested, if relevant to the Scope of Work.  

 
ARTICLE 2 – COMPENSATION 
 

In consideration for services received, the Franklin County BoCC agrees to reimburse the ARPC 
for its services which include direct and indirect costs associated with the Planning, 
Coordination, and Administration duties as outlined above for $6,000.00. 
 

o ARPC will submit one invoice, in accordance with the Scope of Work, not to exceed 
$6,000.00 by October 31, 2021 for the services provided under this agreement.  

 
 

487

A.



ARTICLE 3 – TIME OF COMPLETION 
 

Services by ARPC to the Franklin County BoCC will be for the period of June 1, 2021 through 
September 30, 2021.   
 
ARTICLE 4 – DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
 

The failure of either party to comply with any provision of this AGREEMENT shall place that 
party in default.  Prior to terminating this AGREEMENT, the non-defaulting party shall notify the 
defaulting party in writing.  The notification shall make specific reference to the provision which 
gave rise to the default.  The defaulting party shall then be entitled to a period of ten (10) days 
in which to cure the default.  In the event said default is not cured within the ten (10) day 
period, the AGREEMENT may be terminated.  The failure of either party to exercise this right 
shall not be considered a waiver of such right in the event of any further default or 
noncompliance.  Upon default and termination as provided in this Article, ARPC shall be 
reimbursed for all its actual costs incurred in providing services hereunder as costs are defined 
in Article 2 of this AGREEMENT and all finished or unfinished documents and other materials 
prepared by ARPC pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall become the property of the Franklin 
County BoCC. With 30 days advance notice, either party may choose to voluntarily terminate 
this AGREEMENT without penalty by formally notifying the other party in writing of its intent. 
 
ARTICLE 5 – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Assignability.  ARPC shall not assign any interest in this AGREEMENT and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the 
prior written consent of the Franklin County BoCC. 
 

B. Representation for the Parties.  Any questions relating to the performance of this 
AGREEMENT shall be directed to the ARPC Executive Director or Chair of the Franklin 
County BoCC, as appropriate. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT on this 7th day of 
April 2021. 
 
 
 
BY:         BY:         
         Chris Rietow      Ricky Jones 

ARPC Executive Director    Chair, Franklin County Board of  
County Commissioners 

 

488

A.



PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

KEY MAP

PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

ALTERNATIVE SITE 2:

WEST APRON - AIRSIDE

ALTERNATIVE SITE 1:

EAST APRON - LANDSIDE

ALTERNATIVE SITE 3:

EAST APRON - LANDSIDE

489

A.



PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

ALTERNATIVE SITE 1A:

EAST APRON - LANDSIDE

(ADJACENT TO APRON)

1"  =    

0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET:

25 50 100

100

North

EAST APRON

A
P

A
L

A
C

H
E

E
 
S

T
.

A

I
R

P

O

R

T

 
R

D

.

FBO

POTENTIAL FUEL

FARM LOCATION

FUEL TANK

ACCESS

AIRFIELD UNDERGROUND

ELECTRICAL CABLES

PROPOSED FENCE

ALIGNMENT

FUEL TRUCK OFF-LOAD

CONTAINMENT

490

A.



PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

ALTERNATIVE SITE 1B:

EAST APRON - LANDSIDE

(SET BACK FROM APRON)

1"  =    

0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET:

25 50 100

100

North

A
P

A
L

A
C

H
E

E
 
S

T
.

A

I
R

P

O

R

T

 
R

D

.

EAST APRON

FBO

POTENTIAL FUEL

FARM LOCATION

FUEL TANK ACCESS

REMOTE FUEL

LINES

UNDERGROUND AIRFIELD

ELECTRICAL CABLES

PROPOSED FENCE

ALIGNMENT

FUEL TANK

OFF-LOAD

CONTAINMENT

491

A.



PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

ALTERNATIVE SITE 1C:

EAST APRON - AIRSIDE

1"  =    

0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET:

25 50 100

100

North

A
P

A
L

A
C

H
E

E
 
S

T
.

A

I
R

P

O

R

T

 
R

D

.

EAST APRON

FBO

POTENTIAL FUEL

FARM LOCATION

UNDERGROUND AIRFIELD

ELECTRICAL CABLES

PROPOSED FENCE

ALIGNMENT

FUEL TANK

OFF-LOAD

CONTAINMENT

492

A.



65.5'

PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

ALTERNATIVE SITE 2:

WEST APRON - AIRSIDE

1"  =    

0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET:

25 50 100

100

North

POTENTIAL FUEL

FARM LOCATION

WEST APRON

R

U

N

W

A

Y

 

6

-

2

4

T

A

X

I
W

A

Y

 
B

1

T

A

X

I

W

A

Y

 

B

2

EXISTING FUEL FARM LOCATION

(TO BE REMOVED)

T

A

X

I

W

A

Y

 

B

FUEL TRUCK OFF-LOAD

CONTAINMENT

PROPOSED FENCE

ALIGNMENT

493

A.



PRELIMINARY FUEL FARM

REPLACEMENT EVALUATION

APALACHICOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT

www.avconinc.com

320 BAYSHORE DRIVE, SUITE A - NICEVILLE, FL  32578-2425

OFFICE: (850) 678-0050 - FAX: (850) 678-0040

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER: 5057

AVCON, INC.

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

ALTERNATIVE SITE 3:

EAST APRON - LANDSIDE

1"  =    

0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET:

25 50 100

100

North

A
P

A
L

A
C

H
E

E
 
S

T
.

A

I
R

P

O

R

T

 
R

D

.

EAST APRON

FBO

POTENTIAL FUEL

FARM LOCATION

POTENTIAL FUEL

FARM ACCESS DRIVE

PROPOSED FENCE

ALIGNMENT

FUEL TRUCK OFF-LOAD

CONTAINMENT

REMOTE FUEL LINES

494

A.



495

A.



2

3
4

34

35

LEGEND

ITEM DESCRIPTION

496

A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-T-R BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNWAY CENTERLINE

jkennedy
Highlight

jkennedy
Highlight

jkennedy
Highlight



497

A.



File Attachments for Item:

A. Report

498

A.



499

A.



500

A.



501

A.



502

A.



503

A.



504

A.



505

A.



506

A.



507

A.



508

A.



509

A.



510

A.


	Top
	A.	040621 Minutes 042021
	FCBOCC 040621

	A.	Warden 042021
	FDOC Prison Closing

	A.	RD Informational 042021
	April 20, 2021 BCC report

	A.	SW Informational 042021
	Solid Waste Director Agenda 42021

	A.	EM Action 042021
	20210415142327

	A.	RICHARD L. WOOD, SHERYL T. WOOD, AND DOONA B. BOSTWICK
	339 River Road Location Map
	Richard L Wood - Sheryl T Wood - & Donna Bostwick

	B.	WALTER SEARS
	Sears Location Map
	Walter Sears

	C.	ROBERT MOLLERGREN & LESLIE DENHARD
	Mollergren Location Map
	Mollergren Application

	A.	Robert Kirby
	Kirby Location Map
	Kirby File

	B.	TCB Ventures, LLC (Travis Fink)
	Fink Location Map
	Fink 

	C.	Richard DeLarber
	DeLarber Location Map
	Richard DeLarber

	A.	St George Bay Subdivision
	Boone Development - SCE Proposal 2021-03-05
	Final Plat Request - Boone

	A.	Donna Barber & Charles Shiver
	101 W Pine Location Map
	101 West Pine Application

	A.	MMSW Holdings, LLC
	MMSW, LLC Location Map
	Rezoning Application 336 Patton Road
	MMSW Holdings, LLC Site Plan

	B.	Blakey's Beach LLC
	Blakey - True Grit Location Map
	Blakey - True Grit
	Cheryl Whaley Email Change Request
	Property Owner Letter
	Blakey Letters of Support

	A.	Copy of Barbara Mathis
	Mathis Location Map
	Barbara Mathis

	A.	RFP AP Multi-Use Path
	Advertisement for Alligator Point CEI 2021

	A.	FOGM Action 042021
	FOGM Board Report 042021
	SAO Funding Memo
	BDGT RESOLUTION 042021 BUDDY WARD ARTIFICIAL REEF PROJ
	Walter Marine Subcontract Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Project - PDF
	CARES Grant 20202021
	FCSO 12 County Region 1 NG911 Grant Application
	FCSO 12 County Region 1 Signed MOU
	Rapid Deploy E911 Federal Grant Agreement

	A.	CC Action 042021
	GRAMMERCY PLANTATION COMMERCIAL ZONING
	Franklin County_Code Enforcement Project Proposal_ARPC
	Agreement_ARPC and Franklin County_Code Enforcement_draft
	Updated Fuel Farm Alternative Locations, 4-2-2021
	DOC081
	AAF 1947 Boundary - EOC Options
	LOS Prison Clouser

	A.	Shuler 042021
	Shuler 042021
	FCBCC.Atty.Rep.Apr.Supp

	Bottom

